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To
The Members of Jana Capital Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the 7th Annual Report on the business and state of affairs of
the Company together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022.

1. Financial Highlights based on the Standalone and Consolidated financials of the

Company.
Amount in Thousands

Particulars Standalone

Year ended 31.3.2022 Year ended 31.3.2021
Revenue from Operations -
Other Income - 153.59
Total Revenue - 153.59
Total Expenditure 27,48,485.74 26,00,806.54
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (27,48,485.74) (26,00,652.95)
Tax expenses - -
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (27,48,485.74) (26,00,652.95)
Surplus/(deficit) carried to the (27,48,485.74) (26,00,652.95)
Balance Sheet

Particulars

Consolidated |

Year ended 31.3.2022

Year ended 31.3.2021

Revenue from Operations

218.85

Other Income 1,534.16
Total Revenue 218.85 1,534.16
Total Expenditure 27,48,704.59 26,02,187.12
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (27,48,704.59) (26,02,187.12)

Tax expenses

Share of Profit/(loss) of the (9,01,618.64) (4,09,307.64)
associate accounted for using

equity method

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (36,50,104.38) (30,10,023.60)
Surplus/(deficit) carried to the (36,50,104.38) (30,10,023.60)

Balance Sheet

State of Company affairs

The Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) and Holding Company of Jana Holdings
Limited (JHL), its wholly owned subsidiary. The Company does not have any other operations
except holding the Investments in JHL. The Company is a registered with the RBI as NBFC-
CIC-ND-SI.

During the year under review, the total expenditure was Rs. 27,484.85 lakhs in FY 2021-22 as
against Rs. 26,008.07 lakhs in FY 2020-21. The increase in the total expenses is mainly on
account of interest accruals on the NCD borrowing. The finance cost was Rs. 3,085.56 lakhs
for the FY 2021-22 as against Rs. 2,644.88 lakhs for the FY 2020-21, this was mainly on
account of interest accrued on the NCDs issued to the tune of Rs. 150 crores on October 30th,
2019.



Dividend

During the year under review, your Directors did not declare any dividends as the Company
has suffered losses.

. Amount proposed to be carried to reserves

No amount was carried to reserves during the year under review in view of losses as stated
above.

Share Capital

The Authorised share capital of the Company as on 31st March 2022 was Rs. 3,00,00,000/-
(Rupees three crores) divided into 30,00,000 (thirty lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

The Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31st March 2022
Rs. 2,70,41,810 (Rupees two crores seventy lakhs forty-one thousand eight hundred and ten)
comprising 27,04,181 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up capital of the Company.

Debentures
The Company did not issue any debentures during the financial year 2021-22.
Change in Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Anil Rai Gupta who was nominated by QRG Enterprises Limited resigned from the Board
on 8th November 2021. Apart from this there was no change in the Directors and KMPs during
the year under review. The Board is compliant with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, (“Act”) and the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s) issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and other applicable laws.

Policy on Appointment of Directors and Senior Management Personnel

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder and
the RBI Master Directions, the Board has adopted, ‘Policy on Fit & Proper Criteria for
appointment of Directors. The said policy has been updated on the website
(https://www.janacapital.co.in) of the Company.

Board of Directors

The constitution of the Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March 2022 was as
follows:

Sl. No. | Name of the Director Category
1. Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Chairman and Non-Executive
Director
2. Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy MD and CEO
3. Mr. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya | Independent Director
Ranganath
4. Mr. Abraham Chacko Independent Director
5. Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan | Independent Director




6. Mr. Nirav Vinod Mehta Director nominated by North
Haven Private Equity Asia
Platinum Pte Ltd

7. Mr. Puneet Bhatia Director nominated by TPG Asia
VI SF Pte Ltd

Declarations from the Directors

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the applicable provisions of
the Act, circulars, notifications and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
Companies Act, 2013 none of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being
appointed as Directors of the Company. The Company has received necessary declarations
from the Independent Directors, affirming compliance with the criteria of independence
stipulated under Section 149(6) of the Act.

A statement regarding Independent Directors

Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan has successfully qualified the online proficiency self
assessment test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. Mr. Abraham Chacko
and Mr. S. V Ranganath are not required to pass the online proficiency self-assessment test as
per rule 6(4) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Fifth Amendment
Rule, 2020.

In the opinion of the Board the Independent Directors possess the integrity, expertise and
experience.

Director(s) retiring by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the following Directors
retire by rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment:

1. Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan

2. Mr. Nirav Vinod Mehta

Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel.
Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy, MD and CEO, Mr. Gopalakrishnan. S, CFO and Mrs. Vidya
Sridharan, Company Secretary are Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in terms of
Section 203 of the Act.

Subsidiaries / Joint Venture / Associate Companies

Jana Holdings Limited continues to be the Wholly owned subsidiary Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Act. Statement containing salient features of the financial statement
of Subsidiary Company in form AOC-1 is attached as Annexure-1.

Brief contribution and performance of Jana Holdings Limited (JHL) is as follows:

The total expenditure was Rs. 24,337.73 lakhs (FY 2021-22) as against Rs. 23,281.86 lakhs
(FY 2020-21). The finance cost of JHL increased from Rs. 23,281.86 lakhs (FY 2020-21) to Rs.
27,238.11 (FY 2021-22), which was mainly due to the interest accruals on the non-convertible
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debentures issued by the Company. JHL has further invested in the shares of Jana Small
Finance Bank, Associate Company.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
Since there was no amount lying with respect to the unpaid/unclaimed Dividend, the
provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

Compliance Monitoring System.

In terms of provisions of Section 134(5)(f) of the Act, the Company has right resources for
effectively monitoring to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Amalgamation

The Board of Directors had approved to adopt the Fast track method of amalgamation of the
Jana Holdings Limited (JHL) wholly owned subsidiary Company with the Company. JHL had
received the in-principle approval from the RBI on 10th August 2020 for the amalgamation. As
per the existing guidelines, the requirement of having a NOFHC has been dispensed with by
the RBI for setting up Small Finance Banks and Universal Banks in the Private Sector.
Subsequent to the receipt of the In-principle approval from the RBI the Board of Directors of
the transferor and the Transferee Companies met on 24th August 2020, approved the Scheme
of Amalgamation of the Company (Wholly Owned subsidiary) with Jana Capital Limited
(Holding Company). The Company held the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the
Shareholders on 30t October 2020 for the approval of the Scheme. The Company submitted
necessary application with the Regional Director, South-East Region, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Hyderabad on 6th November 2020 for obtaining approval of Amalgamation under
Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the said application was rejected by the
Regional Director on March 26t, 2021 since Jana Holdings Limited had only obtained the
creditors consent to the extent of 82.78% as against 90% required under section 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Upon obtaining the No Objection certificate from the concerned creditor
by JHL, the Company would apply again with Regional Director for the said merger.

Credit Rating:
During the year under review, there was no change in rating obtained earlier. The rating of
IND B+/ Stable continues.

Particulars of Deposits:

The Company has been granted Certificate of Registration by the RBI to carry on the business
of non-banking financial Institution without accepting public deposits. Accordingly, the
provisions of Section 73 and Section 74 of the Act read with Rule 8(5)(v) & (vi) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company. During the year under
review, the Company had neither accepted nor held any deposits from the public and shall not
accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval from the Reserve Bank
of India.

Extracts of the Annual Return:

In accordance with the notification by MCA dated 28t August 2020, the Company is not
required to attach the extract of the Annual return with the Board’s report in form MGT-9, if
the web link of such annual return has been disclosed in the Board’s report in accordance with
sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Company having
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the website has uploaded its Annual Return and the same can be accessed from the website
(https://www.janacapital.co.in) of the Company.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

During the period under review, the Company entered into fresh contract with a related party
details of which are disclosed in Form AOC-2 and the details of contracts/arrangements
entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in Annexure 2 of this Report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments:

During the year under review, there were no investments made by the Company. The
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act pertaining to granting of loans to any persons
or body corporate and giving of guarantees or providing security in connection with the loan
to any other body corporate or persons are not applicable to the Company, since the Company
is a Non-Banking Financial Company, registered with Reserve Bank of India.

Internal Financial Control Systems:

Pursuant to Section 134(5)(e) your Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal
Financial Control, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. To
maintain its objectivity and independence, the Company has appointed Ramesh Ashwin &
Karanth, Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor who conducted the Internal Audit of the
Company for the Financial Year 2021-22. The Internal Auditor, appointed as aforesaid,
monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal financial control system in the
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the
Company. Based on the internal audit report, process owners undertake corrective action in
their respective areas thereby strengthening the controls. Significant audit observations and
corrective actions, if any, are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. During the year
under review, such controls were tested by the Internal Auditors of the Company and no
material weaknesses in the design or operations were observed.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

A. Conservation of Energy:

Your Company, with a view to conserving energy wherever possible and practicable, has
implemented suitable devices. As far as possible, natural light is used during the daytime.
CFL/ LED lamps/ monitors are used to save power consumption. Further, awareness is also
created among the employees on the need to conserve the energy in their workplace. There
was no capital investment in this regard.

B. Technology Absorption:

Your Company being Core Investment Company does not have any operation except for
holding investment in Jana Holdings Limited (JHL). As such the Company have updated
technology to work effectively as far as the extent and scope for which the Company is
concerned.

C. Research & Development Activities (R & D):
Since the Company does not have operations on its own no research and development
activities are carried out.
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D. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:
There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review.

Risk Management:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise debt securities and sundry payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to invest in the operating entity. The
Company’s principal financial assets include investment in subsidiary company, cash and cash
equivalents, balances in banks other than cash and cash equivalents.

The Risk Management Committee oversees various risks affecting the Company. The
Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies and risk objectives. The Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors
review and agree on the policies for managing each of these risks. The Company has
formulated a policy for Risk management.

Nomination and Remuneration policy.

Disclosure of remuneration & particulars of employees:

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board has adopted a ‘Nomination
and Remuneration Policy’ setting out the criteria for deciding remuneration of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Key Management Personnel. The said Policy is
available on the website (https://www.janacapital.co.in/) of the Company.

In terms of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the disclosures with
respect to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees of the
Company are not applicable to the Company w.e.f. 1st April 2021 pursuant to rule 2A of
Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014 as the Company is not covered under
the definition of listed Company.

The Board hereby confirms that the remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The CSR committee was formed as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. Section 135(9) of the Companies Amendment Act, 2020 notified on 28th September
2020 effective from 22nd January 2021 provides that, if the amount to be spent by a company
under Section 135(5) for CSR activity, does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, then the Company is
not required to constitute the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the functions of
such Committee provided under this section shall be discharged by the Board. Accordingly,
the CSR committee was dissolved by the Board on March 4th, 2021. The CSR policy formulated
by the Company pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been placed on the
website (https://www.janacapital.co.in) of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company was not required to spend any amount towards
CSR expenditure.



22,

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Whistle Blower / Vigil Mechanism:

The Company as part of the ‘vigil mechanism’ has in place a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ to deal
with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The Whistle Blower Policy has been
placed on the website (https://www.janacapital.co.in) of the Company. Audit Committee
oversees the vigil mechanism of the Company and provides adequate safeguard against
victimization of employees. The Vigil mechanism provides direct access to the Chairperson of
the Audit Committee in exceptional circumstances. During the year under review, there were
no whistle blowers.

Management Discussions and Analysis
The Management Discussion and Analysis is annexed herewith as Annexure 4 to this Report.

Maintenance of cost records.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, such accounts
and records are not made and maintained.

Compliance with Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors have adopted POSH policy. The Company is not required to constitute
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 since the number of employees are less
than 10.

During the year under reporting, the Company has not received any complaint of Sexual
harassment and no complaints received /disposed of during the period under review.

Secretarial Standards:

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards viz. SS-1 and SS-2
during the year.

Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees.

The Board is required to meet at periodical intervals and the gap between two Board meetings
does not exceed 120 days as required under the Companies Act, 2013. During the financial
year 2021-22, the Company held the following meetings of the Board of Directors as per
Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013 as mentioned below:

Date of Board meeting No. of Directors eligible to | No. of Directors attended
attend the meeting the meeting

April 27,2021

June 24, 2021

September 23,2021

October 21, 2021

November 12, 2021

January 10, 2022

N (| |oo|u1|co |
N[ |U1|u1|]

February 14, 2022

The Company has also constituted mandatory committees as required to under the
Companies Act, 2013 viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Committees as required under the Master Directions of the Reserve Bank of India such as Risk
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Management Committee and Asset and Liability Management Committee. The details of
meeting of committees are as under:

Date of Audit committee

No. of Members eligible to
attend the meeting

No. of Members attended
the meeting

June 24, 2021 3 2
September 23,2021 3 2
November 12, 2021 3 2
February 12, 2022 3 3

Date of Risk management
Committee

No. of Members eligible to
attend the meeting

No. of Members attended
the meeting

September 23,2021 4 4
November 12,2021 4 4
February 12, 2022 4 4

Date of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

No. of Members eligible to
attend the meeting

No. of Members attended
the meeting

September 23,2021 3 3
December 29, 2021 3 2
January 10, 2022 3 2

Meeting of Independent Directors:
The Company held Independent Directors meeting on March 30, 2022.

Statutory Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder, K.S Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (Firm Registration
number 003109S) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on October 21, 2021; on account of
casual vacancy caused due to the resignation of earlier Auditors and the said appointment is
valid upto the conclusion of the ensuing AGM. Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013 the Company is required to appoint Statutory auditors for a period of 3 years.
Accordingly, the Audit Committee Meeting has recommended the re-appointment of KS Rao
& Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from
the conclusion of the 7th Annual General Meeting until the 10t Annual General Meeting for the
purpose of conducting the Statutory Audit for the financial year from 2022-23 to 2024-25.
KS Rao & Co, Chartered Accountants, have given their consent and confirmed their eligibility
to act as the statutory auditors of the Company and the appointment of Statutory Auditors is
placed for the approval of the Shareholders.

During the year under review, the statutory auditors have not reported any incident of fraud
to the Audit Committee/Board of Directors.

Qualification made by the Statutory Auditor’'s Report in the standalone financial
statement.

Following are the qualifications/observations made by the statutory Auditors in the Statutory
Audit report on Standalone financial statements for the Financial Year 2021-22 which
appeared for the first time and the reply by the Company:
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Referring to the note No. 34 (I) of the standalone financial statements, the Company is a
Non-Banking Financial Institution - Non-Deposit taking - Systemically Important Core
Investment Company. As on March 31, 2022, the adjusted net worth is 7.78% of its aggregate
risk weighted assets which is less the limit specified as per Section II of Master Direction and
adjusted Net worth which is more than the limit specified in the Directions.

Reply: The above qualification appeared for the first time in the Audit report of the Company.
It is because the Company has borrowed Rs. 150 crores of Non-Convertible Debentures on
October 2019 and the interest is accrued yearly and payable on maturity as per the terms of
the Debenture Trust Deed (DTD). Further, the adjusted net worth is also reduced because of
impairment of investment in Jana Holdings Limited, due to the losses booked by the Company
which is again due to the accrued interest on the NCDs issued by Jana Holdings Limited, wholly
Owned Subsidiary. Since the Company accounts for the investments as per the IND-AS, 100%
losses of subsidiary is accounted for impairment in the Company being the Holding Company.

Qualification made by the Statutory Auditor’s Report in the Consolidated financial
statement.

The qualification made by the Statutory Auditor in the Consolidated financial Statement and
the reply is mentioned below:

i. Referring to note 39 of the Consolidated financial statement, Jana Holdings Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company) is a Non-operating Financial Holding Company
('NOFHC'") of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited ('JSFB' or' the Bank') and has no operation
of its own. As per RBI guidelines, the Company shall maintain minimum capital adequacy
ratio ('CAR') at a consolidated level based on the prudential guidelines on Capital
Adequacy and Market Discipline -New Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF) issued under
Basel Il framework and Guidelines on Implementation of Basel III Capital Regulations of
India, when implemented. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company CAR
computed on consolidated basis is at (7.96%) which is below the regulatory minimum of
15%. The Consequential impact of such non-compliance on the Consolidated financial
results is presently unascertainable.

Reply: This qualification has appeared in the Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements of Jana Holdings Limited (JHL) which has been addressed by the Board of
Directors of JHL in their Board’s Report.

ii. Referring to the note 40 of the Consolidated financial statement, the terms and conditions
of Certificate of registration issued to the subsidiary by the RBI vide letter No. N-02.00275
dated January 27, 2017, requires subsidiary to comply with prescribed net owned funds
requirement in accordance with Section 45-IA of the RBI Act 1934, and Master Direction
DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016, the net owned funds of the
subsidiary as on March 31, 2022, is in a deficit of Rs. 1,87,35,718 thousands, which is
below the regulatory minimum of Rs. 20,000 thousand. The Consequential impact of such
non-compliance on the Consolidated financial results is presently unascertainable.

Reply: The net owned fund is applicable to Jana Holdings Limited, being Non-Operating
Financial Holding Company. This qualification has appeared in the Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements of Jana Holdings Limited (JHL) which has been
addressed by the Board of Directors of JHL in their Board’s Report
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iii. Referring to the note 41 of the Consolidated financial statement, the wholly owned
subsidiary company is a Non-Operating Financial Holding Company ('NOFHC') of Jana
Small Finance Bank Limited (‘'JSFB' or 'the Bank') and has no operation of its own. As per
RBI guidelines, the Company had a leverage ratio of 8.04 which is above the regulatory
threshold of 1.25 on a standalone basis for the year ended March 11, 2022. The
Consequential impact of such non-compliance on the Consolidated financial results is
presently unascertainable.

Reply: The above qualification appeared for the first time in the Audit report of the
Company. It is because the Company has borrowed Rs. 150 crores of Non-Convertible
Debentures on October 2019 and the interest is accrued yearly and payable on maturity
as per the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed (DTD). Further, the adjusted net worth is
also reduced because of impairment of investment in Jana Holdings Limited, due to the
losses made which is again due to the accrued interest on the NCDs issued by Jana
Holdings Limited, Subsidiary. Since the Company accounts for the investments as per the
IND-AS, 100% losses of subsidiary is accounted for impairment in the Company being the
Holding Company.

iv. The Company has initially recognised goodwill on acquisition of Jana Holding Limited,
amounting to Rs. 17,985 thousand, whose net worth have fully eroded as at March 31,
2022. Further, the Company has not performed any impairment test of goodwill.
Accordingly, in view of current financial position of Jana Holding Limited and in the
absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to comment on the
carrying value of the goodwill.

The impact of not testing the Goodwill for impairment does not affect its carrying value as
the Company’s net worth has fully eroded. The Company is committed to the impairment
testing next year.

DETAILS OF FRAUD

Pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Board of Directors, to the best of
their knowledge and ability, confirm that no offence of fraud has been committed in the
Company or by its officers or employees.

Internal Auditors

In terms of provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws,
M/s Ramesh Ashwin & Karanth, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No. 010680S were
appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the FY 2021-22. The Internal Audit
reports were reviewed by the Audit Committee.

34. Secretarial Auditors

35.

The Company having listed the debentures on a private placement basis on
November 13, 2019, was considered as the listed company as per section 2(52) of the
Companies Act, 2013. However, MCA notification dated February 19, 2021, which amended
the Companies (Specification of definitions details) Second Amendment Rules, 2021 excluded
the Company from the definition of listed Company with effect from April 1, 2021.
Accordingly, the appointment of Secretarial Auditors was not applicable to the Company from
the financial year 2021-22 onwards.

Change in nature of business
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During the period under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the
Company.

Material changes after the closure of financial year.

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of
the company that have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial
statements relate and the date of this Report.

Material adverse orders, if any
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Reserve Bank of India or the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or Courts or Tribunals or other Regulatory/ Statutory
authorities which will have an impact on the going concern status of the Company and
Company’s operations in future.

Directors’ responsibility statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013:

(a) That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year under review, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures, if any.

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit
and loss of the company for that period.

c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding
the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(e) The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively and

(f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

One Time Settlement
There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution, and
hence, no disclosure is required under rule 8(5)(xii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Pending proceedings under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, initiated
by or against the Company.
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Annexure-1
Form AOC-1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part-A

Sl Particulars Name of Subsidiary
No (Amount in Rupees thousand)
1 Name of the Subsidiary Company Jana Holdings Limited
2 Reporting period for the Subsidiary NA

concerned, if different from the holding

company’s reporting period
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as NA

on the last date of the relevant FY in case of

foreign subsidiaries
4 Share Capital 23,809.44
5 Reserves & Surplus 23,37,633.52
6 Total Assets 2,13,62,137.04
7 Total Liabilities 2,13,62,137.04
8 Investments 2,13,33,305.94
9 Turnover -
10 | Profit/(Loss) before taxation (24,33,322.80)
11 | Provision for taxation -
12 | Profit/(Loss) after taxation (24,33,322.80)
13 | Proposed Dividend -
14 | % of shareholding 100%

Notes:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations:- Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year-Nil

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Jana Capital Limited

Rajamani Muthuchamy Ramesh Ramanathan
MD & CEO (DIN: 08080999) Chairman (DIN: 00163276)

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: May 30, 2022 Date: May 30, 2022



Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

Name of Jeint Ventures/Associates

1 | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Shares of Associate held by the company
on the year end

Amount of Investment in Associates/Jeint
Venture

Extent of Holding %

Description of how there is significant
influence

Reason why the associate is not NOT APPLICABLE
consolidated

Net worth attributable to Shareholding
as per latest audited Balance Sheet

6 | Profit / Loss for the year

i | Considered in Consolidation

ii | Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations-NA
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year-NA

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Jana Capital Limited

Rajamani Muthuchamy Ramesh Ramanathan
MD & CEO (DIN: 08080999) Chairman (DIN: 00163276)
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore

Date: May 30, 2022 Date: May 30, 2022



FORM NO. AOC -2

Annexure- 2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm'’s length basis:
Sr. | Particulars Details
1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship
2. Nature of contracts /arrangements /transaction
3. Duration of the contracts /arrangements
/transaction
4, Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements NA
or transaction including the value, if any
5. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions’
6. Date of approval by the Board
7. Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed
in General meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188




2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Particulars Details Details

1 Names(s) of the related party & nature Vidya Sridharan & her Janaadhar (India)
of relationship relative Private Ltd

2 Nature of contracts /arrangements Renting of property Leasing of property
/transaction

3 Duration of the Ongoing. Started from 54 months from 12t
tracts/arrangements/transaction 23rd September 2021 November 2018

ended with mutual
consent by 15t

September 2021
4 Salient terms of the contracts or Rs. 6,000 per month with | As per the Sub lease
arrangements or transaction including year-on-year increase. agreement
the value, if any Rs. 4388 per month

with annual increase
as per agreement.

5 Date of approval by the Board 23rd September 2021 17t Sept 2018

6 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil Nil

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Jana Capital Limited

Rajamani Muthuchamy Ramesh Ramanathan
MD & CEO (DIN: 08080999) Chairman (DIN: 00163276)

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: May 30, 2022 Date: May 30, 2022



Annexure 4

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the

Financial Year 2021-22

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR
Policy including overview of projects
or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the
web-link to the CSR Policy and
projects or programs

The CSR Policy of the Company is the guiding
document to optimally allocate, manage and
supervise prescribed CSR funds of the Company. The
document spells out the Company’s CSR mission of
contributing towards social and economic
development of the community, and the strategy to
work towards its mission statement. The company
has adopted seven development areas that are in line
with Schedule VII, and further defines the nature of
CSRinitiatives to be undertaken. The policy document
highlights the role of the CSR committee members
too. The CSR Policy of the Company is line with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR Rules
and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition of CSR committee

The Committee was dissolved w.e.f March 4, 2021, as
detailed in point 14 of Board's Report.

Provide the web -link where
Composition of CSR committee, CSR
Policy and CSR projects approved by
the Board are disclosed on the
website of the Company:

https://www.janacapital.co.in/polcies/

Provide the details of Impact
assessment of CSR projects carried
out in pursuance of sub -rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report)

Not applicable

Details of the amount available for set
off in pursuance of sub -rule (3) of rule
7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and
amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any:

Not applicable

Average net profit of the Company for
last three financial years

Nil

a) Two percent of average net profit
of the Company as per Section
135(5).

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR
projects or programmes or
activities of the previous financial
years.

c) Amount required to be set off for
the financial year.

Total CSR obligation for the financial

year

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil




Details of CSR spent during the financial

year

5 Total amount to be spent for the | Nil
financial year

6 Amount unspent, if any Not applicable
Manner in which the amount spent | Not applicable
during the financial year

7 Reasons for unspent CSR expenditure | Not applicable.

SL. | CSR Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount Cumulative | Amount spent:
No. | Project or | which  the | programs outlay spent on the | expenditure | Direct or
activity project  is | 1. Local area | (budget) | projects or | upto the | through

identified | covered or others project or | programs reporting implementing

2. Specify the | programs | Sub-heads period (in | Agency (give
State and | wise (in| (1) Direct | Rs.) details of
district Rs.) expenditure implementing
where on projects Agency)
projects or or programs
programs (2)
was Overheads
undertaken
1 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

It is hereby affirmed that the implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility

(CSR) Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of board of directors of

Rajamani Muthuchamy
MD & CEO (DIN: 08080999)

Jana Capital Limited

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 30, 2022

Ramesh Ramanathan
Chairman (DIN: 00163276)

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 30, 2022




ANNEXURE 5

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

a)

b)

d)

About the Economy

The world went through an unprecedented health crisis in the form of a pandemic in 2020.
Almost all global economies announced a lockdown starting from early 2020. This resulted in
a contraction in global GDP by 3.3% in 2020 (Source: IMF). The global contraction was led by
Advanced Economies (AEs), where GDP decelerated by 4.7%, as against contraction of 2.2%
by Emerging and Developing Economies (EMDEs). The decline in global GDP led to 8.5%
reduction in world trade volumes in 2020, as restrictions disrupted global supply chains. Led
by oil, global commodity prices also fell sharply in 2020.

The underlying economic situation seems to have shifted dramatically with the progressive
unlocking of mobility and other restrictions, and also with the availability of vaccines. The
monetary and fiscal stimulus of governments and central banks seems to have led to demand
resurgence. More importantly, there has been significant progress in terms of vaccinations
being able to reduce the spread of pandemic and also more serious conditions among those
infected, thus reducing mortality rates.

Gol announced a stimulus package of * 20 trillion in several tranches in FY 2020-21 to provide
support to the MSMEs and NBFCs via a credit guarantee scheme and liquidity support to
migrant labourers via direct spending and employment generation via enhanced allocation to
MNREGA; to small traders, vendors and farmers via loan facilities; and through structural
reforms across sectors like coal, power, agriculture, etc.

RBI, on the monetary policy front, also adopted a number of measures to provide liquidity and
enhance systemic credit flow. The central bank delivered a cumulative repo rate cut of 115
basis points since February 2020, taking the repo rate down to 4%. The central bank also took
many measures to address liquidity constraints, such as moratorium, liquidity infusion for
NBFCs, liquidity facility for mutual funds, cut in the cash reserve ratio by 100 bps to 3%, etc.
These measures helped anchor borrowing costs, supported credit growth and created
stability in the financial market.

Thus, the resilience demonstrated by the Indian economy to quickly bounce back, coupled
with a growth-centric Union Budget and the RBI maintaining an accommodative stance to
sustain durable growth will likely see the Indian economy grow at a faster clip than other
economies

Industry structure and developments.

The Company being a Core Investment Company and registered as NBFC with the RBI has no
operations of its own except investment in its subsidiary company. The Company do not
accept the deposits from public. However, the investment made by the Company has an
impact on the basis of performance of Operating entity i.e Jana Small Finance Bank. The Small
finance business is picking up at a fast pace and growth-oriented development.

Opportunities and Threats.
The Company does not envisage any opportunity or treat at the moment.

Segment-wise or product-wise performance.

The Company is Core Investment Company (CIC) having investment in its Wholly owned
subsidiary Company and has classified this as its business segment and accordingly there are
no separate reportable segments. Since the Company does not have any other operations on



g)

h)

its own or any product on its own, product-wise performance is not applicable for the
Company.

Outlook

As mentioned above, the Company being a CIC does not have any other operations except
holding the investment in Jana Holdings Limited which in turn invests in Jana Small Finance
Bank Limited (“Bank”), Associate Company. There has been a significant improvement in the
performance of the Bank during the Financial Year 2021-22 when compared to the previous
years as envisaged in the Audited Financial Statements of the Bank. Your Directors’ hope that
such progressive improvement in the Operating entity will help the Company to maintain
investment value.

Internal control systems and their adequacy.

Your Company has an efficient Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Company
has appointed the Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20. The
Internal Auditor, appointed as aforesaid, monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies of the Company. Based on the internal audit report, process owners
undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.
Significant audit observations and corrective actions, if any, are presented to the Audit
Committee of the Board. The Company has right number of resources having specialized
knowledge in their respective fields which helps the Company keep abreast of the
developments in the constantly changing environment.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

The Company’s financial performance and operational performance is dependent upon the
performance of the Bank. There has been considerable improvement in the performance of
the Bank as compared to that of the previous year and the Bank is optimistic to continue the
same in the years to come.

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including
number of people employed.

Your Company has required number of human resources having requisite knowledge, skills
and experience for efficiently discharging his/her duties and responsibilities. The Company
has well defined roles and responsibilities for each employee in executing their functions and
thus enables the Company to maintain effective Corporate Governance.

Details of significant changes (i.e., change of 25% or more as compared to the
immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed
explanations therefor, including

For the For the
year year
Sl No. | Particulars ended ended % of Change between
T 31- 31- two years
March- March-
2022 2021
1 | Debtors Turnover N.A N.A
2 | Inventory Turnover N.A N.A
3 | Interest Coverage Ratio N.A N.A
4 | Current Ratio * 4.09% 21.84% -81.29%




5 | Debt Equity Ratio # 11.85 0.63 1780.70%
6 | Operating Profit Margin N.A N.A .

7 | Net Profit Margin N.A N.A .

8

Sector Specific Ratios:

(a) Capital Requirement 7.78% 61.15% -87.27%

details of any change in Return on Net Worth as
9 | compared to the immediately previous financial N.A N.A
year along with a detailed explanation thereof

* Increase in current ratio is on account of reduction in the cash and bank balance of the Company during the year on account of
increase in the corporate expenses.

# Increase in the Debt Equity ratio is due to the interest accruals on the borrowings made by the Company by way of NCDs.

$ Decrease in Capital requirement is due to the interest accruals and on account of general and corporate expenses.

% Not applicable as the Company does not have operations on its own.

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Jana Capital Limited

Rajamani Muthuchamy Ramesh Ramanathan
MD & CEO (DIN: 08080999) Chairman (DIN: 00163276)

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: May 30, 2022 Date: May 30, 2022
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AULRMTOR™S REIMORT

T'o the Members of Jana Capital Timited
Report on the Audil of the Standalone financial slalements

Olugalified Cpdnion

L. We have audited the Standalome fimancial statements of Jana Capilal Limited ["the
Company™ ) which comprsce the Stendalone Balance Sheet a5 at March 31, 2022,
Standalone statement of Prolil and Loss, Standalone statement of changes in Bguity and
Standalone atatement of Cash Fliowes for the vear then ended, and notes 1o the Standalone
[inancial statements, including s summary of significent accounting policies and ather
explanalory  inlormabion  {hereinafter roefereed o as "the  standalone  fmancial
atataments” ),

2, lnour opirdon and to the best of our information and accordingg to the explanations given
ious excepl [or the passible elfocts of the matter described in Basts for Cualified Opinion
section of our report, the atoresaid standalone financial slatements give the information
reyuired by the Compantes Act, 2005 Act™) in the manner so required and give a Lrue
atwl Ladr wiew i conformuty with helion Accounting Standards presoribed under section
135 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standardsy Fules, 2013, as
amended ["Ind A5Y) and other accounting principles penervally accepled in Lndia, ol the
slihe of ailaire of the Company vs at March 31, 2022, ibs loss, other total comprehensive
incame, changes in equily and cash Hows lor the vear eoded on thal date.

[fasis for Cualified (dpinion

3, Relerring Lo the note Noo 34 (T of the standalone financial statements, the Company is a
Mon-Banking Financial nstitution - Mon-Deposit taking - Systemically Important Core
Investment Company. As on March 31, 2022 the adjnated net worth ia 7.78% of ils
aggrepate risk weighted assets which is less the limil specilied as per Section 1T of Master
Lirection Dol (MNEFC), FOLU0G/ 0210118,/ 2016-17F (" The Dircctions™) dated Aungust 235,
201a and the outside habadibies of the Company s on March 31, 2022 45 1185 Himes of s
adjusted Mot worth which 15 more than the limit specified in the Directiona.

& We comducted oor aondit in accordance wilh the Slandards on Audiling (SAs) specilied
upder seclion 1430107 of the Act, Our responsibililivs under fhwose Standards are further
described in the Awdiler’s Hesponsbaiites for e Avwdit of the Stoedalone Fioonciad Shitoowands
sechon of our report. We are independent of the Company in acomdance with the Code
of Lthics 1ssued by the nstitote of Chartered Accountants of Indial’ 1CAF) tegether wilh
the ethical requirsments that are velevant to oor audit of the slandalene Hnancil
staterments under the provisions of the Act and the rales ereunder, and we have fulfilled
o olher ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements amd the Code of
Ellucs, We beliove Bt the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

b provide a basis for our qualified opinion,

2nd Floor, Khivraj Mansion; No.10/2, Kasturba Road, Bengaluru - SEDDUE:EHH TobH
Contact no; 8887441 507, email; hilesh&ksraoin
Head office; Hyderabad; Branches; Chennai and Vijayawada.




FeS. Ban & Cu.

Continuation Sheet

Material Uncertainty Related 1o Going Concern

i

W drgee atbontion be Moke 20 of the standalone financial statements, which indicabes that
e Comnpany imeurred a net loss of s, 22 A8 48574 thousands during the year ended
March 3, 2022 and has acoumalated losses amounting te Rs, 1210688542 thousands, as
of that date, which has eroded substanlinl portion of its net worth. These conditions
indicate thal a malerial uncerlainly exists that may cast sigmificant doubt on Company's
ahility Lo continue us a going concere However, as stated i the nole, the Company s I
e provess of raising addifienal funds as necessary o operale as o gpoing concer.
Accordingly, the standalone financial slalements have been prepared under gofng
COTNCETT assumpiion

Char apinton 18 not modified in respect of this maller,

Kev Audil Mallers

.

Koy audit matters are those matters thal, in oor professional judement, were of most
sigmificanice in our audit of the standalone lnancial statemments of the corrent period.
These matters were addressed 0 e context of our audit of the standalone financial
slatements as a whele, and in lorming our opingon thereon, and we do nol provide a
separaty opinion on Ehese matters,

Koy Aundit Matters How the maller was addressed in o
| Audil

Impairment Assessment of Inveatment | Qo awdil  procedures bt ossess

in whully vwned Subsidiary: appropriatensss  of  impaimenl  Lesl

includes, but owere ot limited oo the

follosin g

The investment in the subsidiary is
recorded 2t coat and  is tested  for
irnpairment annually. On arch 3, 2023,

hwvestment in subsidiary amouwnts o Rs,
1,27, 85,872.5a thousends (Previous vear
March 31, 2021 Rsl37BRO7LEA
thousands) againat which otal allosvance

of Kz 1,14,2752938 thousands (&l
PFrevicus vear March 21, 20Z1: Rs.
8994 M6o%  thousands)  was made

lowards impairment m the boole of
ZCCOUE,

Ihe annual impairment testine of value
of investment in  the subsidiary is
considered to be a key andit matter due

1o the materialily of investment for the
Corapany and the fact that process and
methodelogy . for assessing and
determining the recoverable amowl of
mmvestment based om complex
agsumplions, that by their noture imply
the use of management’s judgement, in
particular with reference to identification
of impairment indicators.

»  Verified the design, implementalion and |

operating effuclivensass of kevy internal
controls over approval, recording and
monitorimg of Impaivmant of Invesimen)
in subsldioey

o Fralnaled the approprialeness of the
assumptions comsidered amd key inpuls
usecl in the assessment of impatrment.

« Verilied  completencss,  arithmetical
avturacy and validity of the data used in
he impadrment assessment.

o Asgessed the pocuracy of the impairment

lows and evaluatad the adequacy of the
clisclosures m the standalone financial
stat=rmanis,

Page 2 of 14




BS. Rao & Co Clonrinuacion Shest. ...

Information Other than the Standalone Tinancial Statements and Auditor's Repaorl thereon

£

7 The Company’s Board of Direckors is responsible for the ather indormation. The other
mformation comprises the information incloded in the Annual Report, but does not
mclude the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual
Heport is expecied Lo be made available toous after the dabe of this acditor's report,

Chur opinden on the skndalone financial statements does nel cover the ol indormaetion
and we do not express any form of asaorance conclusion thereoen.

In commecton swith oo andit ol the standalone il statements, our responsibi lity is
to read Lhe ather indormation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
su, congider whether the other information is materially inconsislent with the standalone
tinancial statements or our knowledge obtzined in the audil or otherwise appears to be
materially misatated.

When we read the Asumal RBeport, if we comclude that there is a material misstatement
Hlerein, wo dare ICL]IHEEJ tor commumnicate the matker f thinss -:]u-rg-::-u_‘] vl UV ETTIAICE,

Responsibililies of Management and Those Charged with Governance Tor Lhe Standalone
financial statements:

& The Company's Board of Divectors are responsible for the mallers stated in sechon 13445
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalome fooncial statements that
give a troe and fair view al the (pancial pesition, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, chanees in equity und cash Aows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles senerally accepled in India This
responsibility also mcludes maintenance of adequate accnunling records in accerdance
with the provisions of the Act for saleguarding ol the assels u.[ e Company and for
preventing and detecting Travds and other irregularilies: selecion and application of
appropriale accounling policies: making judements and estimates that are reasonable ancd
prudent; and design, mnplementation and mamtenance of adequate internal linmwial
conteals, that were eperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and prosentubion of the standalone
finarwial shatements thal give a ue and loir view and are free from malerial
miastat=ment, whelher clue o lraud or crroor,

% In preparing the standalome financial statements, Management and the Board of Directors
are responsible for assessing the Company's abilily Lo continue as o geing concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters relaled 1o going concern and using the going concern
hasis of accaunting unless the Board of Dircctors either intends to liguidate the Company
or [0 coase oporalions, or has no realistic alternative but o do s,

13 The Hoard ol Directors are alse responsible for oversesing the Company's financial
rEpnrling process,

,ﬁa‘
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k.S Bao & Co, Conbmuation Sheet.......,

Anditor's Kesponsibilitics for the Audit of the standalone financial stalements

11, Our vhjechves are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the standalone financial
staterments as a whole are free from maleeial misstatement, whether due ta frand or errar,
and to issue an anditer's reporl thal ncludes our opinion. Reasonahle assurance is a high
levvel al assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted inaccordance with 5
will alwavs debect o material misstaterent when it exiala. Misslaloments can arise from
frived vr error and zre congidered matervial if, individ ually or in the ugurepate, they could
ressunably be expected 1o inflirence the econcmic decisions of users taken on the basis ¢f
theae standalone linancial statements,

12

As parl of an audit in accordance with S4s, we exercise professiomal pudgememt and
runtain professional scepliciam throughout the audil, Wi also:

»  Tdentify and assess the risks ol material misstaterment of the standalone financial
stutements, whether doe to fraud or errar, design and perform audit procedures
responsive b those rides, and obtain ard? evidence thal s sofficient and
appropriale o provide a basts lor our epinion The risk of not detecting a malerial
misstabarnent resulting from Traud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
traud may nwvelve collusion, forgery, intentional cmissions, misrepresentations,
ar awerride of mbernal control.

«  Dbiain an understinding of mbernal control relevant o the aodil in order o
design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the cireumstances, Under section
14321} of the Act, we are also reaponsible for ex pressing cur vpinien on whether
the Company hos adequate mternal financial comtrals system wilh reference bo
standalone nancial slalements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of arcounting palicios vsed and the reasonableness
ol accounting cstimates and related disclosures made by management,

«  Conclude on the appropriabeness of management’s use of the poing concern basis
irf accounting and, based on the awdil evidence obbained, whather a material
uncertainty exists related to events ar conclilions Haal miny it :-:i;._fnih::imt dombe
o e Cormprany’s abiliby to comtinue as a going concern, I we conclude that a
material uncerlainly exisls, we are regquired to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financtal statements or, if such
cisclosures are inadequate, o modify our apinion, Ouwe Opinion 1s based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repert, However, ubure
events or conditions may Sause e Company to cesse to continue as a going
CUTICETT.

#* Evaluate the overall presentation, strochoee and content of the stndalone
linancial stabcments, incloding the disclosures, and whather the stdalon
Hinancial staterments represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.
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E.5 Ban & Co., Continuation Sheer.....

13 Matertality is the magnitude ol misslalements in the standalone financial statements thal,
individually or in agpregate, maokes 1t probable that the economic cecisions of o
reasanably knowledgeable wser of the staindalone financial statements may be nfluenced.
We consider quanbitative materialiny and gualitative Tactors in (1) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the resulls of our work; and {1} o evaluate the effect af
any identified misstatements in the standalone founcal statements.

14, We comnmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the plantued scope and Hming of the andit and significant awdil Indings, incdudine any
significant deficiencies in internal contral hat we iedentily during cur audit.

1% We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and & communicate with
them all relationships and olher matters that may reasonably be thought o bear an our
independence, and whene applicable, related safeyuards.

1 Froen the mallers corununicabed with those charged with goverpance, we delermine
those mallers that were of most sipnificance in the andil of he stndalone Anancial
slatements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matbers in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes peblic disclosure
about the matter or when, in exireinely rare cronmstances, we determing thal & matler
should not be communicated in our report becanse the adverse consequences of doing so
would  measonably be expected to ouhweigh the public interest benefits of such
cormunicabion,

Oher MatHers:

17. The audit of Standalone financial stalement Loz the vear ended March 31, 2021, inclisded
in the Standalone financial Slatement was carzied out by the predecessor audilar, who
have ex pressed womodiied spinion vide their audit report dated |une 24, 2021, whose
report has been frmished to us and which has been relied upon by us, for the purpose of
o guelit of the Standalene Financial Statement.

Report on Other Legal and Regulalory Requirements

T8, Ag required by Sec [97016) of the Act, wu report that the {.'fnl'nl'.uan}' has paicd remunerabon
Lo fts directors during the vear in accordaree with Lhe provisions of and hmits Taid dewn
under secton 197 read with schedule Y Lo e At

149, As required by the Companies {Awditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Crolor™), issued by
the Central Government of India in berms of sub secltion (11} of sccbon 143 of the
Commpanies Act, 2T, we give in "Appendiv - A" a slalement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, o the extend applicable.

20, As reguired by Section 113(3) of the Act, we report that:

ay  Woe have sought and except for the posaible effects al the mallers described in the

4

lsasis for Qualilied Qpiion paragraph, obtuined all the information and explanations

o

1 cnarfesed |
| = | Bpountants) * |
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Fo5 Raer i Co, Contisieaticn Sheet

b}

il
&

d}

£l

wehich to the best of our knowledge and beliof seere nocessary fur the purposes of our
andit of the standalene fAnancial skakernannts.

Except for the mallers described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph
spedified above, proper books of account as required by law Live been kaept by the
Company so far as it appears from onr examination of thoes ooks

Except for the matters described in the Basis of Cualified Opinion paragraph
sprecibicd abewve, The aforesaid standalone financial statements deall with by s
report are in agrecment with the boeels of accoant.

Except fur the matters described in the Hasis of Qualified Opidon paragraph
specilicd above, Inenr epinion, the aforesaid standzlone financial stalements comply
writh the Accounting Standards specificd under Seebon 183 of the Act read with 1he
Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The malter describoed in Basis for Qualificd Opindon section and Material Uncer Lainly
Related to Going Concern seclion of our repord, i our opinion, may have an adverse
effuct on the functioning of the Conpany,

O the basis ol the writlen representations received frim the directors as on March
A1, 2022 taken on racord by the Board of Divectors, nome of the directors is
clisqualified as on March 31, 2122 frivn being appointed as a direclor i terms of
Section TR2) of the Aol

With respoct to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with refermee to
slandalone nancial stabements of the Company and the aperating elleclivencss of
auch controls, refer o our separate report in "Appendic-BT. Cur report expresses an
unmodified opinion o the adequacy and operating ellectivencss of the Company's
iniernal francial controls with reference to standalome financial slabzmenis.

With respect to the other malters 10 be ncluded mothe Auditor's Repmt in
aocordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Aodit and Auditors) Rules, 2004, m our
apinicn and to the best of cur information and according 12 the explanalions given
o ous;

L The Company does not have any pending [itigations which would impact 15
financial posilion in ils as al March 21, 2022;

i The Company did not have any leng-term conlracls including derivabve
conlracts for which there woere any material foresseable [nsaes;

1. There were no amounts which svere reqpitived Lo b translerred o e Investor
Bducalion and Protecion Tund by the Company.
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i,

Continuation Shaet

The Matagernent has represented that, to the best of ils knowlodee and
belfef, no hunds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either (rom
burrowed funds or seourifies premiom or any ofber svurces or kind of
{unds) by the Company to or in any persans or entities, including foreisn
entities [ the inlermedianes”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing ar otherwise, that the inlermediary shall, whether, directly ar
wulirectly lend or invest in other persons or enliios identified inany
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company [the Ullimabe
Beneficiaries’] or provide any guaranlee, securiky or the like on behalf the
Lltirmate Beneficiariaes.

The Managemenl has represented that to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no fands have been received by the Company from any persons ar
ciobiies, ncluding foreign entities (“the bunding Parlics™), with the
underslanding, whoether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether direclly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
porsons or entibes identified in any manner whalsoover by or o behalf of
the Funding Party {Ulbmate Geneficiariea”y or provide any guuranbey,
secrily ar the like on bobadl of the Ulbmate Beneficiavies; and

Bosod vn such audit procedores performed as considered reasonable and
apprepriate in the crcumstances, nothing has come to our altention that
causes us to believe that the managemenl mepresentations under suls-
clanscs (2] and (B) above contain any material misslaloment.

v. The Company has nol declared any dividend during the vear. Accordingly,

ulisclowure under this clavss is not applicahle,

Place: Bengalur

Draic: May 30, 2022

For K.5. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
AT Firm Registralion Mo 0021085

W

Hitesh Kumar PP

FPartmer

Miembership Mo 2535753
LI 222337344 WY CL 3074

YOl

; .;J.?‘—"'* £y

o P
Charkered

|. # | Bpcauntantsy = .l
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k.5 Hao & Co., Camtinuation sheet,,, L

Appendix - A o the Independent Auditors” Repaort

The Appendix referred o in Independent Audilors’ Report to the members of the Campany
om tne alandalone linancial stabements for the vear ended March 31, 2022, we report that:

i1} In respect of Property, Plant and Eguipment and Intangible Assets:

{a) According to the informabon and explanations given 1o us and on the basts of our
examination ol our recosds of Hw Company, the Company docs nol have
Croperty, plant and equipment. Therclare, the provisions of paragraph 3 (i) (a) of
the Qirdder arc not applicabli to the Company.

(b Accerding to the information and ex planaions given to us and on the basis of oue
examination of tur records of the Company, the Company does not have
Froperty, plant and equipment. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3 {i) (b} of
the Crder are not applicable 1o the Company,

{r] According o the information and explanations piven 1o us, tere are no
mnmovahle properties, and accordingly, the requirements ender Paragraph i)
af the Order are not applicable to the Company,

idy According to the nformation and cxplonations given ta us and on the basis of cur
exiwnination of our records of the Company, the Company does nof have
Property, plant and equipment. Therafore, the provisions of paragraph 3 () (d) of
the Crder are nalapplicable 1o the Company.

¢ Mo proceedings has been initiated daring the yvear or ave pending arunst the as
at Mareh 31, 2022 for hodding any benamd property under the Benami ransacions
[Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (as amended in 20148) and rules made therennder.

(i (al The Company is Mon-Banking Financial Company (WEFC) - Non-Tenasil taking
- Swslermabically  Important- Core Investment  Company (NBFC-IWND-S-CTC
Accardingly, il does nol hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, Lthe provisions
stabed in paragraph 3i{) of the Ovder ave not applicable t the Company.

(b} As per the fnlarmation ad explanations provided to us, 1he Company has not
tuken any working capital loan by providing security on current assets, Accordingly,
disclosure under this clanse ts not applicable.

il According to the information aind explanalions given to us, the Company has nol
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, firm, Limited Liability
Fartnership or other parties Ested in the register maintained under section 159 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Accordingly, clauses from (i) (2] to (iii] {0 al
paragraph 2 of the Order 15 not applicable to the Compary

i @}"\ -
] f Charlered Y [
| * \-'IE\MT :|n|::
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k.5 Kao & Cao., Comtmuation Sheet.. .,

vl [noour opmden and according @ the information and explanalions given o us, the
Company has nol cither directly or indirectly, pranted any loan to any of ils dircctors
or to any other persan in whom the direclor is interested, in accordance with the
provisions of section 185 of the Act, The Company has camplicd with Section 188(1)
af the Acl in relation to investrent made by the Company. The remaining provisions
related b Section 186 of the Act do nel apply o e Company as it is an W BEC

vl According Lo the information and explanations given toous, the Company hus not
accepied deposils and does nol beve any unclaimed deposits within the meaning al
Zoction 73 ba Yi of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
as amended), Avcordimgly, the provisioms of the clause 3 [v) of the Order are not

applicahla,

il The mainlenance of cost records has not been specified by the Ceniral Government
under section T45(1) of the fct for the business acivities camied out by the Compaiy,
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable

Lo e Company.

ivii] Inrespect of statutory dues:

fa) According g the records of the Company, the Company is gencrally regular in
deposiling widis puled statutory dues payable moluding Provident Fund, Emplovecs'
State Tmsurance, Income Uax, Goods and Scevices Tax, and Cess and other matorial
statutory dues as applicable to the Company wilh e appropriste authoribes.
According Lo he mdormabon and explanations given o us, no andispuioed amounts
pavable in respect of Provident Fund, Employewes’ State Trmrrance Tncome Tax, Goads
arnd Services Tax, and Cess were inarrears as al March 31, 2022 for a period of more
tran six months from the date they became payvahble.

(k) According b the infarmation and explanalions given b us, there are no does in
respoct of moecme tax, sales tax, service tax, value added Lax, goods and service tax,
custams dauly, excse duty, cess which have not been depostted on account of dispuie,

(witl} There wers no fransactions relating (o previously wareconded incoms that have been
sufrendered or disclosed as moome during the vear in the fax assessments under the
Income 'Tax Act, 1941,

(1]

[y Lo Chur upinion and according to the informalion and explanallon provided
us, the Coampany did not have any ontstanding dues to debenture holdors
during the year. The Company does nel have iy loans or borrowings from
arty [inancial institutions, banks, povernments rluring the yeat,

b1 According b the information and explanalions provided to us, the company

hias not boen declared wilful defaultar by any bank or financial instbetion or
nther lender;
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K5 Rawn & Ca,, Contnuation Sheet.. .
(e} The Coanpany has applicd the loans for which the leans were obtained.

() Cnan everall examination of standalone linancial statements of the Compa Ty,
the Company has not radsed any funds on shorl-lerm basis, Accordingly,
repothng under clause is not applicable for the Company,

iel The Company has not raised any funds from any entily or person on acoount
of ar o meet the obligations of its substdiary company or ils assodate

Company. Accordingly, reporting under this cJlause not applicabla,

iff The Company has nol raised any Ioans durmg the vear on the pledge of
securibies held inits subsidiary or associate company. Accovdingly, reporting
under s clinse s not applicable.

L da) According b the information and explanalions given by the management, the
Llompany has not rassed moneys by way of initial public olier or further public offer
wr debt instruments or teem loans and hence the reporting nmder clause 3 [ i) 15 nust

applicable

(b} During the vear, the Company has not made anv prelemcitial allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionadly) and henee

teporting under clause B3{x) b} of the Order is not applicable

izt) {a) Based upon the audil procedures performd for the purpose of reperting the toe
ad fodr view of the standalone Anancial statements and accordimg to the informalion
and explanations given by the management, we report thal o Lsaud by the Company
wr 0o frand on the Company by the officers and emplovees of the Company Tus been

noliced or reported during the period

(B} Mo report under sub-seclion {12) of sechon 145 of the Companies Act bus been
il in Form ADIT-2 25 presovibed under rule 13 of Comapanies (Audit and Auditors)
Fules, 2014 wilh the Central Government, during the vear and upto the datzs of this

renerk

i) I our opinion and according to the information and explanalions given to us, the

Company s nota hidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of claose 3(xii} of the
order are net applicable to the Company and henee not commented upon.

i) According to the information and explanations given by the management,
ransactions wilth the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes b the standzlone financial statements, as reuired by the applicable accounting
standards,
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E.5. Koo & Co., Contineeationy Rhect,

(xiv) Awcording to the information and explanations given o us and on an ‘overall
exicndtalion of the books of acoount:

ay In our opinicn the Company has an adequate internal aundit system
communensurate with the size and the natare of its business,

By We have consicdered, te intermal audit reports for the year under audit, issusd
to the Crompany during the vear amd (1 dale, in determininy the naturs,

trrdngs and extent of our andit procedores.

vy Acwording o the information and explanalions given to us and based on cur
carnitibion of the records of the Company, the Company has nol enlered into non-
cash ransaclions with directors or persons connected with him as referred 1o in
section 192 of companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not
applicable

[xvi} (a} The Comipany is required o and has been registered under sechon 45 14 of the
Boescrve Bank of India Act, 1954 as NBRC- 1510100

() The Company has nol concducled any Non-Banking Finandal or Tlousing Finance
activities without ohtaining a valid Col from the Reserve Bank of India s per the
Fesarqe Bank of India Act 1934

fe] The Company is a Systematically Important Corve lnvestment Company [*S1-
L7 Honwewer, as mentioned monote 3d (11 of the stendalone financial slatomonls
Ehe asset size of the Company is below the speeificd limit as on March 31, 2022 due 10

Hur npaarment acommed for inveatment in Associale Cornpany,

id} Arcording o the inlormation and explanation provided fo ns the Company has

only une Cove Investment Company.

{wii} The Company has incureeed cash losses of Bs 31516293 thousands during the
financial year covered by our audit and in the Inumediately Onancial vear amounting
Loy Ba, 2,723,847 74 thousands.

{xviit] There has been resignation ol statulory awdiloss during the year as they reached
maximum lmit for number of andits to be andertaken in corrent veat,

izix] OCmn the basis of the financial ratics, ageing and cxpected dates of realisation of
Lirvaru bl ussels and payvment of finamcial Habilities, other infarmation accompany ing
the standalene financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Divectars and
Management plans and based on aur examination ol the evidenwe supperting the
assumptions, the matter specitied in Material Lhneertaingy Relaled (o Going Concern
paragraph of our report, has causcs us to believe that there 15 a material unceriainty

|'“M'I"T.l Yy
{:|I:| aeg Y
i Aﬁﬁﬁl:lryif

U

a5 on the date of the andit report indicating thal Company is not capable of meeting
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K8, Rao & Co.. Continuation Sheel ..

its liahilities existing at the dale ol balanee sheet as and when they fall due within a

period of one year from the balance sheel dake,

(xx) (3] The provision of Cerporale Social Responsibility s not applicable for the
Company. Acopvdingly, disclosure under clanse 3 (xx) (a) is not applicable for the
Company .,

{b) There are no ongoing projects, heses reporting ander this clanse is not applicahle.

{xx1)  The reporting inder clavae 5oy is not applicable in respect of aodit of stondalone
linancial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been fncluded in
respect of said clause under this report

For K.5, Rao & Co.,
Charterod Accountants
WAL Firm Registration No: 0031085

¥

g

Hiteah Kumar P

Partmer
Place: Bengalura Wlembership Mo, 233734
ate: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 2223373 ATWY CLUHI7
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K8 Ran & Cao.. Conrinuarion Sheer. ...

eport on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Wi have audited the mternal financial controls over linancial roporting of Jana Capital
Limited [ he Company™] as of March 31, 2022 in comjunction svith our awdil of e shandalone
Financial statements al the Company Lor the pear ended on that date,

Managements Responsibility for Internal Financial Contreols

The Company's managemenl is pesponsible lor establishing und maintaining internal
fimancial controls based om the internal control over linancial reposling criteria established by
the Company considering the essental compomenits of intsrnal conteol staled in e Guidance
satean Audil of Internal Finencial Controls over Dimancdal Reporting issued by the Instituie
uf Chartered Accountants af India (1AL, These rosponsibilifies nclude the design,
anplementubion and maintenance of adequate interral financial conlrols that were operating
effectively tor cnsuring the orderly and efficient conduet of its business, including adberence
by comipany's policies, the saleguarding of its asscls, the prevention and detecHon of frawds
and ermns, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting rocords, and the timely
proparabon of reliable fmancial mformation, a= required under the Companies Aok, 2015,

Auditor's Reaponsibility

Clur regponsibality 18 to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financizl reporting based on owr audil. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Cuidance Mote on Audit of Tnternal Financial Conleels Over Finandal Reporting {the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Anditng, fssued by 1CALD aind decmed to boe
prescribed under section 143710) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 1o an
audit of internal financial controls, bolh applicable W oan audit of Internal Financial Contrals
and, both msued by the Institube of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the
Guidance Nole requure that we comply with ethical requirernents and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adegquate internal financial contrals over
financial reporting was established and maintained and I such conlrols operabed effectvely
i all material respecks.

Car audil invelves perlorming procedures bo obkiin sudit evidence abort the adequacy of the
internal Anancial controls syatem over linancial reporting and their vperating effectivenass.
Oy it of miernal financial controla over financial reporting included obtaireng an
wiwderslancling o inbernal Gnancial controls over fnancial veporting, assessing the risk thal o
matarial weakness exisls, anc tosling wod cvaluating the destym smd operating effectiveneas
uf mbternal conbrol based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditn's
judgment, mcluding the assessment of the risks of materizl misatatement ol e standalone

Financial statemenis, whother due to froud or ermer,

We beligve that the audit evidence we have oblained is sullicicnl and appropriake to provide
a basis Tor our uudit opinion on the Company's internal financial conleols systom over
linarcial reporting,
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E.5 Rao & Co, Continnation Sheet........

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s miernal Bnancizl combrol over financial reporling is a process Jdesipmed b
pravide reaserable assurance reparding the reliahiliy of financial reporling and the
preparation of standalene Hoancial slaleinenls for cxbernal purposes in accordance wilh
genwrally avcepted accotmting principles, A company’s internal fnancial control over
linancial seporling incindes those polictes and procedures that (1) pertain o the maintenance
of records that, in reascoable dekal, accurately and farrly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2] provide reasonable assurance that transactons
are recorded s peccssary bo permit preparation of standalone (inancial statemoents in
accordance with generally accepted accountng princples, and that receipts and expendiluses
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorsatons of managament and
direclors of the company; and () provide reasonable assurance regirding prevention or
limely detection of wauthonsed acguisibion, use, or disposition of te company’s assets that
conld have a material ellect on the standalone financial stebements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Confrols over Financial Reporting

lecauae of the inherenl limilations of iskernal financial controls over financial reporling,
irwloding the possibility of collusion or impraper management overeide of controls, material
mdsslalements due o errer or frend may ocear and not be detected, Also, projeclions of any
evaluation of the internal [nancial contrels over fnsncial reporting g futore periods ane
subject b the risk that the internal linancial control over financial reporting may becoms
adeguate bocause of changes in comditioms, or that the degree of cemplimwee with the
palicies or procedures may deteriorate,

Chpiniom
In aur opindon, the Company has, moall matenal respects, an adequate internal linancial
Contrel system aver Financial reporting and such internal Arancial contrels over financial

reporbing were operating effectively as at March 21, 2022, based of the internal control owver
Hinancial reporting criteris established by the Institute of Chartered Accanntants of Inclia

For K.5. Bao & Ci,
Charlered Accountants
TCAT Firm Eepistration Mo DO3L095

X

W

ITitesh Komar P

Fartmer
Flace: Bengaluru Mlembershap Moo 253705
Diate: hay 30, 2022 LI 22232734 ATWNYC 407
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Particulars

AL5ETS

Financial Assets

Lask and cash coulvaient

Bank Balaros othie thar oa) zhinue
Irwastmes

[Fhire financial assets

Mon- Financial Assets
Carrent Tax Assots
Other Hen Financial Assats

Total Assets

LEABILITIES AMD: EQLATY

LIABILITIES

Financlal Liahilitles

Trade Payaldss
1) total aurstarding dues of misen
ertemnses and small entorpeiscs
(0 botal autstana g Jdues oF creditons
shher tham micra eaterpitses ard swall
unibErprises

Rabi securities

Ather finaacml biakalties

Hezi=Fhnamcial Liabilities
Atk aon-firamea, dzhilibes

EQUITY

Equity shane cadlzal

ather couity

Tatal Liabilities and Equity

Sammany oF slanificant accounting polcies

JAMA CAPITAL LIMITED

CIN; LE7100EAZ015PLCOT 43R
2nd Flear, Mo, &0, 5th Cross, 4th Main, Maruthi Extension Bangalore S&0021
(Al amounts are nupess In tholsands, Unlees of ssrwie datad]
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2012

Ser arcnmpanyirg rabes o the stardalars financlal statements

A5 [ aur ropart ar ayen date
K.5. Raa & Ca.,

Chartered Accounianils

Firm Revdstration bo,: D031 (195

s

Hitesh Eumar P
Paraer
teabersnip ko 233734
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Flace: Bengalury
Drates Maw 30, 2022

(R, In thousands)

AL at AL ak
Hate 31 March 2022 31 March 3021
ik 1206654 Adi &S
111} T4k 7.4
4 21,851,442 57 47,94 T8k 7B
5 17664 0% .04
12.01 r2.in
7 246.35 27190
23.62,011.97 47.95,605.90
& . 1,854 86
g 21,40, 606,55 18,60, 78,73
10 9,504.50 531,75
11 100.78 G4, AR
12 27,041,801 I7.041. 81
13 1,56,757.63 19,05,241. 17
13,62,011,97 47,95,405.90
1-45

Foa and Qo behal” of Dwe Board of Dreclws of

Jana Capital Lemtted
i

- ;

Rajarani .'h?ﬁmu-:harﬁ'y'
Nanagmg Drestar ane ££0
DI :GE06D559

X
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Gapalaktishnan 5
Laiet Fnareial officer
ICal Membarship He: 021753

Flare: Bropalur
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Chairman
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JaHA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIWe W67 100KATN BPLOOT G4Ep
Ind Ficor, Mo, 80, bth Cross, 460 Maln, Maiuthi Exlension Bangalore 540021
(Al amownts are rupees in thousands, unless atleneiae stated)
Standalamse Statement of Profit and Lass for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars
Hotbe

Rewatile Tiain dpwes alivns
it Interest Income
M Tatal Reveiie Trom Operatons
my b Ineene 14
I} Tozal Inceme 1480

Caponscs
17l Firaace Cosly 14
15y Enparrrment oo financial instruments 16
IHi Emplogee benelils sapenses 17
Iv¢] Dwrpreciasior ard snortizaticn
w1 CHR ewaeaditire iR
il Dbhars expepses in
¥} Tatal Expenses (1¥)
Vi Loss Arfare Fax (-1
Wi} Tax Expanse:

111 Larrens |

121 Dhefer red Tax
"I} Loss Tor e vear {8-yT}

{¥HI Other Camprehanstye oare
1A ] lgemas shat wil, ek be reclassttied 0 predit o loss

U Income Lax refating tooiterns that will mat be eeclassted to protit ar Less
Subtotal (&)
(B i leeens that will ke reclassified to prodt ar ass

Al Incomes tax relating o e bl will be reclassified to poafit ar bnss

Subtotal (I}
Crither Conrprefimisive ncome (4 = B)
Total Comprehensive Loss for tha periad (vI=Y I}
Eamings par adquity share T
Rasic IRs. |
Dilutesd (B

il
e

sammary of slemifreant acceunilng policies
The ’lrrﬂmf-‘f'-"r!.'il'rﬂ reabes S0 a0 Tikepral park af 9w Mhandial slatarssls

0S5 DT QUF TOPHT o 2w date

K.5. Rao & Co., Jana Capltal Limited
Chartersd ACcoiinianls il
Firm Resistration Ho.; 031055 | |'Ii | .
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kj 3 Managing Dif petar and L0
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Hartrer
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Fiace: Boraalied
Drates: oy 30 3022

Place: Gengalur:
Date! May 30, 2022

e ared an hekald af thie Boare or irectors of

(fs. In thousands)

For the year ended  For the yvear afded

31 March 2022 51 March 2071
= 1309
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2,908.49 ERLERT
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JaMA CAPTAL LINTED
CIM: LG 7FO0KA 209 SPLOOTI450
inel Floer, Mo, 80, 501 Cross, 4th Main, Maruthi Extension Bangalore 580021
(Al amounts are rupees in thousands, unlass atherwie stabed)
Stanclalape Slatement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 tharch 2022

Bs, In thaesands)

Particulars Far the yaar endad For thie year snded
51 march 2012 31 March 2021
Cash flaw from aparating activities
Lass [ the vedn LT |26, 060, 6457, 20
Acjuskmierts far
lirgawrmenl s an Tirzmcial rskrumseets i B R 13,36, 80521
Firance cost 1,08, 556G IS | L
Operating Loss before working capital changes and adjustments (4,506, 18] (9,350,652
Changes i warking capital
IDEcrease] £ Incranse i pavaboes 11,554 34 1.5%1.84
|Decragse| © lppcreasa albar Poarcial liabailas 90 24570
[Decrease] ¢ Increase B other man-Tinanclal Habidicies {=43_10 624, B
Decraases Jncrease] in pcher kank halances 14,08
Necroased noresse] Inodher finencial assets 32.1% {190,004
Decrease! {nciesse] in echer Hon Gnarcial assets PRI {5, 70
Cash used in operations before adjusiments 20,93 (F,ID-I:IE
Taxos paid 4 1201
Mek cash flows fram (used inp oparating ackrities [4) = L] 17, 212,09
Cash Maow from Investing activities
bvestment in subksicany E o
Mat cash flow from ¢ [used inp iInsasting activitas |B) . X
Ca=h flovw Ireen Financing activities
mviderd pad = -
Irterest an Loan paid (FEEN ] -
Met Proceeds trom Desn seoinTies Issued - -
Mot cash flow from financing actvitios {C) {13204 B
Het increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {211,11) {7 21 2.0
Lask and cash eguivalerts at the beginomg of the year 337.67 7,549, 76
Lask and casn equivalznts at tho ond af The year 116,56 337 AT
Cash and cash cqumvalents comprisc
Blarsies with banks
n current Areonks 126.54 AXT T
Total cash and bank balarices at end of the year 126,56 137.67
|'r:..' J e




JioHA CAPITAL LEMITED
Cib: LeTI00KAZO SPLODTS4ER
Ind Floee, He. 80, Sth {ross, 4th Main, Maruthi Extensian Bangalore 60031
A aaunts are Fupees i thedzands, unfess othersise stated)
Standalone Statement af Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2072

Rs. In thousands)

Recenciliation of Habilites fram financing acthites

For the yeoar endad For tha year anded
‘Particulars ] 31 Merch 2032 34 March 1021 |
Dpening Balances 15,40, 00233 15,95, 4
arrmsians e e 0.0 a.0n
| Bonisiis 1e-paid 0.0 a.00
{Interest accruad 1,068,556, 74 7.0 480,77
Irterest pad 237 0.0c
Clasing balances 21,48, 406,55 18,60,2837.13
Summary af signficant arrcUAsing poess
Trhe roitipany g nutes &2 an integral part af the fnancial statemeants 1-44

A5 per ave repoct ol even dabe Fer arsl on bekal® af the Boacd of irectoes of

Jama Capltal Limited
K.5. Rao B Co_,
Cohartensd Accduntants [ j
Firm Regisration Me.: 033095 H i A

A bt

Rajamani Muthuchamy

W Managing Directar anc CE0
&u DR D

Hitesh Bumar P =
Partaer ) o
Nesrhiershin Moz £1373 Ll i
b e 'I.n.ﬁdﬂ
& -,

Place: Berigaluru
sk My A0, 2007

Gopalakrishhen 5
Thief Foarcial officor
IC&] Mernbership Ho: 217835

Blace: Benpaburu
Diale: Bhyay 30, 2032

Yidya Sricharan
Lampary Secnetary
ICS! Membership Ho: Adddba



JaMA CAFTAL LIMWTED
CiW: UET100KAZO1 SPLCOT 9488
ind Floor, No. B, 5ih Cross, 4th Main, Meruthi Extension Bangalore 560021
{40l amounts are rupess in thousands, uniess otheraise stated)
Standalone Statement of Changes In Eguity for The year soded 31 Masch 2022

f) Equity Share Capical

[Ri. Ih thousandsy

Farticulars

Armont

Halance as at 0 Apr 2020 17,041.81
Charges in cquaty share capiial due bo prior perod erors -
Balamce as at 4 Apr 2020 27,041,841
Characs in equaty share captal duning the current year -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 AT .041.8
Balance as at 0% April 2021 27.041.81
Charars in pquaty share capital due o prar perad eoroes -
Balance as at 01 Apr 2021 27,041,814
Champeres an pquity share capital dursae the correat year =
H:alaru:F- &5 at 31 March W02 1T A B
B hizr 11t
- Feserves and Surpius
PRl Securitics Premiom | Statutory Roserve REMI_"EH ol
Earmings
Balance as at 01 Apr T020 1,72 54,707, 20 8,540, 77 (67,57, 746,71) 55 05 E0G 3T
Charpes n accounting poalicy of prior
el s ’ ’ )
Hastatod balanca as at 01 Apr 2020 1,83 84, 702,28 8940, 77 (b 57 746,72 56,06 B%6, 17
Total |:Ll!'| wiehansive Inoomes S JLassy far (76, D0, 557, 4] 126,00, 657,55
EFIE [T ESICRLS fear
[rvidenids
Transfer ta resained carninps |
Balarcn at at 31 March 2071 1,7 54, 700, 10 B,5940,7F (51 5R, 199, 57] 10,05 243,37
Balance as at 01 Apr 2024 1,77 54,707, 70 B,940,77 193,50, 199, A7) 7% 05, 243 37
Chanpes i accouating palicy or arar
e iod & 5 5 % -
Restated balance as at 01 Apr 2071 1,27 54, 707,10 B,940,77 (93 B 09 4T} T8 05 741,97
Total Conaieharsive Income § |Lass) farn 117,48, 485, 74) (27,48, 485 74)
e eurrerdt W
Lrividends .
Transter 10 retained Sarnings )
Balance as at 31 March T027 1,722,854, 702,78 2,040, 7% (1,241,086, B85, 41) 1,586,757 63

Sumnary ol signifaarl accounting policies

The accainpanyng notes are an integral pait of These fiancial sLalenenis
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JAHA CAPITAL LATTED:
CIM: 67 100HA DI SPLCOFI4ES
Hrul Fieear, M, 80, 51h Croees, dih Main, Maruthd Extersion Dangakors 5800210
CAll amounts are Nupees In theacisands, wless arherwise siaed]
Motes to the wanchilone Pinancial statem=nts for the year epded 31 March 2022

Lompany Oversdes

Repaorting Lty

Ihe Company was renrporabc o March 35, 2015 Gocary oo U biiness of &0 lvesurers, Company and Lo inwes, by, 5o, tmanskes, coal
ard disases of any shares, socem, debendums. whetass perpemal cif fedesinalle delsviures, sk, seconbies of sy Gowsrment, Local,
Aulhorigy, Gunds and Certilicales. The Lompany recceyed o certthcabe ot soslstmtion dared 34 Barcl 2017 Fo U Beeegos Bane of bhoa as s
Fn-Ramiirg Finamcal histilubon - Hen-Depesit waking - Sestermecally Impnartant Sore nvestnes Coonnatty | HRFD-CIC-HE-57) wrder seclion
<E A ot The Resende Bark of India At 1934

The comoary halds 1004 irsmstmonts inies whicly Sanid subsecfary coraar - Juna Holdings Lumled {the Lompary i The whally owned
submidisry compay holds <LHAL of Louity sharss 10 dana Small Finance Bank hein fee dssnciate canpsry

Ihe Board in 1ts mecting feid on Ortobes 31, 2019, sl Hovessber 17, 2019, sponoresd Past-Liack method for mergng Jara Holdioes Limithed
(4L, b Lne whelly owned Mog-Gpermating Financial Heleire Srmpao (HOPS00, witln ics Helding g well 53 Core Irsestment Company, Jans
Camital Limeted (A1) The Lempany submitted nocessory cocuments a0 Jasusey 0, 5000, soiahf S the BBl vide ey letier dalesd Crolooes
AR am) receivedl in-princple approval from the 500 on 1D asgust 2020, 45 por tho exdsHog adelives, the mogidiement of Dauirg & HOFHC
s D Chepmaeesd with by the BB Tor selurg up Smedl Minance Barks and Unteersal Baniis.

Furthar, seh o meager of the wholly caned subsidiary =salh e Holding Lompary will simpley the complianecs to e repneten 10 gabns
Repdatnry Authnrlties, kesides resolring o foser pperaling coste. The Company 15 ebgible too acopt Fast-track method ror bne marner =5
crrvisagec under Sechion 333 of the Compeedes A0, 3003 as Ui e merger of whelly owned seksidiary wath |iclarg Compams. Sumseqaent ta
thee recept of the ireprinciale apprawal trom the RS ibe Bosnd of Disectass of e rraismwer and the Tigmleree Comiosmes met en 2488
Auguel FIRC, apgrove) the Scheme of Amalgamator or Jana Folomas Umited (Whelly Dered sabrskdiey with Laa Capital Limitsd (Halding
CAmnse,

The Lompany screcd noklnes (A 90 alobs wicn the propesed S heme on Ume Regsoar of Comosrees, Kamataim sad Cfrical Licuigacer,
frrsry ol Corporale Alfairs e Lotter cated 2hin Angies INF0 seshing e olsjeclior | agpesooes W Uhe ssd scheme as requirsd andsr
el L1301 ja) of the Aot ard rules mizds thesourcer.

Trae: Coanpaaity Slmilbes] recessary applicativn o Lhe Bemornal Dinsctor, Soathekast Rogion, BIRIsEny of Corpasane A0Faiss, Hwoerahed, oo 66
Hrrecr by 020 far ahraining popeadal of dmalogmaion voer Secuon 243 of the Lompzrres Az 2014, Reglonn, [Ereckas, sty of Sompany
Attairs, Heoorabad., wice lorfer damont 2R0h fMsech 3007 rejecien] the application fred on gth Hovember 2000 tor the morger o JHL with L,
snee JHL hed obtmined corsore frem the creaiters anly B e patens of 32, T3% D i s ggarsd the mimmuem threshold of conssait from S0
cl e credites inalue s required urcer Section £33 at the Compaees Act, 2003 acal, 45 sicle U prosisions of Ssclion 23301 id} coulé aat
Ee Tully coarpiied weil

Tre Bnard o Derecrads censidersd Ter afmresdid rejecoon srder and resalved o nie Bae fresh morger applicabion subdeet fo e aopersal of
the Scheme By the Board of Slrectoes, Shasedadders, Crecilors, and 2uch other sulhorves 2s may be requirsd. in e meamshile the Snmpany
manazst o make B 100 croees [park prepaseat 200 0T paechasa of Qe HCDy from WO zemlshle, = demandad, to oo ot the crediboes
for enabling dem bo prosde MO for tes merger althaugh ERn s3%d HERS v, instoee in darch 2023 The Transieror Comperg will sock HOCs
Trimes Lhe deberlure Folders shorby, Thersadter, aftor obtaming other clearanees inneseatsfapprovals, (e Compons mapases L apprusch te
Fcalnnis et sy of Corpedate AMains, Hydersbed, again for aparosal of the momger. Past the merger, thie nesitans oy, witkh ©s 4
LI, s ot required oo maimin Her Oweed Pk,

Stovement of compliance

These finawiol skatements hgee been prepared 0 accorcarce with e Indinn Accocinbios Standards (150 ASE as per the Coarpanies (ndian
Sccoing Standards) Aules, 2015, 2 smended by the Lomparees |Indian Accauntieg Standnrds] Raes, 2006, ronrfied sider Seoticn 133 af e
Companies Act, P03 (T "800 ol relsmanl eovisions of the Act, gudelines sssucd by e Rescres Bank of India &5 appdcable woa S0y
and ot e acnolaeing EInciples generily gooepled i lidia,

fccounting polscies azav hkeen consisrently appdiad esoepd sdeiy o vevdy issued lnd 85 0n inibielly sdopbed or 2 ression tooan cxbibeg Ind A5
required & changs 1a the amxcnuntag paley hehartacin ke, The stacvileie Ticancisl slatemenls were guthosissd for ssue by the Board of
Fereciors (RGO oo dasy 0 200

Preseniation of Standslone Financial Satements

The Standalane Balarce 5neet, Statersat of Sandaione Prolil snd Loss ard Slal=ment of standalone Chaneos m Bqudty are propesed and
presorited in the format prescrocd nothe Gldasion 1ol Sciechibe 1ot e Campanies &L 2013 he “Acl'h. The Satement of Stercalone Gash
et bas been prepared and presented as por the requirements of Ind a5,

i summory G Ues sgnificent accounting: polici=s anc cther ceplarabony inprematian & 5oacsendancs wath the Sompanies (ldian Aocounting
Framdacck] Rules, T35 o specilied vider Section 151 of Le Lompames &2, 2013 ithe “A5t7 Intlecirg appicahle Indae Accounting Stackas
[bres &%) and ancannHa nrineles pevevally adcepled n bedia,

Hmarclyl oesets and ancial laklstes aoe generally repoced dosy it Che Dalopes sheel, They are only offset and reportsd a0t whe, n
ddhtion o nawing an Lrconditionz, ||:"!,.'I||:,l enrarceabkle dohe ro GFrset e sedoanised aidoeavs will ek ey cunkingsn. o 8 fubsre ceent, the
pyues glon miend o setile o met basls.

Functional and Presentation curmency
Thesn e AS Srardial Stajemens are preseied i radan Fugsss 10 Uousares (B30, whic t5 alse the Compangts hctanal suarenoy, Al
A s are raunded cfF toobhe akmeest el ek, Diless cllisiweses wudiglel,

Dasizs of reeasurement
Iz Fimariial skabemenits hoa Beer peepaeerd oo 5 esoate sl ool ek,




JAMKE CAPITAE LIMITEDR
LIN: UpMMGIHAZD4SPLEOTI4ER
2rd Floar, Mo, B, Sth Crenes, dth Msin, Maruthd Extersion Bangaiore 560021
Lasl amourts are raoees In thousanck, Linless alfieemwiss stefed)
Hotes o tha standaloine Mt ial stabemenly For the year ended 31 March 2022
1.5 Engfi'l"iulﬂ arwas al pslimalion, critecal judgments and sssumptsans in appleing s enting palices
Ihe preparaiion of firancia seafemes s da accmdance with lod A5 requires manzgement to makie judesments, estimates and assumplions st
affect e reported amount of ressves, Sapedees, assets aind liobilites, amd the sccompamang cosclesures, a5 well as The disdasae of
Lonbinger s Gallibies, The Lompary's meragemenrt belieses thal the estinalens s in preparabion o Uee inancal stascments are nrid Al
reasnninle, Acceunting estimales could changs from asmod o pcerod. Setual resnles ol Jiffes o Urese elmates. Aoprogriste charees
csEimares are made a8 Fugagement beoares dware of the chamges 1 ercumskaeees sumnandlng e estinaies, dy Ciages in the accounhing
estimates are rekem=es 1 the pariad nowhicls such dhangs i circomstare=s ars made and. iF mate s, e oo are disclosed o Lhie mrotos
Ly the fmanoal satements.

The Wey esCimles arvd assornobiors used 1 preparaton of inansal statemenrs are;
i Faor value of Hnandal Issmamsas

Thee T waloe of TPl inslramends 5 e pree frat snild e ecobead (o sl an sssel o omd o trarsrer a linmlitg 0o ardesy
frarsackinn in the princis, (o0 imosd advanlagecus) maroct ab the measnroment d21e ueder e imarkel conditions (e, 2n sk Friney
regarcless ot whethns that price & ditecily cleeveable or cetimated vsrg anoths saluatinn fechinis, wWhes e Tair wsioes of Frarci, zscs
und finanzal dsonibizs recandsd In the Balanes sheel Gl be deeived from acte markets, ey are cotcrminnd csling a varisly of Yegabon
techeroues Uk mclude the uss of waluation models, The Tjens To e snadels e Lshen from choervable markets o pesile, Dk e
Ui = ok Teasilble, eilimalion s required i oastandshing far values, Judgements aod esivaies inebode corsderatinns of Dquidite and medel
Inpuics relaced L itans,

1 Significant aocounting palicles

The Ciarparg has spphed the following oot polises mall pecdods presssted & hess ranoal stakemerts,
i, Rewenue recognttion
Tivkalena] is recirgazed wlien Lhe right to receles the dividend B eskaished,

M. Financial svsels and lisbitties

&, Flnanclal asscts
Inltlal recoanition aiul inssasiiremesn|
Exvenl fur lems ab fair value thesugh prafit e lss (FUTELY, all, fingocial assets are recogmzed weatally at Bir salin plis ar mioes ansa-ton
Lualy Lhal are divsctly ablroutable 2nd cremertal @0 the coloinationd acsuisilion of thes irancial, et

Finarcial sssets st amortrsed cost

A Tcicinl asser b5 measired ol amgrlizeg cuski” L meets both ef the fnilewera conatitians sewl is nar desised as al FYTHL

- Lhe assel s held witwin a Business medel whose objective is Lo huld assets in erder b eollest conbrackiun) eash Newsss aid

- Lthe contractsl terms of the francil ssset st dse on specifed dales o cash Floss shak arc salely powments of princial el lerest,
culerapling on e orinoipal snourt cotstanding (3P

Ater dnlfial mezsorenei, such finenoal assete are subscuersly mersasd ab Svorlized wel wing e CIR method. Amortzed cosr 15
cihndance o canshdering any distcard or peemiom on acquisibian and foes or cosks that ace an infesral gl af e EIE and reported as part of
intersst inceme in bhe Statement of Fivdic o Less The Gasses, F 509, anurey from impalrment oo recazrized 4o the Satement of Proafl or
Lrss,

Finanrial azsets st fair waiue through other comprehensive noama

A hiranciy pset s maasured ol FYOCHady i Tl messls both of the fellowdng conditinns and Is net deslanated 25 21 FYTRL:

- Lhe azset 15 9cld within a business maced 'ﬂlulEt' Hjeline s achieyvsd by both oobiectire contractunl cash Hows ard s@iing financial et
gl

- 1Fe Ceni gl Berms of the firanoel esset give se on specttind dakbes B fach flows Uhal are 5220,

Ther loss Alinmange & iecagaced in olher comprehensioc ncome and docs ot sodbce the Carrging valos ol the ficancial a=er When thi
Huzreial 2sscs b corecagaized the caomialiee gan ur less previowsly recogised Inather compeetiansive Incaome iy s lassified from egquity bn
prafil o= ioss as a reclasstieatinn sdjusrment

Firanrial assels al fair walue through profst ar Lass (FYPL)

Any rinanaal instrumens, whic does vl vl the Crileria for calegorzabon 25 ot amart2ed cest ar as FeOol, s Consiled Lo be mreasursd at
TVTHL.

In adeiucn. the Company may alse vlnct o Classy a deal issrument, whech olerwse meets amortized cost ar P90 eribers, as gl FYTRL
Horpever, wach eleclion == done a7ty iF delra <0 rediees ar elinndastes o measuiemenl o recogilon inoorsistency (refermod baas fartEinting
rarmatl™,

Oekr insrriments indpedad witten Lhe PYTEL category 2re measired at fair slue with ol cnarees veconi 2ed in profil o Loss,

Classiflealion sl subegquent measursment
nz Lampnme cessiies 1Bs Planndial assets 25 soleeceslly mugsursd sl mithes amertized enst o ol walue hosed o the busdess medel fa-
rmaraging the Brarcial asseks and the canbackund cosb Mo Cherar e by ol Ll Tinarigl gssels,

B, Finaieial Liakilities
Initial recogritian ard measurenent

Frerant dof itewrs ol lar wsioe through geofit or foss (FVTRLY, all financial tianllitles sre ez irually al fae vaue pls or mias
Eransactlon cnsts Phat aie diractly all-ioulabds and imoremertal Do the =0 of thie financial Hakilivies,

Submeguent messurement
&L finanzal Webddtes are subsequently measuored ol samarlzed cust ewcept for bnanclal lakilsies at F'.n'Tr' _,_-_|| L.gl_,:l_u'mn incuding
cerivabives that arc dakilitics are sbsecuenly measiied al (3 valus, = T e

| =
PiijA
,j(.s..:u:.f, RE):
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JaM A CAPITAL LIITED
C: LIAT1O0KA 214 SPLCOTSq0d
Arid Floor, He. 30, Sth Cross, dth Madn. Barnethd Extesslon Bangalore SANBTY
(AN ameiinls are rupesy in thousands, unless othersise statedd
Hales to the standsione financial staterments for the year eadeed 31 Marck 2077
Lerecogrition ot Hnanclal assets ard Hnancial B liries
A Minancial s Jur, where apzicabds, a part of a finanoal assct ar park sl 2 g of sinlae Ticanual sssels) is primariy corcengrezed wasn
Thee s o reCeive Caal ey from the gssel have ewpercd. or
Thee Campany bas rransfenel iy cgdis Lo receive cash fluse from the asset ar has assumee an chlgation o juy e e sivend cahy fows i
full, weitvout materiz coday se a thirs party ander @ pass-Uraagdi’ anangemenc and sither 3} the Company bas fransiemed suhstamialiy @l
L rrsis wned r=eards of the asset, o R che Campamy hes nedther ansfarred ror relaired sabetantisliy 20 the nisks ane rowerds of 1he e,
il Fias lrarsferred coreral of the asset.

On de-recogmilion of 2 firanoal asset, the diferencs hebanen b mmying amac of the assel jor Ue caring smoum allacated te the
reaTice af the asser derecognisedy and the considerston reccived finciuding any mow asseb onkamed [05s s new ligailily swsamsdy chall be
recagaired nAkatereot of Feofic o Loss,

The Cumpany deremegnizes a financial liahility when gs cantracius) sadinaioes are dacharged o cancelled, or expired.

Mogfications of Financial assets and fnencia)l Hahibites

Finaixial sl

ke oS ol q finacin, assel see megfied, Lhe Comosy evo.ozics whetner te msk flows of the madified assel aoe sietanally differem.
12 the cask Flows are sutstarcially diffeionl, Lhen e cunlracius: sihis to cach tiaws ‘ram the aidalnnl Bnastiol et are desnsl Lo hawe
cxpired. Inines casc. the coigingl financial pssed is devacugnioe] and & nees financis, asset 15 recogerzed at fair saiie adjasiead T gy eligibie
Lransschion cosks.

17 e cash Muws of the mooried ssset carned at amertizes cest are nab substanUally diflerenl, dee U oo icator does nat result In
e G T Ol U e Todeisl mspl, I Liis cass, the Company secalnuaiates the aross cadng amnov 0F U Timncial aset and recogrmzes the
amuunt artsing o 2cjisting e dioss Conrsirg aimeont as @ modiriaticn gan ar less e SkEfoment of profit ar loss,

Filnancial Tiabilities

The Compuny derewcgnizes & Fnancal baotlity when s toms e matiiad and the cash Mo of Lhe modified Lakibay are substarsiaily
dirtererit. In TS rase, a new [riial linbilily based on the modifed terms 15 recagrezed At fade wilve, The dilfersre belwesn Lhe carrang
amnunt of thz Hnaeial Hakiling extiogided 2o e e financial Fabdity weth modibed torms 15 socagntzed dvstarement of gral® o Los.

Offsetting finamcial assets and Tnanclal 2B

Flazwial assers and Tewecis lisbilities are offset and the net amoort 15 presciaed In the statemest of Tieacial pesiton when e Lompary
hies o legivd right o Gfser Che amaunts sl inkenads Lo weitle on net basis ar ba realize the asser and seftis e labilily sl dmegesly,

Fair walue messurement

Falr cealia® 15 the price Chal woodel e orsceived oo osell an smet or paid te tmarsfsr o Fabdine 9 50 aiderly Cassacton Delseen market
nariCipants 2 thi vsasirement cdaie v Ue poocipal or, niLs sheence, the most schantipoois mnrass ool e Company by acoes at
breat datie. e falr vabueof 8 Webility codlecns iey vcn-perfonmdnge ssa

When une iz available, the Campany massares e T saline of s Psiemend isleg e guoled poce moan scosye markes for that instrament, A
kel b regarded ar ‘scuve’ of bransactians for the asset oe Haklilby bk place with suflicient fregeency and solume to provide prcing
Pl ARG G Al g et

it ther 15 re quetod price Gan aolive varkel, then e Lompany usss aluation techriques that raximise the ise of televan] clasppgys
s ane mirimze e use of unrchssresioe s, The s valoalion lechnigue incorperates all or the ractars shat rarkor pasicipants
wuuld take inlu account 1 pricioe 2 trarsacton.

Provisions awl contivae ey islaled Lo claims, Hbigabon, ete.

A proeizion 13 recaanised 15, a5 0 ostst o § pest eant, the Compay bay g preseri shligation [legel or constructive that oan Be astimated
rebabiz, and it 1= prebakle that an oubtors of crorecnds Feetits w0l s ceiived wos=le the shhpebon, Provisiss arc moasured af fhe
et value al wmanagseol’s best eshmete of the ssponctiure roured B9 setble She preseot obligaton Al e erd of e reperting period.
The discount rake ceed o determine e present value 5 a pre-tae mne that aotechs curmet maraed sssessicsnns ol Lie ine slue af money
ard she rse spetitin Io the Vabiine, The icredse in e provision dus Lo the pzssase of Hime (s rooasresed 25 Trance cosl,

(nerous contracts

A roract 15 Cnnsiderad ws grerauy veown Ve eepecied sconomic kenefts b be donved b the Comoesy trem the conrack are lowser Lhan L
wravdidanie cost af mectiin, it ohiigalions viwer e cunlrgcl The proveson for am onerous contrack 15 measurnd af the et of (e e e e
cast of forminating tho coodract w0 the cxpechedd el Cosl O Condivsdey wilh Lhe cenbrect Uefore a prowmon is eskzbitsedd, the Company
TECTIVIES any impairment ioss on the asscts associzviod with tht contr

Cantlrgencias Falated tn claims=, litipstion eir,

Frivsiaian in respecl o7 lusy corddrgencess relaueg bo claime, Frgaban, assessment, Anes, penalties, eio, are s ok wis il s probabls
thak o abding 25 hieon incoeved, and U grnognl can be esamated reliably, Proasons zre socwen 21 #20h Balanee sheet dae aocl ol jusied
to retbeck the curmore assk cstimate, 0 R ne nnger peilabile el Ui cullow of rescurces wodld be required o setie the anligation, e
Erovisian 15 resersed.

Ircoisie Eadin
Incomie Las sxpensc comprises curseot ard defemed fax 1F 18 meccanizad in Cee statanan, of pedil and less exeepl Lo the exteat that o soates
L o busirese cumbinalion, or “lers resognized direetly moequezy o in arher sompeetersdse Incams




JAME CAaPITAL LIMTED
IR LATA00AZ015PLCO T dua
Ind Floor, Mo, 284, Sth Cross, dth Main, #iothl Extension Bangalors Saboz2i
{All amdnts are ropess in thausands, unbess otherstse statiad)
Hules i e standalone finaroia) statements for Thie vl sonfec] 31 March 2022

A, Currert tas
Current bast b5 measinind al she o, sspeecled o be paid 0 respect of masscne e o Une year in accordsnce wikh o cnme Tae Al
T#Gi. Luorrent bax compimacs the eepechad Lax pawelle on U taessie income tor the wear and any sdjusbment Lo e Lax payasle er recoisanle
1 rEs ULl of Ereviss vears. IE 15 mensired ising e rales engoled or substantvely cracked 2t the halamce shasg dane
Current Las assels and halibites are nrfset an i, the Compsaiy:
a) Pasa l=gally enforceable nght toosst o the rocnprieed amoonis: a0l
ek =iher L sedlle i g nel basis, or ta realtze the asset and setie the labiliee sanultan=oosoy.

bs. Dwlerred e
Ueherned Eai iz reoognized oo maspedt of lernpweary diferenoes belweor the carming amdaints of ssets g Liabelibes for trancial sopoiting
R F e A il base.
Dferrec fax assets are reviewnd af gac reoor T deie and. based on maragement's juooment, 5o rechied Lo Uie sxteat thet b is oo lorges
preballe hal Lhe related ta Boredie will Be realized; sec i reducUiore are resersed when the prahakilicg af Tt Lacable prodils impresss.

Unrecogrizad deterrod ba aancss aie rodmsesed ol wack seporung cake anc SCCORMTO o thir exlenl Ul il hes become probakble that ke
Lagabie profis will be avaliahle agairst which fhiw can e osed.

Dleived tax b megsured ab U bax rates that e cpectad toe applied W temporary iHerences when Fhisy reserss, vsicg Lay 1 8les sracted
i sibsrantively engoie 2l the balance sheet dake.

Tha measuiemenl of defered wax reflects the tr moesequerces et woudd fellow from the manner A0 which the Sompany sapecls, al L
halanre shean dare, Lopecover or seblls the carmying amoore o 105 acears and lakiliies.

The elfect of dhangss i e b mates oo defarssd G sl aw liabililies = recognised as onme 07 espeise B Die penod Lies indudes B
s el L g subslaulive erdaclnz=tt date.

Deferred tas assets and akalites ane offser aely i

) e Comparre has o Legally entorceable foht te sel of T Cuiienl Las asels agarss current tae Dabdities; anl

A e dlefenied Lo assels ard the deformod wax Bakilizies velale L ingoee Lasee bevied by the same Easatian ey,

w%.  Earning: per share
iz COmpany nresed s Basic amd diluled sarmes per sharz dara tor (s codivary shares, Bauic earmings por stam 45 calodared By diiding the
protit er less that ‘s atrnhurable to pelingsy dhareholders of the Comaany by the weiniied-average numbss o crdinary sharcs oubsidiog
dunrg the penod.
Diluted sarnings per share s d=bermdncd by adjusting Cee pralic o less Geal i atribokahbie o ardtrary shars ol o the werghted-averzgn
rimber ol codiney sheres ooslanding for the oHects ot 2l dilirise pols gal ord rary shases, cxoeat whirn B resd s are aiti-dilulise.

Wi, Cash ard cash egisivalents
Cash ard cosh aquival&s S lyde balarce with barks and e deaosts wirh g uiigrl mabonty of three menths or esse Tashoandd cash
equivalents are careed at amarrEed cask in the balanoes st

il Staternent af casly Thriws

Cash Mows are reported using the increct methond, swerely rel prodit berore tax s acjusted far the effects of Uargaclions of non-cash
Ui ma Lins, ary deferrals or accruals of past or fubae ofEvaling vasl receipls or payments and ibem of R S laled wilh Investing nr
Fazreing cash fluve, Tree cash fluws from gasrating, veansting and fieancie aclisoes of the Lompany src segresated, For 1 porpose o
presentaton in the statement of cush fuswe, Lach ond cash equivalerts incl.cle berds gosdealls e are repasable on demand and oo an
inbagral mert ar Fhe Domparg's sash maidagenmenl,

vili. Impairmert of financial assets
The Commaiy redognises hipaivmensl allosanoes for Capecoed Sredit Loss [FUL) oo all U Tinanciel sss=ls that are sor meaaeen a7 FYTRL:
£CL ame probabiley werahred stinate of fiae cece lomes Based an e staaing of the finarcigl assel to refiese ks orodit el They ans
eneeared s followes:
= Fingreidl aueply Lhal are pot credit smnsred 55 the pisgent vaies of o] cash shorthalls that see noeshde within 12 meniks aftor toe
rep i dfale,
= Finanzial mseds vl signilicant iecreass in credit risk bue non oecsy impained - as e presert salues of all cass shortesils 1t sesdy from
all nossible cefmit meers over Lhie expecied Sife of the firanelal wasst
= Fimancizh aszebs bhat wre cradit dmpalred - ae Uee dhifference betweoon the grass samycs ameint gl e preseil alue of esbmated cash
Miowws
Flitancisl gusels g Fully provded tar o weitben oft @ecbee partially weom full] when therz s mo rsssonable expectation: af reocee-me a
finaneial iset iy s enlrely ur g purbion thereot.

Pha Company aczodnts fen investoenils o subsndiary 20 cest and tests for fapatenant 51 2ach repunlog date, &L each repoening dake, the
Lormperry msszmses wistnere financal assets carvied gl gmorbized cost oz oimparred. The Hasiwcial assels are Lested foroimpairment and
ek loses are inourred f.oand ordy 1, there B abiective peidence of rrpasrment 25 3 resoll oF ane or mare esents thal uocurrad aber
Che fvival tecugnibion o the nzbne=stment §a 'Iess aaent' s il Chat loss seenl Jor swentsi kas an impass a0 Bhe estimated Tulure ces Floes
fea the net insestmerd thal can be reably eshimatzd,

ix.  Segment Repoeting

Ar gpzraing segment 15 2 samnaren of the Company Lha. =mages i bsness aonivifles fran which il nigy e=rm revenues are inoar s=penses
whise resdls are regaarly resiowesd By Bhe Cornoarg's whiel operatrs desson maker (TODAE T moks dedsers gboul resouroes o he
Ailuaied e e segment and assess ibs portormanes, and fei wdeeh discrsle francis: infarmstion s enllahle.

T
Amenk resuies that aoe reported o Ue CO0R mzbude Ttems Enat are ooty amibeiraldes 1o & segresng as wesl as those that car m;.y‘vﬂﬁ}' s .

e 1easonable basis.




JaMA CAPITAL LIMITEDR
CIH: UsF 10K A 2N SFLCOT 453
ind Fleur, Mo, 80, Sth Cross, 4th Main, Marith Extensbon Banealore SeddE1
{4l amounts are rupees in thousands, unless athersise stated)
Matas to the standaloie financial statements far the year ended 31 March 20232

(K&, In thousands)

Cash and Cash F']'milﬁ'ﬂ-!:é A5 at A ak

31 March 2022 11 March 2021
Cash pn hand - -
Gialarcos with bankes 0 curcent accouiils 126,56 33067
Tatal il 126,56 13767

Bank Balance ather than cash and cash eguivalent

Fise=l Depinsits with bank 5

Ot sank balances T4 F.44
Total athar bank balances il 7.44 T.44
Total Cash and bank halances i1y 134.00 345,11

Lash and cash equivalent s and Bare balance

Thie Coenpany Aeles cash and cash eguivalerts sed bank balanee of Bs, 126,55 tiousancs & al 31 march 2023 031 Warch 2021
Bs, 33TET thousancs), The cal and eash equivalents gre beld with bank and Tinaacial irstibtion counterperties with
aoceptacle credit ratings.

Qtksr bank balances represerts amount bald towards Debenlure sulscription acooons amaunting o ks, 744 thousands as at
3 Masch 2022 (37 sharch 20215 Bs, .24 thausards).

Far the purpase of the statement of cash lNows, cash and cash aquivalants compriss the following:

Cash and cash cquivalants
Balanres with banks;

QR CUrTert aconyats 126, 56 13767
Cash o hard - -
Sub Tatal 126,54 13767
Lesic Bank mverclratts () _
Tutal 116.56 137,67

The Lampary has rat taken bank averdal, therafors the cash ard cash equivalart T skalernent of cash L 15 same as
cashand for cash eguivalent givea alsvie,

e
AL UALE S
i e X
e L5 b5
o 3 f b
i o Gharl#12d ot b E.r'lr.-r

il
[ ‘.I'_,“.-\.a._
- o

AR TR T i " |
': H""‘- i o -"-I ":‘1..-' -""‘—-—-—/"a‘- =
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4 Inwestments

Jaks CARMTAL LIMITED
CIM: LT 0E 200 SPLCOT RS
2l Floaa, Mo, 00, 55k Cross, 410 Malis, Maeathi Extersion Bangakore 520077
IA1l amoisnts are Ppees e thnusands, unless ctherwise s2aked)
Motes 1o the stancalors financial statements Do Lhe year anded 31 March 203 %

=, Im thousancs|

Az at 31 March, 203% b st 31 March Zo2d
Ak Fair Value AL Fair Valie
Particukars amortised post | o1 esth Cebeer Through Frofttar! - Amertied cost | 107080 Dfer Thrsah Profit
Commprehorsivie Comprenensiy
Larun o Lo
Income W | e
| 1 2 i 4 5 | &
ECiamyy s intsmris - - |
Jad Holi B Lismibesdd (Suasiciang
Unguokad ©#ully paid-op oF B 100
EaCn| 1,078, %0 2. 40 £ 1,57,868,070 5 -
InEnl - Girdrs (4] T.37,88,9TF, 34 - 1,37 BH 972 38
(i Irremstments cufside g G z -
1Fil- Irrees Lmients 7 india TN O P - 1,37, 53,575, 30 =
Tt 13y 1,27 8B, 07236 - - 1.07,88,%72.26 | =
Less: Allowance Tor Tmpairmet oz —
wy TALET i T - &, 54, ik 54 . -
Total - Mal D= (A)-10; EEE1, #4397 - 5 47,04 7B5. 78 - -
" teragement of the Cumpany e slecied to ol e peerpion 2z pes Ind 85 10 and meaeres the iTeestment ab Dovives) (osi s prEvous HIAAR

Carrying arcunt as en bhe Ind &5 traesibon date 1=, A5 0 30T
¥ Eased on e para 12 of Ind &5 46, Boee B an chjecuse evidence of Brauiment based on the cbeorvable dasa il respect o meestneet mide Ly
Lthe pompany In ama Helfiees Liriced (AL Sased ot the Telosw membored famos:

1T Lamaary hes Mvesial in Jana cielamgs Limiced GIH § [ Wholly cwnzd subsidiang] shick s regiskersd s bon Barsing Frwnosl, Company - Mo
(yeraling Prancial Heiding Covigparsy HOFHD | and JHL hoods et ments uniy 1 Jana Hrall Finanos fack (506 ¢ che Dank s,

The Eorirg he! performed the fmpatrment test for ks mvesaments inowhally sssed sobsidiars entiey - Jana Hizlding Liimted az on March 31, 2037 arg
acoordingly Impadaren Loes kas been provdded for e senod Apel-2004 tn March 3097

li- B hay repoeted boes of M2 3,433, %37, B0 dicusands for the undi cilden March 31, 2042 due en Wer Aeaf ferden as result of whic there ind cechne
In ret worth of J=1 ey porpared b 21 8March 5004

iii. Tree farrwajue per share of HI shares for the period saded 31 March 2024 has dectiren from IMB 2,003.81 per share (31 March 01} o Bs. 8
per shane 131 Manch 208 pompeeed as e Lbosk value methad.
The canng senennd s been reduced b it fuoverable smeunt and the redition wivch s an impatrment 0% fus e recagnizes i1 the Satement
of prorit and Inss foe the period endad 11 arch 3007 as delaied bejoe.

R
Dhctlls ol St it | hEar Ao amae
March 39,2023 | March 11, 2021 | Warch 31, 2020 | March 31, 2013
Carrying '.'ulue-u'! Irrvesbment (4] 1]_..'-'5.u!-'..-:.-.',.i:|." 13 7R RTI AT L 11,70,19, 278 357 12 35 R TR T
Mo, of Shares |B] 3,800,044 ll_u'_l_u-s_1 33,80, R LRV R AL
Bk Wakiw per share (C=a08) - o 57,19 '_-..-'_:l!._":l 173,83
Fair Market ¥alug por share |} ™R 20048 2.0 07 3,830.857
linjaairmens foss per share E-C-0) 4,754, 5 | Efrrra T 10003z 34300
T Imn_alrrre 'rt_lu-:.:. .1,-1:,3_!._,1_1.3153 .43 84,105,209 1,00,13,49,311 4.0, 00,571,958 |
A= Im thouzands
Mumnber of shares Fir Value per sharo Amiaune
Particulars A5 ar A5 at A4 Al a5 ot A At &g at
fercn 30, 022 | March 31, 2021 | March 3, 2022 | March 31, F02y March 31, Warch 11,
brwestments W Equity brsh nmertts 13,50, 0 13,850,541 1,3 LO1E B[ 33,60,440.57|  47.48,765.7R

Jana Hokdings Limetesd iWholly
oo subaidiang

Unguoted {fully pald-up af Be. 100-
waih]




JaHa CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: UST100KAZOY SPLLOT 9488

Ind Floor, Ma. 80, Sth Cross, 4th Main, Maruthi Extension Bangakere SA0021
{4l amwounts are rupeas i theusands, unless otherwise stated)
Haotes to the standalone financial statements Tor the yesr ended 31 March 2073

Qther Hnancial assels
Orher Recarearles
Security Deposits
Total

Currant Tax Assals
1135 recelvable

dther Hon=financial assels
Prepaid Expansss

(A5, In thausands)

At al AL al
31 March 2002 59 march 2021
7.0 40,04
16%.30 150K
176,64 209,04
Ay al a5 at
31 Mharch 2822 9% Warch 2021
12,01 12.04
12,04 1301
fis at s at
31 tdarch 2022 31 March 2021
25, 3 27390
24k, 35 173,95
' ".':h

. A “-\{:‘
e
lr-'
L] o :_

N



Motes To The stendalone Nnancial statements far thie yaar endad 31 March 2022

Trade Pavables

JiHA CARITAL LIMITED

CIN; UaT100KA 201 SPLCOTI48E
2nd Floor, Ho. 80, Sth {ross, 4th Main, Maruthl Extension Bangabore 560021
{all amounts are rupees @ theusanck, unless otherwise stated)

(a] Total autstanding dues of micie entanpises ard small enlerprses

B] Toral autstandirg dues of Creditors

{R=, In thausands}

A5 at A5 at

31 March 20%: 31 March 2021
1, BbL Bh
1,854, Ba

Based on the infarmation availate with e Congany, thers are o outstanding ues and payinents wade ooy soaplise of
noods and serices beand the spacifizd period ander Bicm, Small ang Mecium Eqterarises Development Aok, 2006 [ D
Ackll There is ra inteiesl payable or paid taoany supolices under the saic act

Ageing schedule of trade payables

s at 39 March 2022

(Fs. In thousands)

Dutstanding fram tha due date of payment

Less than 1
yoar

1-7 yaars

=3 Yedr s

More than 3
yoars

Milcie, small and medivm esterprises

Others

Tatal

Disputad cues — MGWE

isputed durs  Uthers

—

B3, In Thousands)

Ax gl 31 March T021 l:mt:tanﬂlnn Traim the due date of payment ‘I Total
Less thar 1 1-2years | -3 years Mare than 2
b L Vears
#icro, smadl and mediur exterprises i = ] -
Dithers 1,854.54 5 . 1,544 56 |
Disauted duisss — pdSaE 3 E :
ﬂuulrd dlusms — Oihers g = : E = s =
e
!%’ﬁﬂ»@%ﬁ SRIAL
/ ‘5.:.1 Tk .Ilir 'I:J.|.| k. e
| { Chartergg :I' o %}
L e "3 x| ppunhLORE |
il rl
=y -
& A
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i)

Ic)

JAKA CAPITAL LIBITED
B Db d 1 0EA R S0/ 488
#nd Floor, Mo, 80, 5th Cross, 4th Main, Maruthi Extersion Bangalore 860021
(A kit are jdpees in thousands, unbese otherwise stated)
Hates ta tha standalone financial stabeaents Tor The year eisded 31 Barch FI2

[Rs. I Elenisancs)
Evity Share capilal

As at A at

34 March 2022 34 March 2024
Aurthicr zed * e E
Ecrlby Share Capleal (as st A1 March 30FT-Rs, 300, 00,000 36, 20,000 Eguily AC,220.00 AC L0

shages ol pa” volve of 3510 epch), Ay ab 37 Mach 2027 @ Ry 30000000
130.00,000 Equily =hares at par value of B 1G each)®

Total A0, 000 00 30,000,010
Eesizad stibscribsad anl pais up
Equiby Share Capltal jas a1 31 March 50F1-R7 7041 340 (27,0418 Eugaily 2F.0a1.8 41

shares A0 0af walue of B0 ez, s at 37 heech 2021 @ Rs 1,701 810
SET0A1 BT Egueity shares al par valoe of Bt ashi”

Tl 1?.'&._&1 27,341 B4
Heconciliation of shares cutstanding at A5 oat 31 fharch 2022 s oAb 31 March 2071
the begmndng and at the end of the
warar

Mumber of share amount Husnber of shares Aimsaurit
Curstaeding af thee Beginmiag of Lk ved EF 04,181 200471 A Frmit i
A 1ssied TS e wear = = } =
Outstanding at the and of the year IT.04, 134 AT 0181 7.0 18 1?.-;]-11_&1_

Rights, preferonices and restrictions attached b sharay

Tems! rnghts attached ta equity sharas:

Ine Compay bas only ane class or equity saa00s aoving o par walee of T 100- 2ack Fach holoe of eouiyy share & erdded 1o one= vote
[EerabiN

Thie Compuey declares amd pass dividersd on sguily staes o indign wwpses, The dividend propessd By the Paard of Diecstors s subdect
L Ui apnawal of i shareholdss in the ersaing drrml General g$ecting, swoept 17 pse ot mtedm dsdoend, The aompany has oot
declarec any denderd For the £ 7 121008,

Ir she pernb of Uqoidatton af the Campai, the holders of 2quity shaies will ke anlitied 10 jeoshve Lhe gsiely of the Coroamy. The
drstriabien w1l b A0 pioportian o e aumer of equity shaes held by Che equily slaieholders,

Details of shares held by sharchelders holding more than 5% of the aggragate shares in the Company

Hame of the sharekalder A5 at 31 March 1022 s oat 34 sarch 2021
' Humber of & :-fl'll:li.dlrli in MHumber of Sharms 5 af holiling Ik
shares the class Thow ¢ Ly
Exjidty Gharas - i T
S Hrkian Foarsdomian 1,876 453,925 11,87 746 42,927,
25 Asin ¥ 51 Fre Lid .40, =74 10,5000 5057 Th.R0E
Laiadium Ingmstment 2te. Lid N0, 5T 10,55 520,579 10 00E
Martn Hayven Frivate Coguity asz Fletiem Pee Lid 2.3 RN B.719 * 35,650 i -
QG Enlerpaizen Lid 1, #4152 h. 55 JTELORN L] i1t

s albarrad o fully paldop o eAralint pament betre received fnocash § by weay ol Docios shares.
The Company fas nee 1550 bovaes shaees of shares Tor coesideration ot thar, Cashechrag e Nive year period mimedwatsty preceding
the reparting dafe

Hame of prometcr” aa Ak 51 Marck 2y
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JAMA CARITAL LIMITED
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AFETAL LIMITED

Ind Flzos, Mo, Bi, Sth Cross, dth Waln, Barorhi Fxtension Dargalore G003 1
Al amounts oo rupeas b thousands, unless otherwise slated)
kickes ko the standalone financisl statemenss for thi yea ended 11 March 2022

34 1 Canilsl Munegement

The Company &5 a Care Investine~ Compayy T and (b5 eatiee Fyesimenl &0 Jna Halctis Limited |1
Acaardiecs wih Seclion £ -1 ol the R A 1954, and Masler Dircotion DaR (MRFC LU0 10, 14 BAMET clated dupast 25, 2044,
= regquies ba adhore b the prescrized Lapita, Reguire el acoording Lo whech the Secljistedd Wt Wlorth of = CIC shall @t no peint of

and has i upecalion of L5 oW, In

the Comps-ry
tme b loss

thi 30% ol s spursgabe risk wotahlind assels un belanoe shees and <k acjusted value of o halance sheg e—s as oo Ehe cabe of L=, scited
Ealavce sheck s af the e of Lhe francial soar, The Company has stortiall of e prescebed menmus rifaiEnenl whick 15 ab & F8% 20l Mol

3, WD iReder Hobe- 1 for fhe cuinpuiation

Thi Core Insszmenl Companmes (Kescrse Baod) Diseclans, J096, 1arthes stjsilale [Fal Lhe gutziee Wabllitios of 8 CIC-HO-S0 chal, at o il i Lime
eacesd L5 limes fis Ad|ustid vet Worth as o1 dzic of B lash aidites balance a5 2t the oo of Ul Ningecias yoar. DUAne B peaingd sadee Mot 3.
LS P it Fan been pueestiod By 190RT Slies, (Refer Moke-2 for the campulation)
The main Teason b swwtlall in the Capia. Accuiromed o onsequantly in thi Luses age %alio of the Cam Ay is e Ly rpairment of asseis of
e Durmpang on accownt of accrial of ieres o e Hon- Gt ile Debenbores ssued by Jans Auldings Umited, s wholly pwaned subsidizry, Tae
Lomany will einlkste o loaddres the snntfall i e ny necessamy shaps.

HMobe-1:
Al Cormpulslor of Caoltzl Sdecpiany Ralio [LAR)

F:il'l:h’.lﬂil ]

(B, b thuusands)

! 11-#ar-22 1 ~Mar-21 |
dulfistec Hel warth (A 1,R3, 79044 | 29,12 785.1R
Misk Weighied sssets jB) LLALETEAT AF 06, 260,70

|:.:|:||r.1| Sdoaany Raliv (C) - 800 fHE H1.15%

Bl Lomputation of Adjusted ket Worth
{As. In thoermanads|
;":ﬁ:l.‘l.ﬂrl Ed | -:jd.m-i'l I1-Mar-21
Faid Ug Louity Caplkal 17041181 3T 041 5 |
Lbhor Ecuiby 1,906,097 .63 10,05, 243,17 §
Adjusted Hel Warth 1,63,799.44 9,92,285.18 |
L) Computaticn of Risk Welshtud faeets
IFs. W thnnsands)
Flabdar-332 Ar-Mar-11
Farticidars Risk ‘Weight  [Assat Valiss IRtk Azsot Valise | Bl Yalue Rizh Axeul Value
BEEETS -
Cash am Lasy Lgren.inis il 114. 3R 117,67
Cank Dalance kb han (a) soom} o 7.44 F.dd -
InvEst s 1205 YA A4z T 13,870,447 07 44 494, 7R5.7R BT e B
Mrber gysels 100k £15,100 435,00 495,01 L5501
T'otal WELNASF] 310187797 | 475 om0 47,795,260, 7% |
Hoke-2:
&) Dulside Lrabitisss
(25, I thaiwanidde)
Parbiculars 1 -Mar-11 11-Mar-11
T Magabdin 3 1007k L5 T4
Dea] eyl e 1L RE RDE DS [ el i |
Uihe ‘inancial lanilites 5.5 513175
[ Fotal Outsice Liadailitins 11,78,212.53 15,63, 3001, /2
B)  Ouitsice Linbdlities to AdjUstad Kt Werth

Farticulars | 31-Mar-23| 31 -War-11]

| s L ites 21,0, 212.53 | 8,03, 120, 0

{Aalried Hs. works 1,83,700,44 | 24,42, 285 K

Saun of Qoeside LT e Acjusles Mot Worth 11,45 O fed

1) Asset Size Manadaine

The ssset size ol rthe cumpey COMtrucs b he Dwdorw S 300 crarss cue e ke impsrment aocrood 1od Tawsaimeer, in Amcciabe e waiy whrch 13
Permporars nonabarc. Futer, e company 5 meking @0t T s acditional runds 4 [rivemd miprs i Lhie 2esnearn rrAnpETy,

1l Disclosure of O Ralin's

| E'Hrl iy lars

31ekar-35! A -Mar-1

4l Ireestrent in .gl'.-l.|: curnganies oot of kokal =il

Asiely | ?H'.EHI ":'.'.‘h‘i_
il b menl v gy ond SO0t ol Loal i

| . E =il
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I[.L.I:“:'-.._, :
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JEHA CARTTAL LINTED
CIR: R T 201 SPLOOT I 4RA
Al Flemar, Mo, B0, 5t Cross, 4th Main, Marcthi Cxkersion Bansaers S&0021

(Al ameunts are tipees in chausands, il alhervise ttaked)
Hobes to the standalore financial statsssnts (or the year ended 31 March 5037

A5 Maturity analyss of assets and labilities Based on RBI auideines]

The Lable below shaws ar analysb Al ssmes arc daedibes ol aruorcrg bo whets ey are eapected to b oo ered o seliled,

11 fharch 20332 ¥1 terch z021
Within 12 | Afier 12 months Tatal WRhin 12 | After 17 manths Tatal
Amneks manths morths
Firancial asscts
(&) [Cadh ared Zash eguivsents 126,50 - 126.5A 3T 6T EEEEY)
B} |Bank balanoe ather than cipky 2
vasb eyancalents - 7,44 .44 - 744 ¥4
12 | Invesimors - L3070, 442,57 23051 440 u7 A7 .44, Teh. 78 7,74, 7557
Ad] |0 ey Trancis, sssots o IERHI 174 hd A0 RLEHEE .04
Total Finaieinl sty 13,30 | 23,61.619.41| P3.41,750.60 377,71 | 47.84.84z.27 | 47,0%,118.93
| i’;l‘l.-Fll‘r:ﬂE.'-al ikl
fal [Cursenl tax dsccis 3.0 - 2. 1801 1201
ibj [Cthor nan-Tiancis, gssels 246,15 240,148 373,06 = T3
"~ |Total Honrfinanoal assars 5236 | E 158, 3h 78597 - 285,97
Tatal Assets LSS 23,61,619.41 | 35,60, 0011.57 | GRIGA | A7.94,54221 | 47,95.805.50
[ | Liabilities and Coulty i ' i)
Liablitins
Finencial liabrities
da) |Papablies
Trad= pryakles
) toeal e stnding dues of ¥ + - o
MICrD STt e anad wmall
eilerprmes
171 L] wulstanding dues of S RS i 1,254.85
CrEdIred s gl LpErs miere
craomrisns and wrall
erkerprises
) |Oehe Seciiities - FLAREOGSE | 21,58,505.05 - 18,60, 782,13 TH_G0,3E1.27
jrp |[Olker ‘inanoal Uasiliries n, % RO L M 133,75 - BELT5
Total Financial labilities %.504.50 |  21,6EROE95 | 1,/B119.75 | 7 3AK.61 | 10,60.28%.23 | 18.62,670.04
Mo inarcial Hablltiem e
(2] |orher ann-Nirancial hahiliies T ¥ G734 [ RER: A5, KR
ITotal Hor-financlal liahilities 100,75 i 160, 78 549 88 5 49, 00
[Eauity |
la) | Equibe share canita; 27,045 B I7.041.41 | L7 041,01 o LIS
Ah] [ sty 1.5&.'.":“-'.-5_-:1 1.6, 7A7 63 - 0,05, 745 37 25,004,343, 37
Tonal Equity A 1,83, 750,44 | 1 4% 708 44 P 29,1z,2E5.18 | 19,50 20%.18
Trtal Linbilities ano Equity 9.605.58 | 135730039 | 23,47,011.86] 1 3849 | 47.97,56741 | 47,95,805.50
lr:-h.'.- = .:"1:"..._
frl:_:-‘ X
(e meatone)
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JAHA CARITAL LIMITED
CIH: UG7 100KAZDT SPLLDY 9488
Ind Flaor, Ho. B0, bch Cross, 4th Maiiz, Maruthi Extension Bangalore S80029
(Al amounts are rupecs in thausands, imbess therwise stated)
Hotes ta the standalene frandial slabements far the pear cnded 31 Mareh 2022

36 Schadule ta the Balance Sheel of the non-deposit taking Corsa Investment Han-Banking Finandal Compary
Jamaimbs irclpded Feren a0 baged o Coivent and preEvius year financials as aer Ind AS)
1] EXpnmures
{il Exposure ta Heal Estato Soctor
i iR Inthodsands)
Catcgory LaMar-27 ~31-Mar-11
Dl el Equosure .
Il Restoential Mo idades -
Leadding “ully secures by mortgasss oo resicensinl praperty shat s ar will -
Lt cncapied 0y e barmowser ar tiak §s senled
o Gemmencia Real Estake - - :
Lending sevured by moctpages o0 cornmercizl ceal estates (office -
Luildings. retail spaee, mdbporpese o merclal prernses, mclb-famdy
resicdential Laildirgs, multi-tenanted commencls: sieiies, ndostrial o
wWanEoEe ipace, hetels, Land acquisition, devalaament 200 cersbiuclion,
ohe, b Frposure soald also nciwde non-fund baser mits

] Investmcnits 10 Mortpage Backesl SeouritiesiMGS: and ather securitised
RIS -
A, Residentizl - -
h. Commgrcia, Rea: Eslale -
Tatal Exposure to Real Estate Soctor 3

[ii] Exposure o Capital Markeat

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-21

N A

4l Direct inwostmart o equity sharss, conversible aenes,  convertiole =
debentures ared urits of Pquity-orartad muteal funds tie corpos of wheech
15 not exclusively irvested i cnmicrate dobk:

fii Aclvarces aganss shares ¢ aonds ! debentures o athar seourtics or on -
Cedt Dass Lo individuais foroievestment in shares (oclucnog POs ¢
EROPE) convertibie Lacds, cowertiile achentores, and units of egquity-
arienten mukus, uads;

tifi) Acbennoss rol sy other puipuses wEiere shares or convertible bonds o - -
correer Lible dearnburcs of uatts af eguily orsrted motual funcs are taker
a5 primany secerity:
I Sulvances Tor ary nbhee pUrmases oo the akien T seoned -
by the Collateral secarity af sharcs o corwertile Deds o canwertible
debortures or untts of equity criscied matual Sunds e, where e
primary seourity athar thar $ianes ¢ convertibles bonds ¢ mamverthiboe
dabariores f units of sty ortented mdtual fonds doss net Aully raver

thie acdvances;

1% srcurcd and unsecured advances wa stackbrokers and oygrantees Saeed an - -
hehalf of smacboirolars and markel oiswrs;

) Loans sanctioned Lo carparabes agairst the sevurity of shares § bornd & -

defientures o other secuiities o o clean hasis tor moeting pramokers
santrbotian to the eoulsy of e companiss in anbicdpation of raistg

TESOLITLEL;
%100 Biidue laans L companies aganst aEpeched aouity Tloss o i L
ferl) ALl 2pasUnes Lo Veriture Capital Funds [bath repistersd and anregiiera -

Total Expasure 0o Capilal Market = #

AOlT o ™
g ey Wl
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JANA CAPITAL LIMITED

CIM:

UaT1KS 2 15PLLOTS45R

Ful Floor, Mo, DU, Sth Crass, dih Main, taruthi Extersion Bangalore $60021
(Al amaurits are Mupess in thousands, unless otlerwise stated)
Heftes 1o the stardatone tnareial statements far tha year snded 11 March 2022

37 Declosurs of detadls 25 reguined by BRG SHBRS 30041 7030 e Master Directan - Core Irvessment Comoanies (Resarse Gane) Direrticng,
A Anked funnsl 25, 2008 |Updabed i o Jure a7, LiE)

Srhedhle e Ui Balance shoct of the ro-gepasit saking Hen Fari g Financial Campary

4

(RBs. In thousann o)
Particulars 31-Mar- d 31-Mar-21
Liabilities side Nk “Rmaount Ameunt Alteniitil
it xkanding e ihie autztanding | overdue
11} |Leans and advances wvailed bry the nem- bankirs Hnancial campany . B
|-¢I Han Canvertible Debenturas s -
WA - - -
wsecdred £1,85,A0R, 75 - | saabiETm = |
ki Coteimed Credits L - . -
i3] Tonm Lodie A 5 =
cdi : IZ-'|1't'\-|'-l:l_1|.l.r.:I'.e_ lnans ard harmawdag 5, 119,80 -
(e Camimeercidl, Paper = :
if] PLblic Deposits - -
1=l {EIPREr L odrs (specify aatuns - ey
:T Break-up of {1141 alave [Gutstanding puldi; -J-epm:i:u mclusive of i i
Inberest avorued thercan bt it paid) -
i by L fiormn v Unsacure;] debentures -
L] Ir1 the ferm ar partly secyred debenbimrs .o, debeiiires : ¥
lirl Calwr gubiic drpesizs -
T R onnutises af race vae of Hun Covertible Donontures, (edemyabian prormim ard ilersst accrsd a5 o date. '
A Aalances as oe financials as eompned e 18D &% dndee 51 tive rterest Hatn IEIR]
) sl vide ; L B T A1-Mar-21
i3] |Break-ip of Loans and Advances inc buding bills recetvatstes [alber than . ]
il Secured . -
1k Ureseoured = |
[4) [Break up of Leased Assots and stock on hire and other assels Couring
il ILEH!E amsets ruding lagas rentals under andny deliors
[lah Fluancisy] leems -
[k Coerating lease ] :
11} Lok on here 1|1|.'iudl|-;.;_l 1] |:'|_ar.g-:-= nnder sy debtors ©
[EY) Assars o hire .
1 [Repossessed Assets ) H
11Fi} Othar loars cainting '_l_'-._vurd: 2wnt ARANCing arLivibies
a1 £ (Lonns mheye assats Faur boe reprasessed £
ikl |L~'|-'|l1'i oiler Fran a) annes -
15} |Break-up q:rf Investmonts
Ciiirent Invgﬁtmen.t;'. i |
T |Gueeed g
i Sharey
qa) EGuily - -
i) F"'I:'fl:n-.:[:c_:" -
1M} ‘Debeires snd Londs - -
fmmik Unics of mtual funds -
fiv) BEYPIAMENT Sevunibes =l
%) Uthers dpleass spescidys = =
K Ungated
i [sbares
lin) Fouily 2
ik Prederence 5
I Ribares sl Gonds - T
[l 1] Linils of mutual hnds - - i 1
L T~ .
i Guvet nment Socutios - - /,:: .
o -::\E'[I} E Lk Thers [Bark Jopasits) - i T
™ = _.r!',]: ||:w:" L
=
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JEHA CARTTAL LIMITEDR

CIN: LIST 1O A IO T SFLC a4
2nd Floor, Mo. B0, Sth Cross, 43h fain, Maruthi Extenstan Barsasare 560071
[AllL amaurts are rop e i sousands, unless otherstse stated)
Hrdes ko the standalone tinancfal stataments for the year cnided 31 #arch 7077

Luvg Tarm irr'-u'e_st!:ri-.cpts

1 Quated
il share
1&] Zopanty L
|I.1|_'-'re1'-c-.r-:'.1.-r~ .
1] JI.-I:lerll.urm and Banis .
1554) famils ef murbaal fands
1% 'En'.ll'\:"rr_'_l\':'li: SemcurHng E
{484 Cithes iplease sazeite]
T Ungased i T
i EIhur-z:
(ra Couicy 2361, 44297 | A7 94,705 70 |
-:_I:-:l Freferenice 3 =
i Dubentures s Brdwls = :
(K11 3 Units of motaal Turiks E =
[KCH Gl:'.'urﬁrl]:nl: Secnrtics = -
K] Athers Bars deposies 7 s |

() |Borrawar groip-wise classification of assets Hnanoed @ in (3] and |4} abowe -

4
-;.;j.l:'- R i
" ’_:?'_al:.';-.*:ﬁ"

Category _Amﬁun‘t net af [rovisiom
Secured Uisecired Tatal
1 [Relsted Parties ** g
|-::|_| @ub:r\-chanm - -
| L ;C:lrr.pin'-:s it -
ELAT Sl BT
iz Lther retabzd parties =
1 Oher than ~eintad poeres z o
Taotal | |
(7] |Fwvestar graup-wicte m:m'lqu-un af all fivesiments I_E_H_':""’“t and long bertn in shares and sccurtios
Catagiry Markel | Dok Yaloe
Yahe f Break [ Bt ol
up or tadr Fravidansh
wakie ar HAN
1 Ralaled Parises = :
i {subsidinrics 1341 44257 | 47,54, 705 75
ik Lampaniss lit U sdine groap = .
il "Gter roiated parties -
z Other thar relatzd pasies i
Tatul
(H] |Other infarnmalion :
Farticutars 31-Mar-12 I1-Mar-31]|
iy Girira Hon-Ferfarming &Assets x
1d] Relased partirs =1
b Exther than rolied partes o
(il HEL_Hun-Fri:rnrrnlng AgTess [
iy |Hn|.-|rr|1 narties i
it {Crbe thae relaled parties - E
1iii} drmets anquired 1n satsTaction of debt - -

FoE b .

.l':.. .\.F- 4 1"1".__.
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3 Investmonts

JiHA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIH: UET 1 MHGAZ0 SPLCOT 24448

Ind Floor, Mo, B, Sth Cross, 4th Main, Marutht Extension Bangalore 560021
Al arnounts are rupecs in theusands, unless otherwise statad)
Males ta the standalans financlal slabements far the year erded 31 March 20272

(R4, In thousands|

| Particulars 31-Mar-22 Fi-Mar-21
{1p Wabie ol Investments . o
iy Grass value of investmants
- Inliklla A7, 04, TESTT 1,21, 500,90
- (xitsde India ] -
|=1i Pravisions Tar deprzriatian an investmenly
[ -nindiz 24.31.322.80 23,26, 605.21
Dutslike Fidia . |
(i1} Hiet walue of iInveshiment:
s 15,671,442 .57 AT e, P 7T
- Desside India ¥ | - -
Ty ovament of provisians held towards depreciation on invectmonts
il Daering falance - A%, 5,200, Y a6, &7 401,38
i = Provision made during tae yaa) 24.33,322.BL 23.06,805,71 |

iii| Less; Writeof? swrite Lad ol s Eresion dieing Ui year

39 Ralings assigred by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

W Elnsinn halancs

1. 14,207,589, 50

3,84 20 5

InsLrument

Hame of Rating Agency

ﬁm‘hemable Hon-Canvertibds

|I:I|:bcn'.l.|rn5

Date of Rating

Rating

|Previuis Rating

lredfa Ratings ard Reszaicl

Jg-0ce-21

15T B+ Stabse

INI G ¢ Stable
e -}

A0 Disclasire of trauk = per Master Srackioe - it g of Frands in 43FCE (Rese-ve Banki Otrections, 2096, circutar na
AR DNEES 301 6- 1754 Master Diveclion DRSS, FPDLO1 6615007 £30 6-77 datod 2% sentember 2014
There weere noinstances of tepartabile fraed fer e yoar sided 31 March 202,




41

JAMA CARTAL LIKITED
CIH: UET 100KA 201 sPLCOTI4R3

Ind Floor, Ha, BO, Stls Cross, Ath fhain, Moruthl Extension Bangalore 560071
(Al amounts ane rupees in thauzands, tisless olharwise stated)
Haoles to the standalors fliwancisl watements for the Wear ereded 31 March 2072

Interest Rate Seimiljvty

5.Ha |Heads of Accaurts

LIABILTTES

Rate Janeitivity of Time Bucket

-I'_'ui:-.'t-ul, Resorvos & Surplus

H'.III-IS_EII:IEI'JI!

1
7 | GHLs, nran'ﬁ & benefar bioins
1 |Hotes, bonds B dabeisiifes

Man=sensitive

ah Fluul.lnq ratr

Hl gpplabls

b |Fueed rate "Fi-'“‘l'l vanillal riladding zero canpors

Wil sensikive

4y | Termemendy o s,

| I||=|.rumr:n.t= whE embecked l:q.i‘.?:uls. WL ;uu'l-cablc
4 ;:-e_pnsll:s

4l |Depestis) Barrmvies Hut, spalicahle
I |F ae Harnr: Hutk 2palicanir

il (Fleatre Hate Hut applicanie

|,;-|___ICD": Hut applicanie
5 |Barrowinigs I

| Hat applicabin

BN Uu'l"l:n-d'rg: Frovm cdlies

iy |Msedrare

Hon-sansitive
oI bom-sormsibive
iy |Fiaating e wot anplable

b |Swrmend Liskililjes and Provisiors

o, Bundrye creditnes

k. Laperses payahle

CSvaD afjustireat 875,

A Acdnce moome roeedeedfecsipls from Berraears pen e sdsastment
a, Interest pagabds an bands Sdepasits

1. Prossinns

Han-sepsiiree

7 |Rcposd Billy redicomnted fares swiafas {Sell  Buy)

k- sl ve

ASSETE

Cash

(TP r——

Mct .'.'F_.'I|I|'-'||'I|I='

1
3 | Remfttance n Transil
3 |Balances witl banks in India

gy |Incurrenr adc,

Hon-seRs e

gy |Inecpasit accaunts, M1z at “rall fd shoel ralive and ather rlareme s

Hon-sens i

4 linvestments

i

Fwsd Tz anie syt |E. . BT, secarilias, surd |:_'|||Fr.vri Py Pasioks,
al |debentures, cumudathes, raainulabive, redecmanle arsfecerne shanes, abn

Mg ﬂ|.;|.i.i;.-:!b:.=

b} Fl.l':l-:ll.i'lﬂ rabs securtics

Kor applizable

[Erprity shaves, cormes tale aretereace shares. shares af subse ks s inl, wentures
ri venluie capical uaits.

SOl mliva

5 | Advances |En"|:rrﬁlm|:

ap |Bills D."_e:-l.chang" Promissery nukes discounben oo oo e Mt apalicable
a1 | Tenm Toats ‘enmnernte lees O Shoere Teem Lears (apee lodrs only)
1) |Fived Rate Hul applicshie
iy |Feaating Hate [Hul appliceale
Haii-paarforming loans:
6t |Inet of provisions, nferest sysoense and clafiis @ ecsivsd from LOGC)
i Sub-sLandard
b, Db, snd Loss hap gupliabls
7| Ansels om |.H5|:" R au;ﬂ.wble-
& Eﬁﬂ-ﬂ“_c_ﬂwmlcﬂl Wi aoplcable

% |Other assets

aif |||I.:|l|g||:le as3nbs ard e m e, repraseabing cask ass,

M- se e il hes

[l L T It!lr‘5 |C" g accaaed G, other recerveablos, siafl loans. EI:I: |

Pty itree

10 |Rewerse ReposdSwans (Bigy el snd Bois rodiscsuned QOUF]

Hat, d|.1'.I|II:.!-:|.|.E

11_[Other (interest mbe} produts

a] |Imtevest rate swaas

[Hul applicahiln

Cler Denvatives

|H-'.ll dpplicabis




JARS CAPITAL LIMITED
CIM: Uh T 1004 T01 SFLEOTI4AS
2 Floor, Mo, B, Sth Cress, 4th Main, Maruthl Evtension Bangalore 580021
141 ameaurits are rupess in thausands, unless eihersise stated)
Mitess b the standalone Hnanctal satements far the year saided 31 March 2022

4T Camperents of AHW and othor redated informakian

(A&, I thowsands)

Furl.'i-n.!l.-u.':

Ji-Mar-1z

31-thar-21

7] AHY a5 8 % of Fask Weignied Assals

 Liv] Leneeraae Habin

(1 reeatided appreciation i the anek valie af queted meestmnnre

() cimimsioa in e gggresate boak value of quited reestments

7

118

AREL

[N K

43 1T Balance sheet Exposurs

FHI"E.II'.'..\.ILIE

31-Mar-17

[ 31-Mar-11

07 B i sheet Lpnsure

Firai il Guarantee =5 i % of OFf Palaree sheet Laprsane
Han-Financial Suarsitzs as & Fal I Salance Sheet Exprsing
OfF Balzive sheel egposars o Cverseas Siaidigries
Letbar of ComTid T Baued Lo amy subsidiany

44 Busin=ss Ratios

Particulars

3 1-Mar-737

A1 -Mar- 21

Rt |_||.E.;iu|l.-,-
Runy s heeiss
|HeT profic per mnaloyee

-1FL 1

e 1

=hl .42
=1 s

| Ha

4% Pravisiois amil Conligencies

liws gccount

Break up of *Provisons and canblsen jes' shawn under the it and

31-NaF-23

I1-Mnr-T1

Prieisian “oF Comrmelytian ol ieslmEnt
Frizizion towards HEA

Frostis‘on mace tavercs Income tas

Other prorasians and eantzeackas) with cetails)
Froovisics for standard asseks

L4, 44, 58

£ 305 M

The Cempeciy has pow geen declared o5 wilh, defaulzer oy oy hank Or Trancial instimosion or oolie Laegdar,
As por the wfamnation availabée with us, e Company = nat haing any redatioship weisk strach ol Campanies Huring thee year
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K.S. Rao & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Jana Capital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Qualified Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Jana Capital
Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (Holding
and its Subsidiary together called as “the Group”), ils associate, which comprise the
Consolidabed Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, Consolidated statemoent of Profit and
Loss, Consolidated statement of changes in Equity and Consolidated statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated financial statements™).

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013(" Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under sechon
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting, principles generally accepted in India, of the
Consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate, as at March 31, 2022, its
Consolidated loss, other total comprehensive income, Consolidated changes in equity
and Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

3. Referring to note 39 of the Consolidated financial statement, Jana Holdings Limited
(Whaolly Owned Subsidiary Company) is a Non-operating Financial Holding Company
('NOFHC) of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited ("]SFB’ or *the Bank’) and has no operation
of its own. As per RBl guidelines, the Company shall maintain minimum capital
adequacy ratio ('CAR’) at a consolidated level based on the prudential guidelines on
Capital Adequacy and Market Discipline - New Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF)
issued under Basel Il framework and Guidelines on Implementation of Basel 111 Capital
Eegulations of India, when implemented. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the
Company CAR computed on consolidated basis is at (7.96%) which is below the
regulatory minimum of 15%. The Consequential impact of such noncompliance on the
Consolidated financial results is presently unascertainable.

4. Referring to the note 40 of the Consolidated financial statement, The terms and conditions
of Certificate of registration issued to the subsidiary by the RBI vide letter No. N-02.00275
dated January 27, 2017, requires subsidiary to comply with preseribed net owned funds
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K.5. Rao & Co., Continuation Sheet........

requirement in accordance with Section 45-1A of the RBI Act 1934, and Master Direction
DNBE.PD.O0S/03.10.119/ 201 6-17 dated September 1, 2006, the net owned funds of the
subsidiary as on March 31, 2022, is in a deficit of Bs. 1,87.35,718 thousands, which is below
the regulatory minimum of Rs. 20,000 thousands. The Consequential impact of such non-
compliance on the Consolidated financial results is presently unascertainable.

5. Referring to the note 41 of the Consolidated financial statement, the wholly owned
subsidiary company is a Non-Operating Financial Holding Company ("NOFHC') of Jana
small Finance Bank Limited ('|SFB or “the Bank") and has no operation of its own. As per
EBI guidelines, the Company had a leverage ratio of 8.04 which is above the regulatory
threshold of 1.25 on a standalone basis for the year ended March 31, 2022, The
Consequential impact of such non-compliance on the Consolidated financial results is
presently unascertainable.

6.  The Company has initially recognised goodwill on acquisition of Jana Holding Limited,
amounting to Ks, 17,985 thousand, whose net worth have fully eroded as at March 31,
2022. Further, the Company has not performed any impairment test of goodwill,
Accordingly, in view of current financial position of Jana Holding Limited and in the
absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to comment on the
carrying value of the goodwill.

7. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finmneial
Statenents section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India'ICAL")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consclidated
linancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uneertainty Related to Going Concern

3. We draw attention to Note 42 in the Consolidated financial statement, which indicates
that the Company incurred a net loss of Rs. 36,50,104 thousands during the year ended
March 31, 2022 and has accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 3,18,20,553 thousands, as of
that date, which has eroded its net worth. Further the Company has fixed term
borrowings approaching maturity with prospects of repayment currently being
evaluated by the management. Further, the Company is in breach of certain regulatory
financial parameters as of March 31, 2022, as stated here in above, in the Basis of Qualified
Opinion section. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, as stated
in the note, the Company is in the process of raising additional funds as necessary o
operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under going concern assumption,

Our opinion is not moedified in respect of this matter.
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Key Audit Matters

9. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our
Audit

Impairment Assessment of Investment
in wholly owned Subsidiary:

The investment in the Associate is
accounted under equity method and is
tested for  impairment  annually.

On March 31, 2022, the carrying value of
investment in associate is REs. 13,99552
thousands (as on March 31, 2021
13,235,395 thousands).

The annual impairment testing of
carrying value of investment in the
associate is considered to be a key audit
matter due to the materiality of
investment for the company and the fact
that process and methodology  for
assessing and  determining  the
recoverable amount of investment are
based on complex assumptions, that by
their nature imply the use of the
management's judgment, in particular
with reference to  identification of

Our  audit  procedures  to  assess
appropriateness  of  impairment  ftest
includes, but were not limited to the
following:

= Verified the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over approval, recording and
monitoring of Impairment of Investment
in associate

* Evaluated the appropriateness of the
assumptions considered and key inputs
used in the assessment of impairment.

+ Verified completeness, arithmetical
accuracy and validity of the data used in
the impairment assessment.

*  Assessed the accuracy of reversal of

impairment loss and evaluated the
adequacy of the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

impairment indicators.
Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
thereon:

10. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not
include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
s, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated financial statements:

11.

12

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position,
consolidated  financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and its associate
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This respective management and Board of Directors of the Group and its associate
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Management and the Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the ability of Group and its associate to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or bo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

- The respective management and Board of Directors of companies includes in the Group

and of its associate are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of Group
and of its associate,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements:
14.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from malterial misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can

. arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

13. As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence thatl is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which companies are
included in the consolidated financials, has adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,

Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubit
on the Group and its associate ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
Orpinion is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
reporl. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its
associate o cease o conlinue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated
tinancial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

16. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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17. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

18. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these
matters in our auditors” report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Oither Matter:

19. The audit of Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021,
included in the Consolidated financial Statement was carried out by the predecessor
auditor, who have expressed modified opinion vide their audit report dated September
23, 2021, whose report has been furnished to us and which has been relied upon by us,
for the purpose of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

20. We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of wholly owned subsidiary
company which reflects total consolidated assets of Es, 14,28,383.57 thousand as at March
31, 2022, total consolidated revenue of Rs. 450,89 thousands for the year ended March 31,
2022, total consolidated net loss of Rs. 24,33,322.80 thousands as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial statements of the wholly
owned subsidiary has been audited by the other auditor whose report has been furnished
to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosure included in respect of the
wholly owned subsidiary and our report in so far as it relates to the aforesaid wholly
owned subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditor,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

21. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that to the extent applicable that:

a)  We have sought and except for the possible effects of the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the Consolidated financial statements,
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b)

c)

d)

e}

g

h)

Except for the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph
specified above, proper books of account as required by the Act relating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far
as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other
auditors.

Except for the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph
specified above, The aforesaid consolidated financial statements dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of consolidated financial statements,

Except for the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph
specified above, In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The matter described in Basis of Qualified Opinion and Material Uncertainty Related
to Going Concern sections of our report, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect
on the functioning of the Group.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company
and its associate company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “ Appendix-A”.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company, to its directors
is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule ¥
to the Act

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
oy us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at March 31, 2022;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;
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iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

¥,

a. The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries has
represented that, to the best of its knowled ge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company
b or in any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ("the Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The respective Management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {'Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the management representations under sub-
clauses (a} and (b} above contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. Accordingly,
disclosure under this clause is not applicable.

Page 8 of 12



E.5. Bao & Co., Continuation Sheet........

22. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3{xxi) and 4 of the Companies
{Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO report issued by us
for the Holding Company and based on our consideration of CARO report issued by the
respective auditor of the Subsidiary Company, such subsidiary as referred to in
paragraph 20 above, we report that following adverse remarks has been made:

S.No Name of the CIN: Holding/ Clause number of
Company Subsidiary/ the
Associate/ Joint | CARO report which
Venture is
- Company qualified or adverse
1 Jana Capital Limited | Us7100KA2015PLCO79488 | Holding {xvi)(c) & (xix)
Company

For K.S5. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration No: 0031095

Wigd

Hitesh Kumar P

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership Mo.: 233734
Date: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 22233734 A JWY]P3230
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Appendix - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In Conjunction to the audit of Consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to the consolidated financial statements of Jana Capital Limited (“the Holding Company™),
its subsidiary and its associate company as of date.

Managements Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary
and its associate company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Chir responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company, its subsidiary and its
associate, internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our aodit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Owver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness,
Cur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary and its associate have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial Control system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,

2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Cur aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls system with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in so far as it relates to the subsidiary companies and associate
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports
of the auditors of such subsidiaries, associates incorporated in India.

For K.S. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No: 0031095

g

Hitesh Kumar P

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 233734
Date: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 22233734 A]WYCLU4074
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JAHA CAPITAL LINITEDR
CId: 67 T100KATD § SPLEOTR4EE
Iredd Flioos, Mo, B0, Sth Cress, Ath Main, Maruthl Exterdion Bargalore 50021
(Al ameunts are rupess in thousands, unbess otherwie stated)
Consolidated Ststement of Profit and Loas for the year ended 31 March 2027

Particulars
Rarversue from Operations

Interest Imcome
Total Revenss from Operation

Other Income
Total Income (1411

Expenses

Finance cosls

Impairment on financial watnements
Empilryee benedits cupenses
Depreciation and amestization

O3 papendfune

CRbasry experres

Tedal Expendes [IV)

Loss before tax {11 -1V)

Exceptional ket

Less befone tax and share of Lows of Awociate (V-]
Share of Prodits|Loss) of the aisociate sccoumted fof wing
exquity method

Tax Expense:

L¥) Current Tax

(] Deferred Tac

ks for thee year (W11 Wl-0x)

Other Comgreheniive Intame

(&4 £ib loems. 1hat will not be reclassitiod (o prain o |oss
{11 InCome tax relating 1o ibems that will not be

reclasified (o profit o fnss

Subtoatal (&)

{8 (1) iems that will be reclasstived o profit or loss

{111 ncome tax relatieg 1o items That will Be reclinsified
to profit or kois

Subrbotal (&)

Other Comprehensive come (A « B)

Total Comprebensive Loss for the perfod (K+X1)
Earningi per eguity thare

Basic (Rs. )
DHluted [Rs. )

Summary of significant accounting policies

(R, I thousands)
Fer the year ended  For the year ended
Hicte 31 Warch 1023 31 March 2021
i 218,85 1,380, 57
218.8% 1,580, 57
1B : 151,50
218 85 1,534,186
19 30,32,135.81 15,71,953.22
20 §3,72,886. 1) :
21 16,198, 75 I3, 634, 44
2 161,32 185,57
23 1 "
24 73,055,412 17,425 K9
27 48,704 5% ib.l'll.il?.'ll
[T .48, 405 T4 2000, 552 06
|27, 48, 485, T4) 126,00, 652 96)
1,01 61K, &4) 14,059, 370, 64)
(36,50, 104, 38) {30, 90,0723, 60
{3&,50, 104,38} [30, 10,0:23_80)
15 i1, 49,80 11,113, 10
1,595, B0 01,113,108

The: aCCompanying notes are an integral part of the fimancisl statements

&% per cuwr report of even date
K.5. Rao & Co.,

Chartensd Afcountants

Farm Registration Ho,: D006

Flace; Bengalung
Dt Mary 30, 2022
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JAHA CAMTAL LMITED
CIM: L T ID0KAZC SPLOD T8

Ind Floor, Wo. B0, %th Cross, dth Main, saruthi Dcbension Bangalore S6C011
(A1l armounds are rupees in housands, unbess ctherwise stated)
Comolidated Statement of Cah Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

Caah flows lros operating sciivithes

Lozs for the year

Ml junt e fors
Depreciation and amorTiTaten Frpeemes
brguairment loss on financial instruments

Share of Prodit/ {losd) of the associate acoounted for ising equily methad

Prevtasors
Finance 001

Cperating Losy before working capital changes and adjustmaents

Charges In working capital

(Dvcrease] © ncreass in payables

jDecrease]  crease in other financial Habilitses
(Desgrease)  orease in other non-Financial Habilites
Degreaye) [ncrease) noobher bank balanoes
Decrease! (monease) in other financial asseis
Deoresse [ncresss) in other Hon financial ades
Cash uied & operatisni belofe Sdjuitments

Tazes (pald) § refumnd

Hiet cash Mo from (used inj operating activities (4)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Fayment fior purchuse of property, plant and equspoien

Iervesdmerd In associale

et cash Mow From £ jused n) investing actismies (B
Cash flow from Financing acthities
Proceeds from debd secories ised
Bepayment of dues for debt securities

Het cash flow from financing activities ()

Het increase in casl and cask eguivalents (A«B+C)
Cash ared cash pquivalents at the beginnieg of the year
Cash and cankby pquivalents a1 the end of the year

Cash and cash eduivalents Comprite (Relter Hode-1)
Balances with banks

Om currend. accounds

On depoiis with Banks
Totsl cash and bank balamces at end of th-u:pﬂr

s, bn thousands)
For the year ended Fsr the year ended
¥i-March- 1023 Bi-Mareh- 1021
(36,50, 104, 38) {30,10,023.80)
161,32 169,57
(3, 71.886.21) .
5,00, 518,54 4,09, 170064
484 57 M5
3,32,135.80 15,M,953.33
(K, SR0_2%) [IB.151.01)
01,8875} W06, N
[229_ 2Ty nyLys
PRI BT 37
00 {4, 08
7.9} i1, 7B, 0ap
15596 [IRERE
[BA.297.50) {17, 99051
9452 (114,87}
(BB 202, &%) 128,114, 4B)
055,581 2
[, 595 ) -
iB, B0, D64, 63) =
A1, 45 000, 00 -
{3388 035 &5} B
756,074,532 .
780702 [28,114,48)
2.930. 02 ]E.ﬂ-“.il
17, 737.13 9,930,020
7 543 20 1,.702.01
10,051.97 E2128.01
17, 737,13 !g_]ﬂ.lﬂ

The accoimpanying rotes are an integral pan of the Consolidated Financiall Satements

A1 por o repoet of even date
K.5. Rao & Co,,

Charined Acoountants

Firm Registration Ho.: DO%1064

W@

HEtesh Kumar P

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of

=

Chaed izl officer

ICAI Meevmbvership Mo: 21763
Place: Bergalury
Diage; May 30, 2013

(

Chairman |
D083 T

e

Widya Sridharan
Company Secrstany
IC5I Mamnitsprabiip Mo Ad154

G ‘..E?E

'\-\_



JAMA CAPITAL LMITED
C: AT IO08ATH SPLODTO4RE
Ined Floor, No. B0, Sth Cross, dth Main, Maruthi Extension Bangalore SH0021

(&M ampounts are rupess in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year snded 31 Barch 3023

Flace: Bangaluna
Date: May 30, 0T

S

-.'Jllﬂ',gd.,/
shian §
Financial officer

ICAl Membership Ho: 021731

Place; Bergaluru
Date: May 30, 2002

Witya Sridharan
Company Secretary

A Equity Share Capital fRz, Im thousands)
Particulars Amount
Balance &y at 01 Apr 2030 27 041 .81
Changes. in equity thise capital duss 10 pesad period e -
Balance & ot 01 Aper 2030 27 041 .81
Changes. in equity thare capfsl during the cusment year -
Balance a5 st 31 March 2021 27 04181
Balance as at 01 April 2021 27,041.81
Changes in equity shang capstal de (o prior peried enmons .
Balance as 81 01 Apr 2031 27.041.81
Changes i equity shane capiLal during the Cument year -
Balance &y &t 31 March 2022 I7.041.81
B) Other Equity

(Es. In thousards)

Reserves and Surplus Dther items of
Cher
Securities Comprehenatve Total
Particulars Prtiilarh Satutedy Riederve | Retainmd Eamnimg Irscome (spectly
mature)
Balance as at 01 Apr 3020 1,22, 54, T02. 18 X792 | (2.51,80,425.533) (1B 017,732 (0 28, B4, 460, 85)
i harsgess in accosmiing policy o prior ) ) ; : .
period errofs
Restated balance as at 01 Apr 2020 1,22.%4 702,28 35,279,927 | -2.51,60.425. 313 -18017.72 -1, 28 B4 440 85
:r:“[""“’:':“m F T (30, 10,023, 60) NSTILI|  (31,67,335.70)]
|H-H-In:tli a1 31 March 2071 1.22,%4, 702,18 IR, 279.92 (2,81,70, 448, 93) 1,775,329, 83y [1,.60,51 .?9&“]]
Balance as ot 01 Apr 2021 1,22,54, 70318 3.2 < B0, 70, 48893 A, 75,315,483 4051, 90, 56
Changes n acoounting policy or prios i = : 2 _
[peried errors
Restated balance as at 01 Apr 2021 1,22 54 T02. 18 39 2T.92 | 281,70, 448,93 =1, 75, 11%.82 [, 80,51, 706, 56]
Total Comprehensive Income [ fLoss) for . 136,50, 104, 38) (57.109.78))  (37,07,214.18)
the cusTent year
Balance as al 31 March 2072 1,32,54,702,38 39,275.92 | {3,18,20,5%3,13) (2,327,439, 8610 (1,97,59,010.72)
Thee pCopmpdsmying noles are & indegral part of these Tinancial statemsents
AL per our reprt of even date Foe and on behald of the Board of Directors of
K.5. Rso & Co., Jana Capital Limvited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regstration Mao.: 0011095
WD
Hamesh

Hitesh BLimas P C
Pastrsef Oir- O 5327

IC5 Memnbership o AE54
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1.3

1.4

JAHA CAPITAL LIMITED
ik UG T 100KAZD SELCOT 488
Znel Floor, Ho, 80, Stk Cross, 4th Makn, Maruthi Extemnsion Bengslore S800E1
(AN amounts are rupess in thousands, unless otherwise stabed)
Motes to the Consalidated Financial Statements far thi year ended 31 March 2022

Company Overvdlew

Raporting Entity

The Company was incorparaled on March 36, 3015 to carmy on the usines of an inwestment Company and to invest, buy, twoll, tansfor, deal
i andd dispose of ary shares, stocks, debemtures, whether perpetual or redeemabde debentunes, stocks, securities of any Gosernment, Local,
Awtharity, Bonds and Cortificates, The Company reoered a cortificate of registration dabed 24 March 3017 from the Reserve Bank of Inde as
i Mo Eaenioing Fingncia] Brestitution - Ko Dol taking - Systemically Inportant Core Investment Compaiy (MERD-CIC-HD-517) e Laftion
4518 of the Beseroe Bank of bedia &2y, 1934

The company holds 100E investmenls n its wholly cwned subsidiary company - Jana Holdings Limited [the Company'l. The wholly oweed
subeidiary company holds 43 B4T of Equity shares n tana Small Finance Bank being the Astociabe company,

The Board im its meeting hild on Octobey 31, 3019, and Novermnbssr 12, 2009, approeed Fast-track method for merging lana Holdings Linmted
(L), bt the wholly owned Non-Operating Financial Holding Company (MOFHCE, with its Holding as well as Core nvestment Company,
Jsna Capital Lireibed (JCL). The Company submitbed necessary documenis on January 9, 3000, sought by the BBl vide their letier dated
October 201% and received in-principle approvad from the BB on 10th August 2020, As per thi cxisting qusdelines, the requiremest of having
a HOFHL has been disporsed wigh by thi B8 for setteg wp Senall Finance Banks. ang Lintversal Banks,

Further, such & menger of the whodly cwmed subsidiany wilh the Holding Compasry will simplidly the complissces (o be reported Lo vanous
Regulatory Authorities, besides nesulling in lower operating coits. The Company i sligible 1o sdapt Fast-track method for the merger as
ervisaged under Section 211 of the Comparies Act, 20073 ot it is the merger of wholly owned subsadiary with Hodding Company. Subusquent
to the receipt of the in-principbe approsal froem the RS, the Board of Direciors of the transferos and the Transforee Companies met on 24th
August 2020, approved the Schems of Amalgamation of s Holdings Limited {wholly Cwnied subsidiarg) with Jana Capital Limined Hodding
Compsing,

Thr Company served salioe (0RA-T) EMMWWMMMWHBTW.MN“M Liquadiatoe,
Maniitry of Comporate Affains by betber dated 25th Avgust B0I0 seeking their objpections | aggestions to the said soheme as required under
section Z331)a) of the S&ct and rules made thereunder,

The Company submitted necessary application ta the Regional Birector, South-East Region, Minstry of Comporate Affairs, Hyderabad, on Ath
Hivember 2030 for obtaming spproval of Amalgamation under Section 111 of the Compamies Act, 2003, Begional Director, Ministry of
Company Affairs, Hyderabad, vide letter dated 26th March 2021 rejected the application filed an Sth Movember 2020 for the merger of JBHL
with JCL, siace JHL had obtained corsent from the creditors only o the extent of B2.78% in valie as agateal the minimim thieshold of
consent from L of TR Creditoes in valse as requirgd wnder Secrion 133 of the Companies Act, 2003 and, &5 sach, the provisiom of Section
23301 W) codded ol B2 Fully comgliad with,

The Board of Deeeciors considened the afonesaid rejection order and resofved to fle the fresh menger appiication subject 1o the approval of
the Schemse by the Board of Directors, Shareholders, Creditors, and such otber authorities @ may be required, in the meanwhile, Jana
Holdtingy Limited arranged Rs. 100 crores and made available (part prepayment and part purchase of their HCDs from WOM) to one of the
oredifoes, as demanded, for enabling them (o prosvide HOC for the menger although the sakd BCDs will mature s March 3023, The TrarTescs
Company will seek HOCS from the debenture hodders shortly, Thereafter, alfter obtaiming other clearances ' consents//approvats, the Compasy
propoes (o approach the Regional Director, Meistry of Corporate Affais, Hydevabad, again for appronal al the meenger. Ponl the medger, the
resullant entity, whach is & CIC, is mat equired o maintain Met Owoed Funds,

Statement of compliance

Thizse Financial stapementd are Comsadidabed financial s9atemsnty prepared in accordance with Indian Al:“ﬂ-m.mtll'ﬂ Standardy (Cind A%}, the
provizion of the Companies Act, 2001 [“the Act) (as amended). The Ind AS ane prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of
the Companies {indéan Acoounting Standards) Bules, 2005 and Companies |incian Accounking Standands) Amendments Bules, 2004,

Basis of proparation

The Comsplidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 3003 have been propared by the Company i accordance with Indias
Accoiuniing Standards |"ied AST ) notified by the Ministry of Corporate &Males, Government of Indis under the Comgaries (Indian ALcourting
Standards) Biles, 7015 amd Companies (Indism Accounting Seandands) (umevsdment] Buleg, 2006, a4 amended froem Ume 1 time, = Ehe
regard.

Principbes of consolidation

Thir consolidsted financial stabements comprise the financial statemsents of the Company and its subsidiany together reformed Bo as (“Group™)
and Associabes s ab and for the year ended 31 March 302, The Company conpolidates a subsidhany when i controls it Control 15 aChasned
wihon the Groip 15 gaposed, oF bl rights, o vanable g ram 05 invebsement with the Weestes and has (e abEIty 10 affecE Bhode
Pl Lheough it8 power owed The invesiee, Generally, there |5 a presumplion thal a majerity of voring mights rest in control. To supporn
this presumplion and when the Company has 1 than a majority of the wotireg or Similar fighas of &n ivested, the Company comsiders all
relevant Tacty and CHCLITALAN0ES in Mieiing whether i his power cver an inveshes,

Consolidation aof & skeidury begines when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company kses control of

the subsidiary, Assets, Uabilsties, income and capenses ol a subsidiary acguired or dispoed of during the year are inclisied In the
consclidated firancial statemens from Che date the Company gaing contiol until the date the Company ceases bo control th subsidiang.
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JAHA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIH: Us 7 100KAZ01 SPLCOT 48R
I Floor, Mo, 80, Sth Crods, dth Main, Marathi Extersion Bangalore 360021
(A1 amounds are rapees 0 thoussndh, unless otherwise stated)
Hates 1o ke Comalidated Finarcial Statemeris for the year ended 31 March 022

Comalidaied financal stxtoments are prepaned aming uniform accountieg polickes Tor ke tramsaction and oiber cvents in simdlar
circumstances, M & mermbsr of (B Group whes H{MIHMMMMIHFWHMH“MMHMHLWH e bike
transactions and events in vimilar circumstances, appropriate adjustmoents are made (6 that Group membse®s Financial statemems in
prepanng the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Compaery's acoounting policies.

The financisl statements of ail entities wed for the purpose of coraolidation are same neporting dste as that of the parerd company, e,
year ended on Manch 31, B2,

Consolidation procedure:

Combane like items of assets, [abilithes, cquaty. income, and expenses of the panenl with thise of #% wlbdidiary. For this porpess, inogme
and experies af the subsidiany ane based on the amounts of the asiets and labdlities recogneted in the condolidabed fnancisd statemenls at
R ArepHsigEcn date.

et jeliminate) the carmying amount of the parent's irvestment in each subsichany and the panrent®™ portion of equity of sach subsidiary.

Etiminate n Dol intragroup assets and abdities, couily, income, ecpenies and cish Mows relating 0 DRefedl R DEtweon enlities af the
Geieasp piwalits oF losses resulting from intragioup Lransadiions thal ange recognised in assets, ane eliminated i fullh, INAERoUR |oas may
indickte an impairmesnt that reguines recogmition n the comobidated fnancial statements. Ind AS 17 Income Taxid applies 1o Demporany
differences that anse from the elimination of profvs and bosses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profut or loss and each component of O are attnbuted to the ecquety holders of the parent of the Group and Eo the non-controlling inbenests,
e 1 this results i the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjestments are mbade to ihe fnancial statements of sobsidiary (0 bfeg Lher sccounting poficies. n line with the
Compamy's acoounting policies. ALl inbra-group assets, liabdities, equity, mcome, expenses and cash flows reliling to transactions betwessn
mnembas of the Group ane etiminated in full on consolidation

A change w the ownersheg inkerest of & subsidieny, withour bois of controd, ¥ a0Couried Ror as an Sdpily IRarsacnion,

The fimanc il statements of the Tollowing subsidisny company hinne been consolidated as per Ind A5 110 - Comotidated Financis! Statements,
Below mentioned subsidisny bun been incorporated in india

Incorparation March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021
Jana Moldings Lirnited im;. 100 1001

The Group has wwvesbments in the folloreing asseciates, which are acooumbed under the Equity Method in accordance with the Ind A5 28 on
Aotaunting for investmant in Asseciate o Cormaolidated Financial Statemsnis s on March 19, J022:-

Particulats Dty
Hame of the Associat Jana Small Finance Bank
Country of Incorporations Imidea|
[Crmiership bnterest (%) 43 Bd%
Imvestmient as on March 31, 2021 13,25.395.7%
vional bveestments during the year 6,59, 9959.06
m':mﬁm & Surplus nARTING)
(impairment) / impairment Reversal 3,72,886.21
Carrying 13,959,552 61

Functbonas] ard Prosentation curfency
Thase Ind AS Consotidated Firancial Statemaonts aro presented in indian Rupees {INR), wiich 5 also the Company's functional curmency. All
amounts ane rounded of 1 b0 Uhe nearest thousands, uniess otherwise ndicated,

Basis of moasurement
T Coarerlidated Financial statements Pave Deen prepansd on a fstorncal cost besis,




JAMA CAMTAL LAMITED
CIM: Us F100xA 201 SPLOOFYAEER
Irstl Floce, Mo, B0, Sth Crons, 4th Main, Maruthi Extersion Bangalore S600321
(A1 amdunts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
et 1o tha Cormolidated Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 Manch 2023

1.8 Significant areas of estimation, critical judgments and assumptioes bn applying accounting policies

The preparation of Corolidated financial statements in accordance with ind A5 nequines management 1o make jidzements, sstimates and
asumptions that atloct the reported smount of revenmes, sdpendes, atsels and Habilisess, and the accampanying dnchodane, ad well as the
disciesure ol confingent liabstities. The Compamy’s managomes Delineds thal the estimates used in preparatisn of the financial stalements.
afe prudenl and ieatonable. ACcoun P eSimates Eﬂ.ﬂi‘]‘lﬂ# Ficeti peiviod Lo piiiod, Actus] residts could differ from Ghose estimaies,
hppropriate changes in ellimates are made ad management beoomes aware af the changes in chicumatances surnounding the cstimates, Any
changes in the scounting cstimates are refiected im the penod i which sach change in circumtances ane made and, i material, heir
elfects are disciosed in the nofes bo Ehe Financisl statomenis,

Thir kizy estEmatis and assumplicns used in preparation of consolidated finanoial staterments ane;

Falr value of finarclal dnstruments

The tasr value of financial tnstrumends 5 the price thal wesdd B recoived Do sefl am asset oF paid 10 trandfer a labslity in an cerderly
Iransaction W ihe principal jor most advantageous) markel sl the measurement date ueder curment marked condflion: (i.e., an exit prico)
regardless of whether that price i derecily cbuervable or estimaled sing sncther valuation technigue. When the fair values of financial
.ld.!.-l‘.-L‘.h‘d-lhﬂhilull'l-lh1||ll|.-.|.n!-nurd-|‘.-|$mﬂﬂhduuﬂwdtmhedﬂﬂrdlrmadmmﬂtu,thynddmm;ww
waluation techeviques that include the e of valuation models. The inputs to these models ae taken from ohsarvable markes whens
possible, but where this is not fessible, estimation & requingd in establishiesg fair salues, Judpements snd estimates include Considerations
of liguesdity and model npats relatsd oo e,

Significant acoownting podicies

The Company has appiied the following accounting policies to all penicds presented in these comolidated financial siatements.

HAevenwe recognition

Owsdend is recognized when the right to receive the dividend & establshed,

Financial assety and Habilities

Financial asiets

Initial recognition and measisrement

Excepd for Weers ab falr walue through profit o less (FVTPLY, all financial assels ane recogniced indlisily at fair walue plis or mims
trandaction Codts that are direcily atiributable snd incremental to the onginationfsoguisition of the finanois] asiet.
Financial aswets st amortisesd cost

A financial attel B measured Al Snortized casl o W MMHMMMWWHMWH ak F¥TPL:

P asset B hald within a Busineds smodel wistse obvjecthee i 10 hild sty s onder Lo colbscl contractual cash floss: and

- the confractual terms of the financial asset give rae on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intencst
outstanding on the principal amound outstanding {SPRI).

After watial measuroment, such Inancisd aars ane subsequently messured a1 amceieed ool g the EIR madhcd, Amcemiped cost &
“EHHWWMWdWWWNM|WN|mW{M that a=e an evspral part al thee EIR and reponed a3 part
af interest incomse in the Statemsat of Prodin or Loss. The lesses, if any, arsing from enpairment are recognized in the Statement of Prafit or
Lids,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensieg Inoome

A financial awset i measured at FYOC] only if It meets both of the following conditions and s nokt designated as at FVTPL:

+ the asset 15 held wiatlin a business model whose objpective i achiowed By both colkecting contractual cash fows and selling funancial assets;
and

= (e COnErRS Lofrs o Uhe Tinancial ATEl give rise on Spesciliod dales 1o cash Towd that ane SPP.

Thee |oes allowance is recognized in ol Comprehensiege income and doiy not Fmeﬂhmmwﬁ"ﬂmtulﬂmt. ‘When the
Iwarsc il et i devecognised the cumulative gain or loss previowsly recognized n other compreheraie inoeme B reclasibed from egquity o
prala or loas as a reclasification adjsirent.

Financial assets s fair value through prafit o loes (FYTPL)

Ay financial eatnement, wihich oS not miel the Criteria Tor cabigonizalion os &t amorized cost of a8 FYOCL, B clasiilied (o be measured
&t FYTPL.

In addivion, the Comparny may alio elact 1o classsdy o debd intrument, which othenwise meels amomized cost or FYOC) eriteria, as st PVTRL
Horwewer, Such ebedtion i done onfy (F daing 0 reduces or eliminates & measurement or recognition inconsstency (refermed Eo as “sicounting
mismakch™y,

Dbt instruments included within the FYTPL categany ane moasured a8 Tair salue with all changes recognized in profit or ko,
Classification and subsequent messurement

The Company classifes s financial asseds a3 subsequently messured at esther amortized oost or Tasr value based on the business model for
managing the fimancial assets and the comractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
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JAHA CAFITAL LIMITED
CiH: Ue 7 100RATRDN SPLEO T 488
Ind Flaor, Ko, 30, Sth Cross, Ath sain, Meruthl Extersion Bangslore 560001
(Al amounts are rupees in thousands, unbess othereise stated)
. Hodes [0 the Consolidated Financial Statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2012

Finsnclal Liabélithes

Iriitia] recogrition and meaturement

Except for ibems &t fair value through profit or loss (FYTPLE, ol tmanciad Habilites are recognized infially an fatr valse phe of mins
transaction costs that ane directly attributabie and sncremental to the tisue af the financial babiligees,

Subsequent rsasurement

All financial liabdlities are subsequently measured at amortized Cost except for Finanols] Habilities a1 FYTPL Such labilities including
derivalives that ane liabalities ane sulsequently meaiured a1 Tas value,

Der-rincognithon of Tinancial asels and financial labilRies

A fnencial asset (of, where applicable, a pant of a financial assed of par of o groop of simslar financial awsts) B primarily derecognined
wilhen

- Tha rights to rescere cash floes from the asst heve mogined, o

- The Company hes transferred its rights to recete cash flows from the avset or has asvumed an obligation (o pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay (o a thind party wnder a “pass-though' arrengemant; and oither ja) the Company Fas tramsberred sbatantially all
the rinks and rewards al e aset, o (D) the Compary has peither tasdlemed nor neladned substantially all the risks and rewands of the
s, it hik transfermed control af thi assed,

On de-recognition of a fimancial assel, the difference Belween the carrying smount of the asset jor the carrying amourt allocated to the
paricn of Bhe asel derecogniced) and the consideration recered fincluding sy new asset obtained bess any new liabslity amsumed) shall be
recogntaed in Statemnent of Prafit or Loss,

T Company derecognizes a linancial liabality wheem i3 contraciuad obligations are dischamged of cancelled, or expired.

Modificatiors of finarncial asets and financlal Habdligies

Firancial ssets

I the verrg of a lnanois] aseel are modified, e Company evaluales wiwslbher the cash fbows of the modilfed oiset ane subdtantially
defferent. [ the cath flows are substantially different, then the contractusd rights bo cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed
I!nhhe-ui:'lrrd.hmh:ﬂ.ﬂlm{mﬂmﬂtdﬂﬂwmﬂnmimﬂm 15 recogrired ot fair value adjusted for
anmy eligible transaction coats.

I¥ the cash flosss of the modified asset caamied a1 Smortized o601 are ol substantially diffenent, then the modification does net resull in
derecognition of the hingncial assed. In this caee, the Company recalculales the gnoss carrying amount of the financial asset and mecognizes
thee amnount artsing from adpsting the grods Carying amount &8 o modification gain ar oss @6 Statement af profit or Loss,

Financial labilitees

T Compamy derecognizes a financial Hability when 0 oenms are modifeed and e cash Thows of the moditied Hability ase subatantially
defterent, Intids casie, & néw Financial iabdily based on the modelied terms @S necognised a1 fasr vadoe, The difference baetween the canmying
amcint oF the financial liabbity expinguishiag snd the e Teancial labsity with modifed terms s recogndaed &0 statermseyl of profl or o,

Oeffsatting fimanclal assets and fnancial Habdlities
Financial msets and financial labalities are offset and the net amount i presented m the statemsent of Tinancial position when the Comparry
has & legal ight to offeet the amcunts and intends 1o Settle on net bt or to realie the aste aed settle he lability simultansously.

Fair value messurement

“Fair value® 5 the price that would D recolved 1o sell an asset or pakd o transfer a llﬁl-l.l‘l'rh'll-'lbl'ﬁbﬂf Lransaction belwean market
parthCipards o1 the meaiurement dale in the principal m.mHMIMM{WMNMIMMM QCoesy at
that date. The fair value of & Rability reflects it non-performance risk.

When one iy avadlable, the Company measunes the fair value of &0 instroment psing the guoted prioe in an active market for that instrament,
& ket 15 regarded a5 tactive” of Eransactions for the asset or lability take place with suffscient frequency and volume to prowide pricng
indprmmaticn Gn an orgoing hasis,

I there i no quoted prece in an SOl made, then the Compamy wied valuslion tecPeigqued thal maemise [he ote of relevant pbservable
inpuits and minkeize the use of unobasrvable nputs. The choden walustion bechrigue ncorporates 81l af the factors that market participants
would bake into account im pricing a transaction.

Trarsttioens in fomesgn currencies are tramdated to the respective functional oumency of the Company at exchange rates &t the dates of the
transactions or at ihe average rate of such rate approgimates the actual ke at the date of the transaction,

Monetary asets and labdities denominated in forgign culmendcies any translated into Che functional currency af ithe axchange rate af (ks
repd ey dabe, Mon-monelany ibems thal ane mMaduitd Baddd on histoncal cost in a Foneign curmendy ang Lranslabed af Uhe exchange rake &1
the date al the [ransaction, Mon-manetary assels and liabilities that are measured &0 fair value in & Toneign ourmency &ne tramilated into the
Fumetional cosrency al the exchange rale when the fair value was determissd. Foreign currency differences sre generally recognized n
Statement of profit or lows,

""rlrrgu' |'
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JAMA CAMTAL LEMITED
CIM: U&7 1008AZ015PLOOTI4BE
2 Floor, Mo, B0, Sth Croas, 4tk Mais, Mangthi Extensbon Bangalore S60071
(A1 amounts ane nupeses in thousands, unless otherwiue stated)
Hates to the Corsolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2027

Prowisions snd contingencies related to claims, litigation, ete.

A preniiion 15 recognided i, ad a fesult of o past evenl, the Compsdny has b present abligation (legal of tormtiuctive) Lhat can be etamsbed
retiably, and it i probable thet an outflow of econdemic benefits will be reguined (o setibe the obligation. Provisions. are measured at the
present value of managemen'y best estimate af the expenditure requined to settie the present obligation al the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate wsed (o determing the present value & a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
Al [ha rigks tpecific bo The Hability, The screase 0 the prosesion due 1o the passepe of Time & necognseed a5 financoe oost.

Onerous contracts

A contract i comiidered as oncrows whin Lhe expected edonomic bevefits to be derived by the Company from the conlract are lower than
it unarvokdable cost of meeting its cbligations under the contract, The provision for an onevows confract & measured at the lower of the
expiCied cosl of terminating ke contract and the expecied et oost of oontinusng with ke conbract. Before a provision t cstabared, the
Compay eCognares. Ay impairment Joss on Uhe a5sms associabed with thay combract.

Contingencies related to claims, litigation, otc,

Priowision n respect af loss contingencics relating to chaams, bibigation, assessment, fines, penaltses, otc,, ane necognised when it i probable
ihat a liabdity has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviesed ab each balance sheot date and
Sdlnted 1o reflect [he curent Bost sstimate. I 60 B no longer probable that ihe outflow of respidoes would be redquingd o settle e
olbligation, 1Pe proviskon i reversed.

Income taxes
Incoema bax expense comprises current and deferred tae b & recognazed @ the statement of profit and bows except to the extent that
redabes fo & business combénation, o items recogrized directly in equity o in other comprehensive iIncome,

Current ta:

Current Bax 1S messsuresd a1 the smount expected to be pasd in respect of taxable income for the year in sccordance wilh ke Income Tax
Act, 1981, Cunnent tax comprises the capected tax payable on the tamabbe income for the year and any adpstment to the tan payabée or
Ipcetrabde in repect of previces year., B s meaduned ustng ta ades enachid or satstantivedy enscled at Che batance sheot date,
Current, Lax ssels and Labities ane alluet only if, the Compary:

&) has a legally enderceable right bo 2t ol the recognized amounts; and

) inbermds SiEher o seLtle an o net basts, oF (o reatize the assel and weike the Habibity simultanegusdy.

Delerred Lax

Deferred tax & recognized in respect of Temporary differences beltween the carrying amounts of assets and Liabilitkes for Timancial reporting
purposes and B9 tax base.

Desferred Lan adseds are revilwed ol each repodieg date and, based o0 managemssnl's judgment, are reduced (0 the extent that it B no
longer probable that the relaled tax benefit will be realized; susch reductions &e feversed when the probability of fulure taxable profits

improves.

Unrecogrized deferned fax ssets are reassessed at each reportwsy dabe and recogmized to the extent that o has become probable that
mwum will be availabde against which they can be used.

Defovred tax is measured st the tax rates that are espscted bo be applied to bemporary diffevences when they rewerse, using tax rates
enacted or sitstantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

Thee mesaunesnan of delerred [ax reflecs 1P [ax Contequances Thal would foflow Trom the manner in shich the Companmy sapects, al the
balanor il date, [0 fecover of SeCile 1he Camying amourd of its aseis and liabdities.

The eifect of changes in the tax rates on delerwed taa ascts and labiliies & recognised as income of expense in the period that inchudes
thi enactment o substanthe enactment date,

Defierred tax gusets ard [Rabrilitee are offoet only 6l
4 the Company bus a legally enforceabie right to set off curnent tax asseds spainst curfent Lax flabilities: and
b the defermed tax assets and the deferned tax Habiligses relate (o inoome faxes livied by the dame Eaxation suthceity.

Earnirgs per share

Tha Covmpany prosents bakic and diluted caming per share data for (05 ordinany shares. Basic camings per shane is caloulated by dividing the
profic or 1o thal 15 attribstadle o ordinary shareholdess of the Company By the wetghted-avamage numbsy of ondinary shaees pubstanding
dring 1he period,

Ciluted earnings per shane is determined By adjusting the prolit o loss that & attributable (o crdsary shareholders and ithe wesghled.
verage romber of ondinary shanes outstanding far the effects of all dilutive patential ordinary Shared, excepd whene Lhe redulls ane anti-
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JAEA CAPITAL LIMITED
. CIH: g7 100KAD 1 SPLCO TR 488
Ind Floor, Bo, B0, 5th Crosa, Ath Main, Maruthl Extersion Bangalore 560021
(AL AU ane Mupess i thousands, unless atherwise stated)
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and caih equivalenty include Balinde with bankd and fixed deposits with sn onginsl maturity of three montbs or less. Cash and cash
euiealenily ane carried at amomipsd Cosl in e balance theet,

Statement of cash flows

Canh flows are mepoed using the indirect methcd, whereby met prolit before Lax is adjusted Tor the elfects of transaclion of non-cash
tramsaciions, amy doferrats of acruals of past o Tulune operating cash receipls or payments and ibem of egpenses associsted with investing
or limancing cadh Flows, The cash flows from operating, investing and Financing activities of the Company ane segregated. For the porpose of
presentation in the slatement of cadh flowd, Cash and cavh equivatents include bank owerdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Compary®s cash management.

Impadrment of financlal ssets

The Company recognises smpairment allowances for Expecoed Credit Loss (ESL) on all the financial assets that ane mof mesasured ab FVTPL:
ECL arp probabfliny wesghied estemate of futune credit kosses Dased on the staging of the Minancisd aset 1o medlect its oredit mk. They are
e s Tobwg

=« Fanancial assets thal e nol ofedil impained - as the present values of all caskh shortfslls that are possible withes 13 months after the
repaeting date.

+ Financisl assets with sigeaficant incresas in credit risk bt not credst impasred - a3 the present salues of all cash shortfalls that result from
all possible defalt cvents over the expected e of the financial asset,

= Financial asseis that are credit impaired - as the diffenence Between the gross Carmying amount and 1k present value of estimated cash
T

Finarcigl aters are fully pravided for uwﬂ::muﬂqﬂhﬁmﬁijnﬁﬁ:-ﬂnth:mumnmﬂﬂemumurma
financial adset in il entaety of & portion tFeread.

The Company accounts for investments @ subsidiany at cost and tests for impadment st each reposting date. At each reporting date, the
Company assesses whother financial assets carmed at amortised oot are impaired, The financial asets ane tested for impalmmssat and
impaimment. leases are incumed 1, and only if, thene @5 objective evidence of impaimment as a reswelt of oo of Mone ewenls thal ooouTed
after the initial recognition of the net imvestment (2 ‘loss event”') and that logs ovent (or events) has an impact on the estimated luuee cash
Flowsss froim TR nat Sveestmasnt Chat can B rellabdy esrimatsd,

Segment Reporting

An opirating Jegmant 15 8 component of the Company thal engages in Disieess activithes Trem which it may sam revenises and incud
eaperses whise resulls are negularty reviewed by (he Company™s chiel operating decision maker (CODM) to make deciiions about resources
L Baer allosciatied o the segment and susess i performance, and for which discrete financial information is awaslable.

Sﬂl'l'ﬂh'l! rEulbs (hat are repoeted Lo the CODM oo sde Immm‘!dlr&ﬂyaﬁﬂhlﬂ o & WEHHJHHMMEIH
albacated on & reasonabile basis.




Jnna CAMTAL LIMITED
CiH: B6T 1008A301 SFLCOT 428
2nd Floor, Mo, B0, Sth Cross, 4ih Main, Maruthi Extension Bangalore 560021
1Al amounds are rupess in thousands, unless othersise skated)
Hotes forming part of the Corsolidsted Finsncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 20231

{Rs, in thousands)
3 Cash and Cash Equivalents As at s at
F 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand
Baslancos with banks in cunment aoceunis T.043. 20 1, o, on
Fimed doposits with banks 10,043,497 &,218.00
Tatal i 17,737.23 9,930.02
Balarce
Fimed Deposts with bani 3 E
Other banik balances Tdd T, a4
Total other bank balances i} T.44 744
Total Cash and bank bslances [LET] 17 T44.67 BRIT. 46
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents comprise the following:
Cash and cash equivalents
Balanoes with banks;

O CUrPesl BocousLs 1773723 993003
Cash on hard - :
Sub Total 17, 137,13 B.%30.02
Le=ig: Bsnk owirdralts - -
Total 17,737,233 B, 930.02

ﬂmCMﬁUhunmtaknmﬂmﬁm. therefore the cash and cash equivadent for stagement of cash gy 15 Same & cash and for
cash eguisalent given abowve,

Fimpd Deposas with banks représents Dwo deposits of RS 5,000 thowtands each (totalting 1o 100000 Thousands ) with its associake
company Jana Smadl Finance Bark Limited, each maguring on 04 August 1022 and 04-February-2023 respectively.




JANA CAPITAL LIWMITED
CENG WRST100EAZQ 1 SPLCOT458
Ind Floosr, Ho. B0, Sth Cross, 4th Main, Maruthi Extension Bangalore S60021
(All ameunts are rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Hates forming part of the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2032

[Rs. In Ehousands)

Az at 31 March 1033

As at 31 March 321

dumedrtised cost

AL Fair ¥alue

Throigh Other
Comprehensive
Incoima

Through

Profit or Loss

At Fair Yalue

Through Other
Comprehensive

Armartised cost

Through Profit
or Lo

&

Equity Instrsments

Jana small finance bank Limited
(Associate]

aachi

Unguated (fully paid-up of Rs, 104 -

13,325,395, 76

Ak rvestment during the year

£, 50,5506

18,92,.078.51 -

Share im thar Prodicd {loss) of
associates

19,00, 618, 64)

{4, 0, I )

Share in Other comprshensise
Income

{57, 109.78)

(0,57, 311211

Dévidend from Jana small finance
ank

Total - Gross (4)

10, 26, bk, 40

13,25,395.76 -

Lii] Inwestments outside kndia

1} Investments i Indis

10,26, kb, 40

13,25,195, T

Tatal (B)

10, 26, 666, 40

13,25,395. 76 -

Add: Reversal of Allowanoe for
Irspairmeent Loss For Che year ()

3,72 BB&.T1

| Total - Net D= AsC

13,99, 55261

13,25,395.76

5 Dther financial assets
Qrher Recedrables

Seourity Deposits
Total

b Current Tax Assefs

TOS recervahle

kO 4
.l"ll.a' ‘.}
I'i':' Cnatlered

|:|,|url-"ﬂ|'l|-1'
\ Jﬁ,{é

Az at
31 March H32

Az al
31 March 2021

T.64
2, 110,00

41.73
1, 778,00

111764

1,819,975

A% at
31 March 2032

Az at
31 Marech 2021

148,11

!34‘:"

148.31
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JAHA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIM; U6 T100KAZO SPLEOTO4RA
Znd Floor, Ho. 80, Sth Cross, dth Main, Maruthl Extension Bangalore 560021
(Al amounts are rupeeds in thousands, unless othorwise stated)
Haotes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year onded 31 March 2022

s, In thoussnds)
10 i} Trade As at An &t
31 March 2023 31 March 2021
{8} Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entenprises 3
(b} Total cutstanding dises of creditan other than micro enterprises and small 1,854, B6
aLerprises
1. 854,86

Based on the information available with the HBFC, there are no outstanding dues and payments made to any supplier of goods and
serviies beyond the speified period under Micro, Small and Mediui Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [MSWED Act]. There is no
interest payable or paid Bo any supplicrs under the said Act.

Ageing schodule of trade payasbles

{Rs. ln_lhmml

As at 31 March 2022 nstanding from the due date of payment Tatal
Less than 1 11 ypoars -1 years More than 3
year k]

Microy, small and medium
e pr e x "
| Diisputed dues — MSME . - - . -
(Dspiited dues — Otfsers . = . 7

(Rs. In thpusands)
Az at 31 March 2021 Chrtstanding from the due date of payment Total

Less than 1 1-2 ywars 2-3 years More than 3
yiar years
icro, small and medum
tuerpfhn ¢
Others — 1,854, 86 - 1,854, 85
Disputed dues — MEME - - -
Disputed dises — Dthers P
(1} Other payables As Bt As ak
11 March 022 31 March 2021

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Total autstanding dues of creditors otfer than micro enterprises and small enterprises 12,40
Total Other payables - 12,40

Based on the information avaflable with the NBFC, there are no outstanding dues and payments made to arry
wipplier of goods and services beyond the specified period under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 [WMSMED Act]. There is no interest payable or pald to any suppliers under the sakd Act.
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JANA CAPITAL LIMTED
CIH: UGT 100RAZO N SPLOOTIHER

Ind Floor, Ho. B0, 51h Cross, 4th Makn, Maruthi Extersion Bangatore 60021
(ML amounts are rupees in thousands, unless otherstse stated)
Motes forming part of the Comsalidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

12 Dther Financial Liabilithes
Audit Fiee Payalile
PFrovision for Professsonal fees
Provsion for Sitting Fees
Dther Expenses Payable
Total

13 Provislons
Previsbon for Employee Benefits
Total

14 Other Hon - Financial Liabilities
SLatutary dues

Taotal

i )
fl| |" Charlered v |
| o=l Aceauntgnts)

I hy J!

{Rs. In thouwsands)

As at AL at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
709.98 665.00
- 140.00
. 138.75
4.50 ;
71448 943,75
A4 At s at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1,003.33 518,76
1,003.33 T S18.78
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
3,542.07 1.024.86
3,542.07 1,024.86




JAMS CAPTTAL LLUTED
CIH: LT OEAZD 1 3FLCOT 94l
nid Fhoor, Mo, B0, Sth Cross, 40 Main, Barathi Extendssn Bangalore S60031
(&I amowsts sne rugsse in thousanch, unlesa otherwise stabted)
Mobes Porming part of the Consobidated Financial Statements for the yesr endsd 31 March 20232

{Hx. I thowusansd
13 Equity Share cagital
As st A el
31 March 2022 31 Manch 20021

Authorized
Equity Share Caprlal (&3 &1 311 March DO2%-Rs. 300,00, 000 §30,00,000 EQuity shares ol 0O, i OO, ([
et wbuie ol BE, 00 esach ), A% a1 B0 M B0 0 B 00000, 000 § 30000000 Bquity shares
At par walioe= of R 10 sach)
Tirtal 30,000, 50 30,000, 00
baued, subdcribeed and pald up
Equity Hsare Capital (& 51 31 Masch BOI-Bs 3.70.41 810 {3704, 081 Equity shares sl P ] Fric ]
par walues of B3 10 each), (&% af 31 March 2081 © Ra.2 70,41 810 [37.04,181 Eguary
dhires ok par valise of B 10 each)
Tetal 27,041,801 27,041.81

B, In thoarsandsh

{a) Feconciistion of shares oufstandng at the beginning ard at the end of A% ak 31 March 2032 A& at 31 March 303 1
Uhsp yaar
Hisnbaer of Amaoant Husnber of Amauni
shara M

Danstanding ab the Doginning of the ywear PR IT 00 61 FERCRE R IF 01,81
Ak Issupeed dhuring e poa - - - -
Duisfanding at the e of the year 27,04 184 37 044 81 27,04, 181 FT 041 84

s} Erghts, prefeence. and restricisons attsched o share
Tisrrnad rights attacked Lo equity shares:
Ther Comiparsy hen only one class of oquity shares faving 2 par walue ol © 100- cach. Each holdir of equity share is entilbad 1o one vole g share,
The Company dectares and pays dividend on equity shares in indian rupeess. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors i subject to (ke approval
of the sharahalders i e entiing Annis] General Mesting, excepl in caie of interim diidend. The companry has mot declsfed any dividend for the Iy
Fo PR EF 1P
In the e=eent ol liguidaltion of the Comguaeny, e Folders of equity dhares wl be enititled bo receive the maets ol the Comguny, The distritution will e
in proportion to the rumber of eguity shane beld by the squity tharchelden.

() Derbiils of ibafis Fald by sharefalders holding mane than 5% of the apgregate share in the Company

Hame ol the shareholder fix at 31 March B023 & ak 11 March 2021
Wumber of sthares % of holding  Humber of theres % of holding
i the class i the class.
Eguity Shares
Jana Lirban Foumadation LR EER rE 11,EF 745 LER r i
TPG Aaia V1 SF Pre Led 5,40, 574 9, 5,405 19,9
Calachinm Irrvesbment P L1d 5,40 574 R, 5, 40,574 19,590
Mogih Haven Private Equity &uis Platinem Phe Lid 2,35 456 B.FEY 1,35, 55 B.F
CAG Emievperies Lbd 1, 73,085 . 1he 17,025 6. 380

Shares allotbied as Mulky pasd-up withoull payment betng recereed incandy ¢ By oway ol boras shanes:
The Company has not. e bomne shares or shares for consideration other than cash during the five yoar period immedualely preceding the report ing ©

Hame of promoter® st 10 arch 2032
Ko, af shareys &t the e Ko, of shares ot Ehe snd Hﬂwll t"h-nﬂrmth
beginming of fhe year = LU R TE
Jara Uit Fodimadabban 18 80 4G 75T s ll.ﬁil U.‘W’l
Ramwrsh Bamanasihan 1 = 1 f0f 0.0
Maurss ol prosmoter® Ap at 17 March 30729

Fiy, of thares af the :I ':h. mﬂm:nmmLurﬁu h-l:ﬂ-pﬁhtm
BEginning of 1ha year ol i yaar

S Ui Fousedatisn (L. PR il 10 EF T 41,91 [N
Hamarsh Bamanaihun i 1 [ [

o '
" ehartesed
accouniantsl *
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JAHA CAPITAL LIMITED
OB Ua T 100EA R0 SPLOD R4S

Zred Floor, Mo 80, Sth Creds, 4th Maim, Maruthi Extensien Bangalare 380021
1Al ammounts are muipees in thousands,. undess cliversine staled)

Holes forming part of the Consoldated Financial Statesents for the pear ended 31 March 2027

Other Equity A5 ab s at
3 Mareh 2022 31 Warch 2031
Seciiliod Pramium Adosiin
Opening balance 113 54 P03, 28 15254 NI 2R
Ak - Securiths premium credited on e B . s
Lkt ; Prasm e afill i0on) PO waieoi s 1oasons - +
Cloaing balance 1,32,54.702.28 1,22,%4 T03.28
Statutory Reseree
Opsirirg Balaice Iw e LR
bl Trarmderred during Thae year ' '
Lis: URiization on acosnt of ransler : .
Cleaing balance 39,270 %F 30579 01
Retairsd Earnieg and Sunplusf{deficit) sn the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opserirg Balande 1280, M0 448 05} 125080 475 0%)
Add: Het Lowy Tor hee cumrend yasar {1y S0, 10, Ay MR A0 0F R &0}
Tramder fom reseres P i
Lirks: Mg dividends - E
Inbisrimn o ividhencls " '
Elﬂﬂ'll_bﬂll'lcl (3,18 1) 553 31} (.81, 70 448 %1}
Other Comprehensive oome
Opring balante (3,75, 32%.83) {1E,M 7,73}
Sbeds Fast Prollin FMet Less) Tof 1P STl s (R T (157, 312.01)
l:l'l:u.‘llﬂl:ll-l-l.rll:l- [E, 32 4315 81) 1,75 33% 83)

Tolal Beserves and surplus
Hature and purpose of reserves.
Socor e Preman risesve

01,7, 59010, 7

11,860,571, 7%, 5}

SeCur Tl PRemiem Neserve B used 10 fecord Ehe premium on issue of shares. The iesense can be ulilised only Tor lissited parposes such a6 Basands of

Bxwrmn b in acotidence wilh Lhe prosis ko of Che Comparies Aot 2013,
Statinery Riseras

; o
!"'1’ Chanered

AN

I bt of Section 45-1C of the RBE Acl, MEFCy are requirsd to creste & reserse fund and transler therein 4 sum rob bes than twenty per cent of Ms
el sl ey year, Thee above nixpuiement B 1o ghve Birimic stiesgith bo the balance sfeety of he BFECL. This reserane could B eneyd fon ponpones
a8 stipulated by ibe Reserve Bark of India from time o time.  Howesser, no bransior has been made to reserses Bor the period ended 38 March 27 as
e Cowrgay’ harh ncurmed losses,

Eartaimind Earnings

Pelained warnings dre Ehe proliled |lodses ) that the Coinparry hen earresd B0 dabe, s sy dividends of obher distrfediom pald Lo shaneholders.
Coetingent Lusbiities and commitments

Contingent. Lisbiities Az at A5 at

3 March 3022 31 March 3021
Clakma agaimd the HBFC not acknowledged o debl : :
Gumranbons exchuding financial guaraness . .
Cribapr mairy Tor which Uhi HEFC i contingonly Liable - -
Total - ’
Lommmitments - Hsle-1
Estimated amount of contracts remaiing o be esecubed on capftal aocount and not . B
prariched lor;
Uicallogd Labdlity o shaied and otk iveiments parlky paid; . '
e comimibments. (apecily nalbore). i :
Total - -
*Hobie-1
Ther Comnpary Fas & proces sy periodically all long tem conlracty are assessed Tor materlal Toreseeabli Wses. s a1 year end, the Company
dhoes N0t Fave any long levm conbracts [including derivat ve contracts] for which there were material foremesable loses.
Thes Company Fas nol been declared as a willul delad ber by ansy bank oF financial instiugon or otfer lender,
A per e Bl msaliony available with s, (he Coenpusiy i nol hawire] iy relaliombig with struck off Companios duriieg tha ywear,
The Compusrny does. nod. have oy und iclosed incomas 1hat bus boon serendered or dischoesed @ inoome during Uhe pear in the Lax assesumenits under
Ul A Tan dth, 194617

IDpring Ut e, R Coimpsarny T nod frided of ewesilod n COryplo Corrency of in Yirual Cusmendy,

Penalties imposed by EBI
There has been no penabties. imposed by B8 for the year ended 31 March 2082 (Previow Year: Nil)




JAMA CAPITAL LIMITED
CIH; UaT100RAZON SPLLOTRA8E

Znd Floor, No, BD, 5th Cross, 41h Main, Manahi Extension Bangalose 560021
(Al armdunts aré rupees in Ehousands, unleds otherwive stated)
Mates forming part of the Contalidated Financial Statements for the yesr ended 11 March D022

17 Rovenue from Operations {Rs. In thousands)
e For the year ended | For the yaar ended
P 11 March 2022 51 March 2021
Interest on deposit with Banks 110468 1,180, 57
Interest on Income tax rofund BT .
Tatal 218,85 1,380,57
18 |
Particul For the year ended | For the year ended
31 sarch 37072 31 March 2021
Inferest income from Fined deposits . 193,59
[Tatal . 153,59
1%
p . For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March P02 31 March 7021
!Irllll'l.'ll-mdt‘hl secunties 30,32, 135,81 25.71,953, 23
I'lﬂil 30,32 135.81 2%5.71,953,.12
0 Impakrment on Financisl Instrusmisnts
For the year evidid | For the year ended
|F"""‘"*"""IIH 11 March 2022 31 March 2024
Impairmert Less reversal on invesiments (3.78,886,11) -
Total (3,72,886.21) .
4|
For the yesr ended | For the year ended
Baerticidars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
aries and wages 15, 718 12,255.29
Prowvision for leave encaskenent [Befer Hote-1 boelow) 454 57 kK LY
atal 14, 198_15 17,604, 44
Hores

The Company has & Leave policy defined as per which employees are entitled to 21 workings days of privilege/eamed leave
duning a Tinancial yoar, The leave shall be oredited ag the beginneng of the nancial year for axisting cmployees a5 30 0ist April
and for employes ﬂi‘lﬂl‘.'ﬂdll“ Lha= wiar the leave dhall be credited an & proporisonabe basis,

As per the Company plicy only 10 days of prsbege leave from the corrent Tinancial year can be carmied Tomwand 1o the next
financis wear: unused privibege beaves will be lapeed. Encadbsment of prrvlege eave will be possible at the time of separation on
it pra raka bads.

Duiring the previous financial year, the ¢amed lesve for eligible employees of the company whene carried forward and
pocordingly leave encashment provision o such elfect iy Bpen provided, During the cument Fmancial year leawe enachashemant
provisaon amounting 1o Bs. 48457 thousands has been provided considening the leave balances snd sctoal leaves Baken for the
yEar.

a I wn il BEE
'1|' Charbeted {2 Ell-l~~f"-'n"'"|
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i, CAPTTAL LIWITEDR
CEH: UGT 100RATDT SPLCO T80
Ind Flocs, Mo, 80, §th Creds, 4th bain, Maruthd Extension Bangalore 58002 1
(Ad] amounts are rupess in thousands, unless otherwise stabed)
Hotes ferming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the pear ended 31 March 2022

1 Deprecistion and Amortization Expense

I For the year erded | Far the year ended
Particulars
31 Barch H022 31 March 2021
on targible assets (Rofer note 5) 141.81 148.13
on intangibde assets (Reder nole &) 1949 2.4
Tatal Deprecistion and amortization expenie 161.32 169,57
13
ticial For the year ended | For the year anded
g 31 March DOTI 31 March B2
Experaes towards L3R - -
{Total - =
4
For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March P0O22 31 sarch 2021
7. 74 345,32
L& 1553
S 5 40,37
5m 44,37
5,40 5758
1,478.00 1,357.00
1,08%.00 1, 344,00
M 34T 0,943, 37
44T T3 A, 04
AL 514
1%, 057.50 :
1,991.9% 1,185 5%
1,65 61,00
&4, 43,27
4.0 45,15
3,641,056 16,00
153,40 18080
163, 08 &0, 10
73,005 42 17,429 89
Haote - The foflpwing & the break-up of faditcrs remuneration (nclustve/caclusive of Goods and service e (R In thenmands)
Particulars Far B year endied | Fesr e st snded
: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
bh | As auditor; = —
As Statutory Auditor B45.80 1,272.00
For pthey sErwices TF5. ) TEO0
atal 1A 00 1,344,000
- 4 - ] .. "1\‘
b=
I.'lll;:.:'l H\

VT pABGALOR
| | BRI

=

=1
E}

P
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JAMA CAPITAL LINITED
CIH: U&7 10HEA 201 SPLCDT 488
Inad Flooer, Mo 80, 51k Crods, 4tk Main, Maruthd Extension Bangabore S60011
[AH amsunts are napees 0 thousands, unless otherwise stafed)
Modes forming part of the Consolidated Finamcial Statements for the year ended 31 Barch 37022

3I Maturity analysis of assets and Habdlities {Baved on RED guidetines)

(R, Im thousand

mmmmmmuﬂmgﬂlwb.ﬂwﬂdm{gﬂgtnﬂnﬂﬂmwmhrﬂmum

As ol 31 March 2033

A5 st 11 March 2021

i | DANGALOR

Within 12 | After 12 montha Total Within 11 After 12 months Total
Assots meonths maoriths
Financial assots
() [Cash and cish equivalbents L b | 17,737,313 9,930,032 5,930,032
ibh [Bank balarce ather than cash
ared cath eouivabents . 7.84 .44 T.44 7.4
fc) |evestments : 13,55, 552,61 11, 5%, 552,61 ' 13,29, 365,78 13,2%,395, 74
() |Curer financial assets 764 T,110.00 T,117.64 194,73 1,423,600 1,819.73
Total Financlal assets 7,744,087 14,01,670.05 14,19, 414,92 10, 126,75 13,2702, 19 13,37,152.95
Ron-Financial aisels
[a) |Current 1ax Assits 53,49 < 5145 148,31 148, 38
b (Progerty, plant and equipment 4.5 85,51 10808 w.a7 146,38 184,33
=} |Goodwill on Comalrdation - 17,985.00 17,985.00 - 17,985 .00 17,584,000
elp |Crker intangible assets 118 - 1.3 5.3% 17.54 1257
(i} |Carser mon-Tinancial assets 25305 E 251,05 .1 ; 443,00
Total Han-financial aviets 352,47 18,050, 51 18,402.98 614,73 18,148 B0 18,783,513
Total Asists 18,007.34 14,19, 720,56 14,37 817,50 10,761.47 13,45, 174,58 13,58 36,47
Linbilities and Equity
. 5 1,887. 26 s 1,887, 74
2.01,6452698 | 2,01,64526.93 | 11,63,757.47 1,52,12,559.12 1,707, .5
. 714,48 943,75 . 375
2,11,64,526.93 | 2,11,85.241.41| 21,66 58848 | 1,82.12,885.12| 1,73,79,147,60
1,003.33 1,003.33 - 518.78 8T
. 3,27 1,024, 85 - 1,024,845
1,003,733 4 545,40 1,024.86 518,76 1,543,862
7041, 81 7041 . 741,81 T 1.
497,55 0T | -1,97.59,000.72 <1 50,51, 796,55 A, 50,51, 7. 56
1,857,371, 068.91 | -1,97, 31 06891 - 1,080,234, 754,75 | +1,80,24,754,75
14,33,561.35 14,37 817,90 | 21,67.613.94 B, 11,676 87 13,58 938, 47
o ;T.i'-".{
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1) i alifications [for audit report with modifie inion

submitted along-with Annual Audited Financial Results

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31,2022

[Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016]

(Rupees in Thousands)

Audited Figures Adjusted Figures

I Sl . (as reported (audited figures after
Ng. | Pantculars before adjusting adjusting for
for qualifications) qualifications)

1. | Turnover / Total income 0.00 0.00
2. | Total Expenditure 27,48,485.74 27,48,485.74
3. | Net Profit/(Loss) (27,48,485.74) (27,48,485.74)
4. | Earnings Per Share (1,016.38) (1,016.38)
5. | Total Assets 23,62,011.97 23,62,011.97
6. | Total Liabilities 21,78,212.55 21,78,212.55
7. | Net Worth 1,83,799.43 1,83,799.43

Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate

8. by the management) NIL NIL

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

A. Details of Audit Qualification:

i. Adjusted Net Worth of a CIC shall at no point in time be less than 30% of its aggregate risk weighted

assets on balance sheet and risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet items as on the date of last audited
balance sheet as at the end of the financial year. The Company has shortfall of the prescribed minimum
requirement which is at 7.78% as of March 31, 2022.
The Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, further stipulate that the outside
liabilities of a CIC-ND-SI shall at no point in time exceed 2.5 times of its Adjusted Net Worth as on date of
the last audited balance as at the end of the financial year. During the period ended March 31, 2022, the
limit has been exceeded by 11.85 times.

B. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified opinion.

C. Frequency of qualification: For the first time.

D. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's

Views: Does not arise.

E. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

(i) Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: Cannot be estimated.

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: The management cannot estimate
the impact for the following reasons.

a.

The Company is a Core Investment Company and does not carry out any business activity except
making investments in the associate company through its wholly owned subsidiary.

Main purpose of creating this structure is to act as a conduit for investment in Jana Small Finance
Bank, the target company.

The performance of this company is entirely dependent on the wholly owned subsidiary whose
performance, in turn, depends on Jana Small finance Bank, its Associate Company.

In the recent years, the performance of the target company was impacted by unforeseen events that
were external to it and the target company had no control over them.

Losses due to interest accruals on the NCDs and operating costs incurred by the wholly owned
subsidiary have an impact on the net worth of the company. In addition, the company also accrues
interest on the NCDS issued and incurs operating costs that further impact its net worth. The said
losses caused the breaches in Capital Requirements on a consolidated basis and Leverage Ratio on a

standalone basis.
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ANNEXURE I

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion)
submitted along-with Annual Audited Financial Results

—

(iii) Auditors' Comments on (i) or (ii) above:

The qualification matters stated in the audit report were pertaining to non-compliances with the
certain conditions specified in the RBI guidelines and notifications (regulations) mentioned in our audit
report. The monetary implications of such non compliances are not mentioned in the relevant
regulations. Accordingly, consequential impact of such non-compliance on the financial results is

presently unascertainable.

For Jana Capital Limited For Jana Capital Limited For Jana Capital Limited
e

Rajamani Muthuchamy Gopalakrishnan S Ranganath SV

CEO and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Audit Committee Chairman

DIN: 08080999 ICAI Membership No: 021783 DIN: 00323799

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore

Date: 30.05.2022 Date: 30.05.2022 Date: 30.05.2022
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